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EMERGENCY SERVICES DIRECTORY

Fire/Rescue Department

EMERGENCY ONLY . ................ 911
Non-Emergency . ............. 659-6636
Police Department

EMERGENCY ONLY . ................ 911
Non-Emergency . ............. 659-6636
Administration/Records ........ 659-8505

Holiday Trash Schedule 2016

Memorial Day: Monday, May 30, 2016
Independence Day: Monday, July 4, 2016
Labor Day: Monday, September 5, 2016
(On these holidays the Monday route
will be done on Tuesday.)

DID YOU KNOW??2?

In case of an Emergency: In the event of power outages, flooding, etc., residents
may contact the Newmarket Police Communications Center at 659-6636 for information
regarding the location and operation of Newmarket’s emergency shelter facilities.

Drop off Payment Box: A drop off payment box has been installed for your convenience
on the right side of the elevator. This box is lighted and accessible 24 hours a day.
Payments dropped off are collected daily.

ATM machine is located in Town Hall in the hallway just outside the Town Clerk’s Office.
Government Access Channel: Channel 13 (cwilliams@newmarketnh.gov)
Town of Newmarket Website: WWW.NEWMARKETNH.GOV

Town Hall Hours:
Monday-Thursday 7:00 A.m. — 4:15 p.m.
Friday 7:00 A.m. — Noon

Town Clerk/Tax Collector Hours:
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday 7:00 A.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Wednesdays 7:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m.
Closed Fridays.
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Dedication

Madeleine St. Hilaire

laire in recognition of her many years of service and

This 2015 Town Report is dedicated to Madeleine St. Hi-
devotion to the Town of Newmarket. Madeleine has

been a resident of Newmarket for most of her life. She and
her husband Donat bought their house in Maplecrest in 1965

where she resides today. She is a 1958 Graduate of Newmar-
ket High School.

Madeleine worked in the Town Office from 1979 to 1985
as the Accounts Payable and Payroll Clerk. In 1986 she as-
sumed the position of Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector
which she held until she retired in May 2001. She came back
to the Town Offices on a part-time basis filling in to cover
employee vacations in various department offices from 2003
to December 2015. With her vast knowledge of town office
operations, she could transition from one department to the
next seamlessly. She has served the Town as Supervisor of
the Checklist from March 2002 to March 2015.

Madeleine is an active member of the Sunrise Sunset 55+
Club, and serves as Secretary to the Senior Citizens Group.
She is an avid walker and a devoted dog lover. She has had
the pleasure of raising several Dachsunds in the past. The
latest one, Murphy, passed away recently. She now has a Shih
Tzu named Sweetie, who is her best friend.

Madeleine is known and admired by many as a “people
person”. She always served the public in a friendly and re-
spectful and up-beat manner. She has a quick wit and con-
tagious laugh.

Madeleine and her late husband Donat St. Hilaire
worked tirelessly on behalf of the townspeople to create very
successful Old Home Day weekends, held annually in the
summer.

Madeleine has three children: Kim St. Hilaire and
her partner Beth Dennis of Newmarket, Kathy St. Hilaire
of Newmarket and Eugene “Gene” St. Hilaire and his wife
Mary of Barrington, NH.

We extend our sincere appreciation to Madeleine St.
Hilaire for her service to the citizens of Newmarket and wish
her years of good health and happiness.
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In Appreciation

Department of Public Works

was continuing the unseasonably warm weather that the re-

gion saw the prior month. In all actuality, except for a fresh
snow storm on Thanksgiving, winter seemed like it was going to
be a non-event.

Then on January 27, 2015, the Town was hit by the first of
two blizzards. The second blizzard came only 10 days after the
first. Overall the Town saw well over 5 feet of snow throughout
the winter.

However, we were very fortunate to have the hard working
women and men of the Department of Public Works making
sure our safety was top priority. They spent countless hours and
days working tirelessly to clear our streets and sidewalks, making
them passable for everyone.

Too often we take the Department of Public Works for grant-
ed. With last year’s winter we realized the hard work they do. For
that we are forever grateful.

' anuary 2015 began as an uneventful month weather wise. It

Carpenter’s Old English Greenhouse and Florist

ith the controlled burn and clear-
Wing of the property, the Town of

Newmarket closed the chapter
on a well-established business in Town:
Carpenter’s Greenhouse.

Founded after the Second World War
by John and Rose Carpenter, their dedica-
tion to the community was well known.

After John’s passing in 2008, Rose
continued to operate the business well
into her 90’s with her son, Robert.

We would like to take this opportu-  The Property at 220 South Main Street
nity to thank the Carpenters for all they g it appears today.
have done for Newmarket.

In Memoriam — Edmund L. Portyrata
June 16, 1925 - July 8, 2015

in the Merchant Marine until 1950. He spent several years volunteering
with the Newmarket Little League teams and enjoyed coaching and um-
piring. He was an avid boater with his wife, and spent several summers on Lake
Winnipesaukee boating with Stan and Norma Jarosz, and their family.
Ed will be remembered as an advocate for the elderly through town coun-
cil meetings, and was a staunch fiscal conservative who opposed increasing
property taxes, and believed in reducing government spending.

E d Portyrata served in the US Navy from 1944 to 1946. He also served
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Government and Administration

Elected Officials

Town Council:

Philip Nazzaro, Chairman
Gary Levy, Vice-Chair
Dale Pike

Toni Weinstein

Larry Pickering

Amy Burns

Amy Thompson

Town Moderator:
Christopher Hawkins

Town Clerk/Tax CGollector:
Terri Littlefield
Donna Dugal, Deputy (Appointed)

Planning Board:

Eric Botterman, Chairman
Valerie Shelton, Vice-Chair

Janice Rosa

Rose-Anne Kwaks

Ezra Temko

Jane Ford

D. Diane Germanowski, Alternate
Peter Nelson, Alternate

Vacant, Alternate

Diane Hardy, Town Planner

Dale Pike, Town Council Ex Officio

Gary Levy, Alternate Town Council Ex Officio

Term Expires

March 2017
March 2017
March 2016
March 2017
March 2016
March 2018
March 2018

March 2016

March 2018

March 2016
March 2017
March 2016
March 2018
March 2018
March 2017
March 2018
March 2016
March 2017

Term Expires

Trustees of Trust Fund:

Michael LaBranche (2017)

James Bergeron (2018)
Vacant (2019)

March 2016

March 2016
March 2016

Supervisors of Checklist:

Joel Bogan (2020)
Carol Ross
Jane Arquette

Budget Committee:
David Foltz Chair
Michael Lang
William “Blue” Foster
Meg Louney Moore

Michael “Mickey” Burns,

Craig Dionne
Daniel V. Smith
Daniel Hill

Jeff Raab

March 2016
March 2018
March 2016

March 2016
March 2016
March 2016
March 2017

Vice-Chair

March 2017

March 2017
March 2018
March 2018
March 2018

Amy Thompson, Council Rep

Toni Weinstein, Council
Michael Kenison, School

State Representatives:
Adam Schroadter
Marcia Moody

Michael Cahill

Patricia Lovejoy

Rep. Alternate
Bd. Rep.

November 2016
November 2016
November 2016
November 2016
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Appointed Officials

Town Administrator:
Stephen R. Fournier

Acting Finance Director:
Matthew Angell

Town Treasurer:
Belinda Camire

Code Enforcement Officer:
Michael Hoffman

Public Works Director:
Richard M. Malasky

Chief of Police:
Kevin P. Cyr

Fire Chief:
Richard M. Malasky

Recreation Director:
James Hilton

Welfare Administrator:
Heather Thibodeau

Emergency Mgmt. Director:
Stephen R. Fournier

Strafford Regional Planning Commission:
Diane Hardy
Stephen R. Fournier

Housing Authority:

Ernest A. Clark, II, Director
Wendy Monroe

Dominic Rovitto

Charlotte DiLorenzo

Joyce Russell

John Reddy

Trustees of the Library:
Sandra Allen, Chair

Rob Crepeau

Lisa Zhe

Mary Ellen Mahoney
Joan DeYoreo
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Term Expires

March 2016
March 2020
March 2018
March 2017
March 2019

March 2016
March 2016
March 2017
March 2017
March 2018

Zoning Board of Adjustment:
Christopher Hawkins, Chair
Wayne Rosa

Robert Daigle

Jonathan Kiper

James Drago

Richard Shelton, Alternate
Steven Minutelli, Alternate

Bill Barr, Alternate
Vacancy-Alternate

Personnel Advisory Board:
Charles Smart

Vacant

Vacant

Conservation Commission:
Jeffrey Goldknopf, Chairman
Drew Kiefaber, Vice-Chair
Bruce Fecteau

Fred Pearson

Andrea Sellers

Marianne Hannagan

Patrick Reynolds, Alternate
Robert Gazda, Alternate
Alternate Vacancy

Amy Burns, Council Rep.
Ezra Temko, Planning Bd. Rep

Highway Public Safety Gommittee:
Stephen Fournier, Town Administrator
Richard Malasky, Public Works Director
Kevin Cyr, Police Chief

Richard Malasky, Fire Chief

Robert Daigle, Citizen

Larry Pickering, Council Rep.

Philip Nazzaro, Council Rep. Alternate
Michael Martin, School Superintendent
Michael Hoffman, Ex Officio

Diane Hardy, Ex Officio

Term Expires

March 2016
March 2016
March 2017
March 2017
March 2018
March 2016
March 2017
March 2018
March 2016

March 2018
March 2018
March 2016
March 2016
March 2017
March 2017
March 2018
March 2017
March 2018



Governmental Reporting

Town Council

2015 has been another strong year for the
Town of Newmarket and the Town Coun-
cil. The council bid farewell to John Bent-
ley, Ed Carmichael, and Dan Wright af-
ter their terms came to a close. We thank
them for their honorable service and
commitment to the people of Newmarket.
We also were joined by two new faces and
one returning face to the council. Amy
Burns and Amy Thompson joined the
council and Larry Pickering came back to
us. These new voices along with the other
current councilors give the council a di-
versity of viewpoints that has served the
community well over the last year.

This past year saw the beginning of
work on projects the council has been
stewarding for many years. Ground has
been broken on the new Waste Water
Treatment Facility that was voted in sev-
eral years ago. Similarly work has begun
on the Macintosh Well project voted in
back in 2013. This year the council also
signed a renewed contract with our Town
Administrator, Steve Fournier. We are
glad to be a part of establishing continuity
in our administration to help guide the
town into the future—and there is plenty
of work ahead of us.

This council has laid the ground
work for future positive efforts for the
town. The Council has started an organi-
zational effectiveness study that will yield
increase effectiveness and efficiencies for
the town—ensuring continuity of ser-
vices for our residents while seeking op-
portunities to reduce the tax burden on
our community. The council has started
the process that many previous councils
had discussed but not pushed forward of
assessing the town own properties and
seeking to sell excess land. This will al-
low the town to manage only the essential
properties and add these other properties
back on the tax rolls. The Economic De-
velopment Committee has proposed re-
zoning to the Planning Board that should
benefit the residents of Newmarket and
encourage responsible development. The
council also held its first joint meeting
with the school board as required by the
latest version of the charter—hopefully

this will establish a partnership that will
last far into the future for the benefit of all
our residents.

None of our accomplishments would
be possible if not for the town employees
that work hard to enact the strategic di-
rection established by the council. They
also would not have been possible with-
out the work of all those that sit on the
council. Each councilor approaches the
challenges of Newmarket from differ-
ent perspective and that has led to robust
debate and strong solutions that incor-
porate multiple perspectives. It has been
my honor to serve as chair during these
conversations and to help to contribute
to positive compromise that benefits our
community. Thanks to the town and my
fellow councilors for the opportunity to
serve you all. I know that with a contin-
ued spirit of collaboration and coopera-
tion Newmarket will have a bright and
prosperous future.

Respectfully submitted,
Phil Nazarro, Chairman
Town Council

Town Administrator

It is my privilege to submit to you my an-
nual report for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2015. As I enter into my third year as
Newmarket’s Town Administrator, I am
proud of the continued progress that the
Town Council and Town Staff have made
over the past year. We continue to move
Newmarket forward.

First, I would like to acknowledge
former Town Councilors John Bentley, Ed
Carmichael, and Daniel Wright. Coun-
cilor Bentley rejoined the Town Council
with the sudden departure of Councilor
Pickering. Councilor Bentley’s knowledge
of municipal government provided the
continuity needed to fill the remainder of
Councilor Pickering’s term. Councilors
Carmichael and Wright decided not to
run for reelection. Both of their contri-
butions to the Town over their term are
vast. Their hard work and humor will be
missed.

We welcomed Amy Burns, and Amy

Thompson to the Town Council this past
year. In addition, Larry Pickering was
elected to fill the seat he previously va-
cated. Councilor Burns’ knowledge of the
youth in the community will be of great
benefit to the Town Council. Councilor
Thompson’s years of service on the Mu-
nicipal Budget Committee made her tran-
sition to the Town Council easy.

As for key staff positions, after the be-
ginning of the fiscal year, long time Exec-
utive Secretary, Kathy Castle announced
her retirement. She had served the Town
for 15 years, working with three Town
Administrators. She has been a constant
in this office, and will be missed. We wel-
comed Wendy Chase as the new Execu-
tive Assistant shortly before the end of the
calendar year.

Also, this year Madeleine St. Hilla-
rie retired after many years of service to
the Town. She worked as a Deputy Town
Clerk / Tax Collector for a number of
years, after retiring from that position she
continued to work on an as needed basis
in the various offices in Town Hall. She
also served as a Supervisor of the Voters
checklist. Madeleine decided that it was
time to spend more time with her family
and beloved pets.

This year, we saw record snowfall in
the community. We had not one, but two
blizzards as well as numerous other sig-
nificant snowstorms. These storms tested
our skills, and I am happy to say all de-
partments did a phenomenal job dealing
with them. A special thanks has to be said
to the men and women of the Department
of Public Works. They worked tireless
hours making sure the streets were clear
and safe.

Many think of Newmarket as an in-
sulated small community. Actually, New-
market is one of the most densely popu-
lated communities in the State, and is part
of a greater metro area of about a quarter
of a million people (Portsmouth — Dover
— Rochester) and the Boston urban mar-
ket. While we have the privilege of ben-
efitting from many of the services that a
large community has, we also have to face
the reality that other issues arise from
this. This year, it came to the forefront
that we are not immune from the greater
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region’s drug and substance abuse prob-
lems. The Newmarket Police Department
and Fire and Rescue Department has seen
an increase in the number of calls to deal
with these problems. This year a group of
concerned citizens, local leaders, and the
Police and Fire Departments got together
to begin working on a way to address this
problem. They know that we cannot ad-
dress this issue by arresting our way out
of it. They are all working on getting peo-
ple help and to get the substances off the
streets.

We have continued the work that
the voters approved to replace our aging
infrastructure. The Water and Sewer De-
partment replaced all of the waterlines
from the water tower to the area of Pelczar
Funeral Home. These lines were almost a
century old and was in drastic need of re-
pairs. In addition, we improved electrical

service to the tower at the same time.

We replaced and upgraded the water
line on North Main Street from Bay Road
to the Town line. This will allow future
development in that area in accordance
with the Town’s Master Plan. This project
will be funded through money the Town
has been putting aside for a number of
years. We are working on this project in
conjunction with the State of New Hamp-
shire Department of Transportation.
When the water lines are finished, it will
be part of a much larger project which
will see wider bike lanes and additional
sidewalks in town from Bay Road to the
town line. The bike lanes will continue on
to Durham in the area of their town hall.

Construction is well underway on the
Waste Water Treatment Facility. The wa-
ter and sewer department, with our con-
tractor Apex Construction are continuing

Over 25 Years of Service

Over 20 Years of Service

LisaSimes ...........covviiiinn..

Over 15 Years of Service

Over 10 Years of Service

Thank you for your service:

Susandordan.......................
JeffreySimes . ................. ...,
JamesHilton. .......................
KevinCyr ...,

......... Planning and Zoning Assistant
................... Police Lieutenant
................. Recreation Director
..................... Chief of Police

Rick Malasky .......................
SeanGreig . .....ov e
Richard Beaudet.....................

...... Director of Public Works/Fire Chief
...... Water and Sewer Superintendent
.................... Police Sergeant
Police Department Administrative Assistant

JeremyHankin......................
TysonWalsh........................
Wayne Stevens. .....................
KyleTrue. . ...,
Nancy Maglaras .....................
Aimee Gigandet .....................
Joel Drelick ........................

.................... Police Sergeant
.......... Department of Public Works
...................... Police Officer
................... Police Lieutenant
........................ Dispatcher
.......... Assistant Recreation Director
......... Water and Sewer Department

DonnaDugal........................
JohnPuchlopek . ....................
Todd Gianotti .......................
CraigEastman ......................
Suelandale........................
ScottKukesh .......................
Mark Pelczar........................
Carrie Gadbois . .....................
KarenBloom........................
Samuel Heffron. .....................
DouglasPoulin . .....................

....... Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector
...... Buildings and Grounds Supervisor
................... Water and Sewer
.......... Department of Public Works
................ Finance Department
.................... Police Detective
........... Police Dispatch Supervisor
.................... Library Director
............... Buildings and Grounds
......... Water and Sewer Department
........................ IT Director

8 Town of Newmarket | 2015 Annual Report

to work on the Waste Water Treatment
Facility upgrades. We are currently on
schedule.

After many years of debate, the Ma-
cintosh Well project is moving forward as
well. This was not an easy process. I would
like to commend Sean Greig, the Water
and Sewer Superintendent for his efforts
in addressing those issues and getting this
process rolling. If all goes as planned, we
should see the well go online during the
summer of 2016.

This office in conjunction with the
Economic Development Committee have
continued to work to determine what
types of economic development is in
the best interest for the community. The
committee worked with noted economic
development strategist, John Connery to
identify parcels of land in the community
that should be redeveloped. In addition,
they forwarded recommendations for
zoning changes to the planning board to
make it a reality.

Financially, I am happy to say the
Town is on sure footing. Due to the tire-
less efforts of the Department Heads,
the Town Council and Municipal Bud-
get Committee the Town, even with the
unprecedented amount of snowfall, we
were able to finish fiscal year 2015 un-
der budget. When I first arrived here
in 2012, the undesignated fund balance
(commonly referred to as surplus) was in
trouble. We have implemented policies,
and watched spending to make sure we
meet all of the guidelines recommended
by the State and our auditors for our
fund balance. I am happy to say we do so
with flying colors.

We continue to improve communi-
cations with the public. In today’s world
of instant communication, municipali-
ties are still somewhat behind. We have
embraced the latest technology and
have established a Facebook and Twitter
(@TownofNewmrktNH) presence so we
can relay information to you instanta-
neously. In addition, we have revamped
our email newsletter and have updated
our website as well. Please visit the site at
www.newmarketnh.gov. In addition, we
implemented CodeRED, the reverse 911
system to notify residents by telephone,
cellphone, email and text of emergencies
and other events in Town. This system can
call all landlines in town with emergency
messages. Please go to the town website



he tradition of the cane was start-
Ted by the Boston Post newspaper

in 1909, when the average life
expectancy for an American man was
50.5 years and 53.8 years for a woman.
The Post made and distributed 700
walking sticks to New England towns
to be given to the oldest living mem-
ber of the community. The canes were
made in New York City out of Afri-
can ebony and capped with 14-karat
gold. Originally the cane was only to
be handed down to the oldest man;
women were made possible recipients
in 1930.

On June 3, 2015, the Town Coun-
cil presented the Boston Post Cane
to Newmarket native, Evelyn Rodier
LaBranche.

Evelyn was born on November 13,
1913 to Ovias and Amy Rodier. She
lived at 13 New Road, Newmarket,
NH. She attended St. Mary School and

Presentation of the Boston Post Cane to Evelyn Rodier LaBranche

married her husband, Terry LaBranche
of Newmarket when she was 17.

During her lifetime she worked
several years for Galant Silk Mill as
a “silk winder” and later she was em-
ployed as a sample shoe stitcher for
Sam Smith and Royce Shoe factories
in Newmarket. Upon retirement, she
worked part-time for Kent & Pelczar
Funeral Home. She has been an ac-
tive member of the local Senior Citi-
zens Club, Women’s Club, St. Mary’s
Church and the Women’s Catholic
Foresters of America.

Evelyn had two daughters, Elea-
nor who is a Sister of Holy Cross liv-
ing in Manchester, NH and Lorraine
Lapointe who lives at 9 New Road in
Newmarket, NH. She has two grand-
daughters’, Michele Butler, living in
Cahoas, NY and Lisa Parsons, living in
Tilton, NH. She has four great-grand-
children, Amy Lacasse and Andrea

Butler, Jack and Andrew Parsons. She
is a proud great-grandmother of her
fifth generation great-grandchildren
Ryan Jr. Lacasse and Emma Lacasse.

Evelyn resides at Holy Cross
Health Center where the Sisters of
Holy Cross welcome their mothers and
relatives.

and register your mobile communication
devices as well.

These are just some highlights of
projects we have been working on. There
have been so many projects, I could fill
the entire Town Report. In addition, there
are many other challenges facing this

community in the coming years. As al-
ways, I look forward to working with all
of you to address them head-on.

Finally, I thankall of you the residents
of the community for making Newmar-
ket an even better community to live and
work in. If I can ever be of any assistance

to you, please feel free to contact me at
(603) 659-3617, via email at sfournier@
newmarketnh.gov, or come by my office
in Town Hall.

Respectfully submitted,
Stephen R. Fournier, Town Administrator

Retirement — Kathy Castle

“In Retirement every day is Boss Day, and every day is Em-

15 years to the town
resource.

of Newmarket and was an invaluable

ployee Appreciation Day.” — Terri Guillemets

The year was 2000. The last original
Peanuts comic strip appeared. Ray Bourque
was traded to the Colorado Avalanche. The
fourth Harry Potter book was published.
The first crew arrived at the space station and
most importantly...it was the year where a
day after accepting the head coach position
for the NY Jets, Bill Belichick resigned...oh
yes, and Kathy Castle started working for
the Town of Newmarket.

The Town Council and Newmarket em-
ployees would like to congratulate Kathy
Castle on her retirement. Kathy dedicated

Kathy has gained time off to spend with
her family and to do the things she enjoys
with all day to do them. The Town, on the
other hand, has lost a very committed, loyal
to the core coworker, with a ready smile,
contagious laugh, and friendly manner.

Kathy’s office was the main artery to the
town office, where she touched the lives of
her colleagues and worked tirelessly for the
betterment of the town. We will miss her
pleasant demeanor, and, of course, her bot-
tomless candy basket.

We wish her the best in her retirement.
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2015 Employee Earnings

Gross Gross
Employee Name Department Job Description Wages Employee Name Department Job Description Wages
Levy, Gary Town Council | Town Council 2,125.00 Trusty, Sophie C Recreation Part Time Instructor 3,010.50
Bentley, John A Town Council | Town Council 750.00 Albee, Cameron Recreation Seasonal Recreation 78.75
Burns, Amy L Town Council Town Council 1,125.00 Baines, Morgan K Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,828.50
Carmichael, Edward C Town Council Town Council 750.00 Burke, Julianna T Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,272.81
Nazzaro, Philip J Town Council Town Council 2,250.00 Burke, Kevin J Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,541.44
Pickering, Lawrence L Town Council Town Council 1,125.00 Burleigh, Collin S Recreation Seasonal Recreation 1,170.88
Pike, Dale S Town Council | Town Council 1,875.00 Burleigh, Spencer M Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,000.62
Thompson, Amy M Town Council | Town Council 1,125.00 Camirand, Taylor V Recreation Seasonal Recreation 3,708.00
Weinstein, Toni M Town Council | Town Council 1,875.00 Cartlidge, Jordan R Recreation Seasonal Recreation 5,462.51
Wright, Daniel J Town Council | Town Council 750.00 Critchett, Krista M Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,074.00
Denmark, Patricia D Town Council | Recording Secretary 10,650.00 Denoncourt, Holly L Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,887.50
Town Droste, Hedi B Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,135.00
Castle, Kathleen A Administration | Executive Secretary 62,080.26 Eldridge, Marie R Recreation Seasonal Recreation 969.00
Chase, Wendy V X(t)j‘:vnri]nistration Executive Secretary 1,421.15 F?rraro, Gregory T Recreatfon Seasonal Recreatfon 1,173.00
Town Part Time Admin/ Fisher, Chase E Recreation Seasonal Recreation 250.00
St. Hilaire, Madeleine M | Administration | Election Official 7,577.28 Foster, Kyle L Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,341.50
Town Fowler, Erica R Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,485.00
Fournier, Stephen R Administration | Town Administrator 96,745.61 Gedansky, Natalie M Recreation Seasonal Recreation 3,578.00
Camire, Belinda A Finance Treasurer 5,000.04 Grove, Connor B Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,479.50
W&S, A/P & P/R Hoff lii, Howard W Recreation Seasonal Recreation 3,797.89
Landale, Susan A Finance Accountant 45,283.87 Jensen, William B Recreation Seasonal Recreation 1,041.75
Sheehan, Carol M Finance Staff Accountant 63,703.20 Lacasse, Alexander B Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,328.75
Pelczar, Edward A Finance Trustee Of Trust Fund 300.00 Levesque, Janelle R Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,658.50
Russell, Joyce E Finance Trustee Of Trust Fund 300.00 Macdonald, Clare G Recreation Seasonal Recreation 912.50
I ) Town Clerk/Tax Macdonald, Grace M Recreation Seasonal Recreation 600.00
Littlefield, Terri J TC/TC Collector 56,061.23 d
Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Moseley, Lauren A Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,414.00
Dugal, Donna C TC/TC Collector 51,532.14 Paquin, Evan D Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,340.94
Harvey, Judith M TC/TC Part Time Clerk 19,636.48 Pickford, Jessica J Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,517.75
Mccain, Deborah L TC/TC Part Time Clerk 24,45219 Richardson, Brooke A Recreation Seasonal Recreation 1,198.50
Maurice, Nicole E TC/TC Part Time Clerk 4,675.00 Rielly, Colleen L Recreation Seasonal Recreation 2,865.00
Allen, Sandra B TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Schutter, Alex M K Recreation Seasonal Recreation 168.44
Arquette, R. Jane TC/TC Election Official 225.00 Taylor, Therese C Recreation Seasonal Recreation 1,131.25
Bailey, Sandra L TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Teague, Katelyn A Recreation Seasonal Recreation 211.50
Beaver, Lynn A TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Wheeler, Rebecca A Recreation Seasonal Recreation 1,067.81
Bentley, Constance S TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Code Part Time Code
Edgerly, Fred E TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Hoffman, Michael Enforcement Enforcement 38,566.15
Zhe, Lisa M TC/TC Election Official 75.00 Smart, Charles A I(E:r?g)ercement Eﬁ;;rTch]n?e?l(t)de 637.50
Hawkins, Christopher D | TC/TC Moderator 225.00 Part Time Welfare
Hilton, James A Recreation Recreation Director 67,087.12 Thibodeau, Heather D Welfare Director 20,368.89
Assistant Recreation Hardy, Diane F Planning Town Planner 74,229.30
Gigandet, Aimee J Recreation Director 55,182.86 Jordan, Susan C Planning Administrative Secretary | 58,625.77
Mccarthy, Deanna B Recreation Office Manager 38,186.77 Conservation
Part Time Front Desk Frick, Susan E Commission Recording Secretary 2,411.25
Poitras, Kristen R Recreation Attendant 16,786.12 Information Systems
Pre School Play Group Poulin, Douglas E MIS Technician Director 68,983.20
Napoletano, Kristina L Recreation Instructor 8,960.09 Part Time Channel 13
Pre School Play Group Williams, Christopher D | Channel 13 Technician 22,923.41
Dotson, Christina L Recreation Instructor 2,283.00 Cyr, Kevin P Police Police Chief 97,016.00
Tilton, Kimberly A Recreation gﬂrntsztnll?osglig[rl]sgirector 25,449.39 Simes, Jeffrey M Police Lieutenant 88,205.38
Part Time Sports True, Kyle D Police Lieutenant 86,027.80
Holmes, Jean M Recreation Coordinator 2,871.00 Beaudet, Richard J Police Sergeant 66,612.55
Malsbary, Lindsey G Recreation Part Time Programer 5,533.63 Hankin, Jeremy J Police Sergeant 82,250.71
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Gross Gross
Employee Name Department Job Description Wages Employee Name Department Job Description Wages
Simes, Lisa L Police Administrative Secretary | 49,934.90 Call Firefighter/Deputy
Di Croce, Michael F Police Part Time Prosecutor 23,479.04 Barr lv, William A Fire/Rescue Chief 3170.03
Bozek, Joseph W Police Patrolman 63.848.63 Benwell, John M Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 445.00
Donnis, Jeffrey P Police Patrolman 62.604.40 Bonney, Evan T F Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter/Captain 3,275.02
; ; Call Firefighter/Assistant
D Nicholas R Pol Patrol 4 1.2
rew, icholas olice atrolman 5,961.26 Bryan, B. David Fire/Rescue | Chief 4,055.00
Jordan, Gregory A Police Patrolman 92,693.78 - —
- Full Time Firefighter/
Kukesh, Scott T Police Patrolman 57,507.23 Carroll, Andrew D Fire/Rescue Lieutenant 54,928.10
0'brien, Steven W Police Patrolman 60,032.91 Call Ambulance Rescue
Stevens, Wayne E Police Patrolman 85,831.22 Chase, Heidi W Fire/Rescue Squad 1,310.00
Wedgeworth, Zachary J | Police Patrolman M4,474.92 Call Firefighter/
. - - Ambulance Rescue
Worrick, Michael K Polfce Patrolr.nan 25,717.65 Clark, Richard D Fire/Rescue Squad 105.00
Bartlett, Karen M Police Part Time Patrolman 1,508.13 Call Firefighter/Deputy
Bertogli, Wayne A Police Part Time Patrolman 76.00 Coffey, Stephen E Fire/Rescue Chief 0.00
George, Dustin M Police Part Time Patrolman 351.00 Call Ambulance Rescue
Carragher, Nancy L Police Dispatcher 42,027.81 Daigle, Robert J Fire/Rescue Squad 2,935.00
Criss, Stephanie L Police Dispatcher 37,385.82 2a|LFi|refi9htRef/
- - mbulance Rescue
Maglaras, Nancy L Police Dispatcher 58,065.74 Delorge, Benjamin Fire/Rescue Squad 90.00
Mckinlay, Tara Police Dispatcher 39,277.58 Call Ambulance Rescue
Dispatcher/Call Demers, John Fire/Rescue Squad 2,905.00
Firefighter(Fire Call Firefi
i . ghter/
Pelczar, Mark E Police Lieutenant) 62,239.06 Ambulance Rescue
Jordan Jr, Robert E Police Part Time Dispatcher 686.80 Dodds, Tyler M Fire/Rescue Squad 14,843.75
Jordan, Savannah C Police Part Time Dispatcher 819.84 Call Ambulance Rescue
Schmidt, Annaliese R | Police Part Time Dispatcher 2,600.64 Dotson, Jason C Fire/Rescue | Squad 1,910.00
; ; ) ; Call Ambulance Rescue
Stafford, Jennifer C Police Part Time Dispatcher 22519 .
- - - p - - Dube Jr, Leonard A Fire/Rescue Squad 790.00
Malasky, Rick M Public Works DPW Director/Fire Chief 98,603.46 Call Firefiahter/
White, Janet E Public Works | Administrative Secretary |  40,768.53 Ambulanc% Rescue
Hamel, Gerard L Public Works | Highway Foreman 52,519.36 Ferguson, Ryan G Fire/Rescue Squad 1,405.00
Baillargeon, Roger E Public Works Truck Driver/Laborer 45,910.13 Call Firefighter/
- : : Ambulance Rescue
E?stman, Cr.alg A Publfc Works Truck Drfver/Laborer 49,443.08 Galligan, Catherine M Fire/Rescue Squad 15.00
Gibney, Cecil J Public Works Truck Driver/Laborer 47,723.43 Greenbaum, Zachary A | Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 20.00
Walsh, Tyson J Public Works Truck Driver/Laborer 46,590.45 —
Call Firefighter/
Whitney, Thomas E Public Works Truck Driver/Laborer 8,869.75 Ambulance Rescue
Young, Michael C Public Works | Truck Driver/Laborer 20,478.95 Hamilton, Douglas S Fire/Rescue | Squad/Captain 10,571.50
Building & Building&Grounds _ _ Call Ambulance Rescue
Puchlopek, John J Grounds Supervisor 56,082.48 Hammond, Elizabeth W | Fire/Rescue Squad 5,726.50
Building & Building&Grounds _ Call Firefighter/
Bloom, Karen A Grounds Laborer 46,763.67 Harclerode, Jeremy J Fire/Rescue Lieutenant 430.02
Cormier, Charles R Public Works | Seasonal Laborer 16,417.00 Call Ambulance Rescue
Building & Squad/Emergency Mgt
Caracciolo, Frank S Grounds Seasonal Laborer 16,922.75 Jarosz, Candice M Fire/Rescue Coordinator 1,610.00
Building & Call Ambulance Rescue
Robshaw, Jeffrey C Grounds Seasonal Laborer 17,338.75 Jarosz, Ryan K Fire/Rescue Squad 180.00
Building & Call Firefighter/
Simes, Michael W Grounds Seasonal Laborer 6,808.75 Kao, Kenneth K Fire/Rescue Lieutenant 3,947.56
Building & Call Firefighter/
) ) Ambulance Rescue
Walker, Ronald P Grounds Part Time Custodian 3,375.00 Keefe, Michael J Fire/Rescue Squad 315.00
Letourneau-Desmond, | Building & Call Firefi
) ) ghter/
Tammy M Grounds Part Time Custodian 16,538.82 Kelley, Matthew P Fire/Rescue | Lieutenant 9,520.06
Building & Call Ambulance Rescue
Gazda, Robert J Grounds Clock Winder 1,800.00 Lamb, Sarah M Fire/Rescue Squad 975.00
Davey, Gary M Solid Waste Part Time Attendant 18,465.30 Full Time Firefighter/
_ _ Call Ambulance Rescue Lemoine, Gary L Fire/Rescue Ambulance Rescue 52,505.39
Abrahams, Marisa N Fire/Rescue Squad 670.00 Lewis, Russell D Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 115.00
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2015 Employee Earnings (continued)

Gross Gross
Employee Name Department Job Description Wages Employee Name Department Job Description Wages
Call Firefighter/ Taylor, Christopher S Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 90.00
Ambulance Rescue
N ; ) Call Ambulance Rescue
L|tt|ef|e|d, T|m0thy R Fire/Rescue Squad 1,345.00 Thompson, Garrett S Fire/Rescue Squad 8,152.50
Maclellan, Michael P Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 3,015.00 Part Time Administrative
Call Ambulance Rescue Trafton, Margaret E Fire/Rescue Secretary 16,116.70
Macoul, Joseph A Fire/Rescue | Squad 53000 wiswell, John M Fire/Rescue | Chaplin 100.00
Call Ambulance Rescue
o ) ) Water/Waste
Maguire li, Kevin W Fire/Rescue Squad 75.00 Greig, Sean T Water Superintendant 76,829.38
Marzolf, Christopher M | Fire/Rescue Call Firefighter 640.00 Water/Waste
Call Ambulance Rescue Drelick, Joel D Water Systems Technician 51,190.44
Nadeau, Kimberly M Fire/Rescue Squad 250.00 Trottier, Bernard M Water Operator 1 42,757.51
Call Firefighter/ Gianotti, Todd M Waste Water | Maintenance Supervisor | 53,518.63
Ambulance Rescue
Ovel, Donald A Fire/Rescue Squad 375.00 Heffron, Samuel T Waste Water | Plant Operator/Lab Tech 55,172.45
Call Ambulance Rescue Gadbois, Carrie R Library Library Director 52,331.93
Page, William R Fire/Rescue Squad/Lieutenant 2,136.72 Frechette, Jane W Library Assistant Librarian 32,990.58
_ _ Call Ambulance Rescue Arbogast, Ellisa R Library Part Time Library Aide 9,571.68
Pelczar, Michael A Fire/Rescue Squad 2,085.00 Benson, Nicole M Library Part Time Library Aide 75.00
Call Firefigfiter/ Booth, Christopher B | Library Part Time Library Aide 225.00
Ambulance Rescue ! .
Pidgeon, Thomas A Fire/Rescue Squad 5,857.50 Croft, Lara L Library Part Time Library Aide 3,226.77
Call Firefighter/ Cunningham, Beverly Library Part Time Library Aide 696.00
Schermock Witiam L | Fire/R /S\mblij'ance Rescue 22500 Danko, Phyllis L Library Part Time Library Aide 1,800.00
Sch,emec ’ B','amJ Ffre/Resc”e qul:aF' — P Donovan, C. Isabel Library Part Time Library Aide | 15,735.72
chipmann, Brian ire/Rescue Ca” A|reblg| er - S Finnegan, Shawn A Library Part Time Library Aide 13,536.00
all Ambulance Rescue - - - - -
Smart, Charles J Fire/Rescue Squad 815.00 Hanson, Jessica B Library Part Time Library Aide 540.00
Call Firefighter/ Pawnell, Maureen E Library Part Time Library Aide 16,597.70
Smith, Brian T Fire/Rescue Lieutenant 2,570.08 Placy, Jessica A Library Part Time Library Aide 504.00
Call Firefighter/ Plante, Amanda A Library Part Time Library Aide 238.68
Ambulance Rescue Rehnborg, Barbara C | Librar Part Time Library Aide 48.00
Stein, Dale R Fire/Rescue | Squad 2,060.00 9 Y y '
Call Ambulance Rescue
Tardif, Dale R Fire/Rescue Squad 2,095.00
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Capital Asset Listing

As of June 30, 2015
Asset No. Description Location Code In Service Date Category Classification Purchase Price
66 Land,Tax Map Parcel U1-16 UNKNOWN 1/9/1924 LAND WATER DEPT $100.00
67 Land, Tax Map parcel &1-45 PACKERSFAL 1/9/1924 LAND WATER DEPT $100.00
68 Land, Tax map parcel U1-46 PACKERSFAL 1/9/1924 LAND WATER DEPT $100.00
69 Land, Tax Map Parcel U5-57T FOLSOM DR 1/9/1924 LAND WATER DEPT $100.00
70 WATER TREATMENT PLANT#1 PACKERSFAL 1/9/1924 BLDG&IMPRV WATER BUIL $-
73 Shed PACKERSFAL 1/9/1924 BLDG&IMPRV WATER BUIL $-
168 LAND-22 BAY ROAD-PUMP STATION BAY RD #22 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER-PUMP $20,000.00
169 LAND-CREIGHTON ST-PUMP STATION END CREIGH 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER-PUMP $100,000.00
170 LAND-CEDAR ST-PUMP STATION CEDAR ST 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER-PUMP $35,000.00
171 LAND-SALMON ST-PUMP STATION SALMON ST 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER-PUMP $35,000.00
172 LAND-PACKERS FALLS-PUMP STATIO PACKERSFAL 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER-PUMP $-
173 LAND-SEWER PLANT YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER PLAN $75,000.00
174 LAND-SEWER PLANT YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1924 LAND SEWER PLAN $75,000.00
175 PUMP STATION BAY RD 1/9/1924 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PUMP $50,000.00
258 19 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
259 21 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
260 23 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
261 25 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
262 27 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
263 29 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
264 31 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
265 2 PEMBROKE DRIVE VACANT LAND PEMBROKE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
266 PEMBROKE DRIVE VACANT LAND PEMBROKE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
267 34 PEMBROKE DRIVE VACANT LAND PEMBROKE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
268 32 LITA LAND VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
269 30 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
270 28 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
271 26 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
272 24 LITA LAND VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
273 22 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
274 20 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
275 2 BRANDON LANE VACANT LAND BRANDON LN 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
276 PEMBROKE DRIVE PEMBROKE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
277 18 LITA LANE VACANT LAND LITA LANE 1/9/1924 LAND TOWN LAND $-
78 WATER LINE BAY RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
79 WATER LINE BAY RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
82 WATER LINE BEECH ST. 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
90 WATER LINE CEDAR 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
91 WATER LINE CENTRAL 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
92 WATER LINE CHAPEL 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
94 WATER LINE CREIGHTON 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
102 WATER LINE EXETER RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
103 WATER LINE EXETER RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
107 WATER LINE GERRY AVE 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
112 WATER LINE GRAPE ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
115 WATER LINE HAM ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
124 WATER LINE LAMPREY ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
128 WATER LINE MAIN (108) 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
129 WATER LINE MAPLE AVE 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
134 WATER LINE MT.PLEASAN 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
135 WATER LINE NEW ROAD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
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Capital Asset Listing (continueq)

Asset No. Description Location Code In Service Date Category Classification Purchase Price
138 WATER LINE NICHOLS LP 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
139 WATER LINE N.MAIN(108 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
141 WATER LINE OLD RT 108 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
142 WATER LINE PACKERSFAL 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
146 WATER LINE PRESCOTT 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
155 WATER LINE SHORT ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
158 WATER LINE S.MAIN 152 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
159 WATER LINE SOUTH ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
160 WATER LINE SPRING ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
163 WATER LINE WATER ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
185 SEWER LINE BAY RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
186 SEWER LINE BEECH ST. 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
191 SEWER LINE CEDAR ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
192 SEWER LINE CENTRAL 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
193 SEWER LINE CHAPEL 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
194 SEWER LINE CHURCH ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
202 SEWER LINE EXETER RD 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
203 SEWER LINE EXETER ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
204 SEWER LINE EXETER-CRE 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
206 SEWER LINE GERRY AVE 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
208 SEWER LINE GRAPE ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
211 SEWER LINE HAM ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
220 SEWER LINE LNCLN/ELM 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
224 SEWER LINE MAPLE ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
227 SEWER LINE MT.PLEASAN 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
230 SEWER LINE N.MAIN 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
236 SEWER LINE PRESCOTT 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
242 SEWER LINE SANBORN 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
243 SEWER LINE SHORT ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
247 SEWER LINE SOUTH ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
248 SEWER LINE SPRING ST 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
249 SEWER LINE TASKERS LN 1/9/1940 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
255 HERON POINT SANCTUARY TOWN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
256 22 BAY RD BAY RD #22 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
282 GRAPE VINE PRKGLOT(GRNT&DOE FA GRAPE VINE 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
284 WADLEIGH FALLS RD(RTE 152 PARC WADLEIGH 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
285 481 WADLEIGH FALLS(RTE 152 PAR WADLEIGH 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
286 OFF WADLEIGH FALLS RD(RTE 152) WADLGH 152 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
287 LEE TOWN LINE UNKNOWN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
288 P.W.GARAGE/426 WADLEIGH FALLS WADLEIGH 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
289 PARK AREA UNKNOWN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
290 4 PACKERS FALLS RD PARK AREA PACKERSFAL 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
292 MASTIN DR/FOLLET'S BROOK EDUC. MASTIN DR 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
296 BEECH ST EXTENSION BEECH ST. 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
297 CEDAR ST CEDAR 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
298 CEDAR ST CEDAR 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
299 PISCASSIC ST PISCASSIC 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
300 SOUTH & CHURCH ST SOUTH&CHUR 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
303 6 SIMONS LN SIMMONS LN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
304 GRANITE ST-STONE SCHOOLHOUSE GRANITE 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
309 LITTLE LEAGUE PARK UNKNOWN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
311 SILVER OF LAND OFF NEW RD. NEW ROAD 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
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Asset No. Description Location Code In Service Date Category Classification Purchase Price

315 MAIN ST MAIN ST. 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
318 WATERFRONT PARK UNKNOWN 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
319 LAND ON WEST OF RAILROAD RAILROAD 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
320 191 MAIN ST. MAIN ST. 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
322 MAPLECREST ST MAPLECREST 1/9/1940 LAND TOWN LAND $-
100 WATER LINE ELM ST 7/1/1940 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
294 TROTTER PARK/CAROLYN DR CAROLYN 1/9/1950 LAND TOWN LAND $1.00
295 CAROLYN DR CAROLYN 1/9/1950 LAND TOWN LAND $1.00
131 WATER LINE MAPLECREST 1/9/1952 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $12,467.52
225 SEWER LINE MAPLECREST 1/9/1952 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $16,623.36
143 WATER LINE PACKERSFAL 1/9/1957 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $16,524.00
154 WATER LINE SEAWALL 1/9/1957 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $3,304.80
96 WATER LINE DAME RD 1/9/1959 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $8,554.00
195 SEWER LINE DAME RD 1/9/1959 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $6,386.69
111 WATER LINE GRANT ROAD 1/9/1965 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $18,522.00
313 FIRE STATION YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1968 LAND TOWN LAND $-
95 WATER LINE CREIGHTON 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $21,513.60
162 WATER LINE WADLGH 152 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $101,113.92
207 SEWER LINE GRANT ROAD 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $12,621.31
228 SEWER LINE NEW ROAD 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
232 SEWER LINE PACKERSFAL 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $48,190.46
235 SEWER LINE POND ST 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $4,589.57
238 SEWER LINE RIVER FRON 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $11,473.92
250 SEWER LINE WADLEIGH 1/9/1969 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $5,736.96
144 WATER LINE PINE ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $6,836.40
145 WATER LINE PISCASSIC 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $20,509.20
151 WATER LINE RIVER ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $6,836.40
152 WATER LINE SALMON ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $18,230.40
233 SEWER LINE PINE ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $6,836.40
234 SEWER LINE PISCASSIC 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $15,799.68
239 SEWER LINE RIVER ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $9,722.88
241 SEWER LINE SALMON ST 1/9/1970 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $15,799.68
108 WATER LINE GORDON DR 1/9/1971 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $21,393.72
125 WATER LINE LANG'S LN 1/9/1971 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $23,770.80
147 WATER LINE PULASKI 1/9/1971 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $9,508.32
196 SEWER LINE DAME-PULSA 1/9/1971 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $10,142.21
85 WATER LINE BIRCH DR 1/19/1971 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $40,410.36
76 Seawall Wells WADLEIGH 1/9/1972 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $1,000,000.00
136 WATER LINE NEW ROAD 1/9/1974 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $23,155.20
109 WATER LINE GORDON 1/9/1975 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $37,908.00
157 WATER LINE S.MAIN 152 1/9/1976 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $26,732.16
156 WATER LINE SIMMONS LN 1/9/1977 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $14,225.76
244 SEWER LINE SIMMONS LN 1/9/1977 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $11,380.61
245 SEWER LINE S.MAIN 1/9/1977 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $60,696.58
83 WATER LINE BEECH ST. 1/9/1978 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $30,637.44
113 WATER LINE GREAT HILL 1/9/1979 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $63,909.00
114 WATER LINE GREAT HILL 1/9/1979 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $68,169.60
209 SEWER LINE GREAT HILL 1/9/1979 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $43,174.08
210 SEWER-LINE GREATHL-EX 1/9/1979 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $56,808.00
74 Water Tank FOLSOM DR 1/9/1980 BLDG&IMPRV WATER BUIL $-
106 WATER LINE FORBES 1/9/1980 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $43,526.16
127 WATER LINE LITA LANE 1/9/1980 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $48,362.40
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Capital Asset Listing (continueq)

Asset No. Description Location Code In Service Date Category Classification Purchase Price
149 WATER LINE RIVER BEND 1/9/1980 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $14,508.72
222 SEWER LINE LITA-HERSE 1/9/1980 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $41,269.25
237 SEWER LINE RIVER BEND 1/9/1980 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $36,110.59
118 WATER LINE HERSEY LN 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $42,707.52
140 WATER LINE 0AK KNOLL 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $10,676.88
150 WATER LINE RIVER BEND 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $96,091.92
164 WATER LINE WO00DS DR 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $48,045.96
231 SEWER LINE 0AK KNOLL 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $45,554.69
252 SEWER LINE WO00DS DR 1/9/1981 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $88,262.21
130 WATER LINE MAPLE AVE 1/9/1982 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $39,659.76
81 WATER LINE BEECH ST. 1/9/1983 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $5,848.20
88 WATER LINE CANDACE 1/9/1983 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $25,342.20
105 WATER LINE FOLSOM DR 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $115,835.40
201 SEWER LINE ELM ST 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $113,803.20
205 SEWER LINE FOLSOM DR 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $94,294.08
223 SEWER LINE MAIN (108) 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $48,772.80
240 SEWER LINE RR INT EXE 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $39,018.24
246 SEWER LINE S.MAIN-CRE 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $35,766.72
251 SEWER LINE WATER ST 1/9/1984 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $9,754.56
77 Bennett Wells WADLEIGH 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $1,500,000.00
133 WATER LINE MOONLIGHT 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $18,941.04
187 SEWER LINE BNET-MOON 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $43,774.85
200 SEWER LINE ELDER ST 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $13,469.18
218 SEWER LINE LAFAYETTE 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $10,101.89
219 SEWER LINE LAMPREY ST 1/9/1985 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $67,345.92
36 1993 Chevy 1500 YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1986 MACH&EQUIP SEWER $-
153 WATER LINE SANDY LANE 1/9/1986 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $25,742.88
161 WATER LINE STANORM DR 1/9/1986 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $19,307.16
80 WATER LINE BAY RD 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $40,026.96
97 WATER LINE DURELL DR 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $66,711.60
98 WATER LINE DURELL DR 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $66,711.60
110 WATER LINE GRANT ROAD 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $13,342.32
117 WATER LINE HERSEY LN 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $10,006.74
119 WATER LINE HUCKINS DR 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $73,382.76
197 SEWER LINE DAME-SANBO 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $35,579.52
198 SEWER LINE DURELL DR 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $135,202.18
212 SEWER LINE HERSEY LN 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $99,622.66
213 SEWER LINE HUCKINS DR 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $73,382.76
216 SEWER LINE LADYSLPR#1 1/9/1987 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $67,601.09
132 WATER LINE MASTIN DR 1/9/1988 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $111,093.12
226 SEWER LINE MASTIN DR 1/9/1988 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $103,686.91
4l WATER TREATMENT PLANT#2 PACKERSFAL 1/9/1989 BLDG&IMPRV WATER BUIL $2,300,000.00
180 SEWER PLANT YOUNGS LAN 1/9/1990 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PLNT $1,800,000.00

4 Town Hall MAIN ST 1/9/1991 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $500,000.00
84 WATER LINE BENNETT WA 1/9/1992 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $156,506.04
148 WATER LINE RAILROAD 1/9/1993 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $25,440.48

5 Police Station EXETER #70 1/9/1994 BLDG&IMPRV POLICE $500,000.00

6 Community Center TERRACE DR 1/9/1994 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $500,000.00
13 Phone System-PD EXETER #70 1/9/1994 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $10,000.00
321 POLICE STATION ROUTE 108 ROUTE 108 1/9/1994 LAND TOWN LAND $25,000.00
55 Roads - from CIP page 58 TOWN 1/9/1995 INFRASTRUC TOWN ROADS $45,000,000.00
56 Bridges-Twin Rivers TOWN 1/9/1995 INFRASTRUC TWN BRIDGE $5,000,000.00
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116 WATER LINE HERSEY LN 1/9/1995 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $9,428.40
40 1997 Ford F350 1Ton YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1997 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $35,000.00
99 WATER LINE EDWIN LN 1/9/1998 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $57,412.80
121 WATER LINE KIMBALL LN 1/9/1998 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $95,688.00
199 SEWER LINE EDWIN LN 1/9/1998 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $30,620.16
215 SEWER LINE KIMBALL LN 1/9/1998 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $102,067.20
347 1999 Johnson 3000 Sweeper YOUNG'S LN 1/1/1999 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $100,000.00
12 Phone System MAIN ST 1/9/1999 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $10,000.00
20 1999 Freightliner Pumper YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1999 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $160,000.00
41 1999 International 1TH Dump 2554 YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1999 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $75,000.00
48 1999 Dodge Dakota YOUNG'S LN 1/9/1999 MACH&EQUIP SEWER $-
87 WATER LINE BRIALLIA 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $127,132.20
89 WATER LINE CAROLYN 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $32,598.00
120 WATER LINE KIELTY DR 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $17,602.92
189 SEWER LINE BRIALLIA 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $127,132.20
190 SEWER LINE CAROLYN 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $32,598.00
214 SEWER LINE KIELTY DR 1/9/1999 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $17,602.92
257 3 BRANDON LANE VACANT LAND BRANDON LN 1/9/1999 LAND TOWN LAND $16,000.00
302 RAILROAD ST RAILROAD 1/9/1999 LAND TOWN LAND $20,000.00
283 DUMP/345 ASH SWAMP RD ASH SWAMP 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
293 RIVERSIDE CEMETERY UNKNOWN 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
301 BALL PARK UNKNOWN 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
305 MAIN ST. LIBRARY MAIN ST. 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
306 PARKING LOT ELM ST ELM ST 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
307 PRKNG LOT ELM/MAIN ST @LIBRARY ELM/MAIN 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
310 OLD TOWN HALL MAIN ST. 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
314 MAIN ST-OLD FIRE STATION MAIN ST. 1/9/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $-
122 WATER LINE LADYSLIPPR 1/15/2000 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $225,739.08
14 Other Equipment MAIN ST 2/15/2000 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $1,000,000.00
123 WATER LINE LADYSLIPPR 2/15/2000 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $131,400.36
177 PUMP STATION CEDAR ST 2/15/2000 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PUMP $75,000.00
178 PUMP STATION PACKERSFAL 2/15/2000 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PUMP $75,000.00
179 PUMP STATION SALMON ST 2/15/2000 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PUMP $50,000.00
217 SEWER LINE LADYSLPR#2 2/15/2000 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $-
312 TOWN HALL EXPANSION LOT MAIN ST 2/15/2000 LAND TOWN LAND $75,000.00
72 Water Treatment Plant #3 PACKERSFAL 2/15/2001 BLDG&IMPRV WATER BUIL $100,000.00
86 WATER LINE BOARDMAN 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $20,787.84
101 WATER LINE ELM ST 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $37,418.11
126 WATER LINE LNCLN/WASH 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $31,181.76
137 WATER LINE NICHOLS AV 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $51,969.60
188 SEWER LINE BOARDMAN 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $22,173.70
221 SEWER LINE LNCLN/WASH 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $31,181.76
229 SEWER LINE NICHOLS AV 2/15/2001 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $44,347.39
37 2003 Ford F450 YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2002 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $36,000.00
291 FOLLETTS BROOK(FRMR LEARY PRCL MASTIN DR 2/15/2002 LAND TOWN LAND $30,000.00
18 Life Pac #1 YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2003 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $-
19 Life Pac #2 YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2003 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $-
23 2003 Ford 350(Forestry) YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2003 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $60,000.00
39 2003 Chevy 2500 w/plow YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2003 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $28,500.00
176 PUMP STATION CREIGHTON 2/15/2003 BLDG&IMPRV SEWER PUMP $1,600,000.00
279 WADLEIGH FALLS RD-LOISELLE PRO WADLEIGH 2/15/2003 LAND TOWN LAND $275,000.00
280 ROUTE 152/PISCASSIC RIVER ROUTE 152 2/15/2003 LAND TOWN LAND $-
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281 GRAPE VINE HILL(ALSO FISK PARC GRAPE VINE 2/15/2003 LAND TOWN LAND $1,200,000.00
316 4 YOUNG'S LAND YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2003 LAND TOWN LAND $850,000.00
317 6 YOUNG'S LAND YOUNGS LAN 2/15/2003 LAND TOWN LAND $-
349 2004 Ford F-250 SD YOUNG'S LN 1/1/2004 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $24,000.00
350 2004 Ford F250 P/U YOUNG'S LN 1/1/2004 MACH&EQUIP TWN HALLV $24,000.00
29 2004 Ford Crown Vic Fire EXETER #70 2/15/2004 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $27,000.00
104 WATER LINE EXETER RD 2/15/2004 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
165 INFRASTUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TOWN 2/15/2004 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $449,827.00
253 2004 INFRUSTRUCTURE IMPROV TOWN 2/15/2004 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $286,579.00
278 TIF DSTRCT LND-OFF NEW RD/RR NEW ROAD 2/15/2004 LAND TOWN LAND $300,000.00
351 2004 International Vac-Con YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2004 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $203,912.00
352 2005 Crown Victorian EXETER #70 1/1/2005 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $26,000.00
353 2005 Ford 4X2 Truck F200 YOUNG'S LN 1/1/2005 MACH&EQUIP WATER $20,000.00

1 Sufflex Property MAIN ST. 2/15/2005 LAND TOWN LAND $850,000.00

2 Hilton Easement GRANT ROAD 2/15/2005 LAND TOWN LAND $449,000.00

3 Rousseau Property PACKERSFAL 2/15/2005 LAND TOWN LAND $316,497.00

8 Fire/Rescue Building YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2005 BLDG&IMPRV FIRE/RESCU $1,941,980.00
31 2005 Ford LTD Crown Vic EXETER #70 2/15/2005 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $28,907.00
34 2005 Freightliner Dump Truck #1 YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2005 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $92,000.00
35 2005 Freightliner Dump Truck#2 YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2005 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $92,000.00
9 Cemetery Fence CEMETERY 2/15/2006 BLDG&IMPRV DPW $60,000.00
10 Telecommunication YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2006 BLDG&IMPRV DPW $39,766.00
1 Fiber Network MAIN ST 2/15/2006 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $125,000.00
52 2006 Spartan Tanker YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2006 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $324,375.00
53 2006 Ford Ecoline YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2006 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $125,000.00
57 Paving TOWN 2/15/2006 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $303,021.00
62 Public works & Fire Dept. Comp YOUNG'S LN 2/15/2006 BLDG&IMPRV PW&FIREDEP $-
166 INFRASTUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TOWN 2/15/2006 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $174,311.00
167 INFRASTUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TOWN 2/15/2006 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $32,765.00
254 PHASE 1 MAIN STREET MAIN ST. 2/15/2006 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $31,298.00
354 2006 John Deere Loader 544J YOUNG'S LN 7/18/2006 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $78,408.00
328 2007 CROWN VICTORIAN EXETER #70 7/12/2007 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $38,256.00
3 Heart Start Defibrillator BO7F YOUNG'S LN 7/26/2007 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $1,364.40
342 HeartStart Defibrillator 01174 YOUNG'S LN 7/26/2007 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $1,364.40
343 HeartStart Defibrillator 01177 YOUNG'S LN 7/26/2007 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $1,364.40
344 HeartStart Defibrillator 01523 YOUNG'S LN 7/26/2007 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $1,364.40
345 HeartStart Defibrillator 01553 YOUNG'S LN 7/26/2007 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $1,364.40
368 2008Ford F450 Pickupw/Plow Eqp YOUNG'S LN 11/2/2007 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $51,218.00
326 2008 Freightliner M2 106V YOUNGS LAN 11/20/2007 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $118,658.00
327 2008 FORD ALLSTAR TERRACE DR 12/6/2007 MACH&EQUIP REC.DEPT. $49,888.00
340 2008 Lifepack YOUNG'S LN 1/23/2008 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $20,053.00
93 WATER LINE CHAPEL 6/17/2008 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $-
336 PRESCOTT ST 1 PRESCOTT 8/8/2008 LAND TOWN LAND $100,291.42
378 Electronic Message Center Sign MAIN ST 9/12/2008 MACH&EQUIP OTHER EQUI $10,543.00
362 Thermal Imager w/Powerhouse YOUNG'S LN 10/10/2008 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $14,797.00
363 Power Pro Ambulance Cot YOUNG'S LN 10/31/2008 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $11,714.87
330 Portable Changeable Sign #1 YOUNG'S LN 12/17/2008 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $16,000.00
331 Portable Changeable Sign #2 YOUNG'S LN 12/17/2008 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $16,000.00
339 356 WADLEIGH FALLS ROAD WADLGH 356 12/18/2008 LAND TOWN LAND $230,615.00
329 Leaf Vac YOUNG'S LN 12/29/2008 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,759.10
361 Community Center Roof TERRACE DR 1/12/2009 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $25,000.00
332 2009 Ford Taurus EXETER #70 2/4/2009 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $24,287.61
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356 1930 Ford Model A YOUNG'S LN 5/13/2009 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $-
358 1986 GMC Sierra YOUNG'S LN 5/13/2009 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $-
359 1991 Chevrolet 3500 YOUNG'S LN 5/13/2009 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $-
360 1993 Mac Rolloff Truck YOUNG'S LN 5/13/2009 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $-
364 2009 Ford F250 Pickup YOUNG'S LN 6/30/2009 MACH&EQUIP SEWER $11,727.00
365 2009 Ford F250 Pickup YOUNG'S LN 6/30/2009 MACH&EQUIP WATER $11,727.00
366 JOHN DEERE MOWER X320 NEW ROAD 6/30/2009 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $3,771.00
381 New Water Tank & Upgrade Water EXETER RD 6/30/2009 CIP WATER-CIP $15,588.64
367 GENERATOR KOHLER DODGE MOTOR FOLSOM DR 9/11/2009 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $17,200.00
425 HP ML370R Server EXETER ST 9/11/2009 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $10,760.22
424 War Memorial Bandstand Renov. ROUTE 108 9/16/2009 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $5,804.24
391 TRACKLESS MT6 TRACTOR 2010 YOUNG'S LN 12/21/2009 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $139,750.00
411 2000 Ford Econoline Van TERRACE 2 3/29/2010 MACH&EQUIP REC.DEPT. $2,500.00
392 2009 Quint Ladder Fire Truck YOUNG'S LN 5/24/2010 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $465,905.00
423 Ricoh Aficio Copier EXETER ST 5/26/2010 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $7,397.00
393 2001 GEM TUCK Electric Vehicle TERRACE 2 6/21/2010 MACH&EQUIP REC.DEPT. $2,500.00
397 2009 Ford E-450 Ambulance NEW ROAD 6/21/2010 MACH&EQUIP FIRE DEPAR $150,718.00
395 Riverwalk Complete RIVER FRON 6/30/2010 LAND TOWN LAND $143,991.11
398 Paving 2010 TOWN 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $279,109.37
410 Wastewater Treatment Fac 2010 PACKERSFAL 6/30/2010 CIP SEWER-CIP $51,095.21
417 New Water Tnk&Upgade Water EXETER RD 6/30/2010 CIP WATER-CIP $36,774.91
426 Arbor Park Improvements ROUTE 108 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC LAND IMPRV $6,999.86
436 Open Space UNKNOWN 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC BLDGS&GRND $333,826.00
437 Waterfront CDBG WATERFRONT 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC BLDGS&GRND $75,743.00
438 33 MAIN ST PROJECT-SEWER MAIN ST. 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $9,427.00
439 33 MAIN ST PROJECT-WATER MAIN ST. 6/30/2010 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $67,349.00
429 2010 Ford Crown Victoria EXETER ST 7/8/2010 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $36,729.70
452 GPS Pathfinder YOUNGS LAN 8/27/2010 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,084.50
453 GPS Pathfinder YOUNGS LAN 8/27/2010 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,084.50
450 Kohler Gnrtr Great Hill WtrTwr EXETER #70 9/2/2010 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $5,900.00
430 Mobile Office ASH SWAMP 11/1/2010 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $3,984.15
451 Ambulance Cot YOUNGS LAN 11/16/2010 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $12,811.50
440 Equature Recorder 36 Channels EXETER #70 6/30/2011 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $15,850.00
441 Paving 2011 TOWN 6/30/2011 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $279,480.13
444 Cpl R.F.White Memorial Improv. BAY&N.MAIN 6/30/2011 INFRASTRUC LAND IMPRV $1,233.00
445 I NET MAINT & UPGRADE TOWN 6/30/2011 MACH&EQUIP OTHER EQUI $17,864.00
447 Underground Utility Piping TOWN 6/30/2011 INFRASTRUC WATER-CIP $41,471.27
470 Sunrise Ctr. Repairs TERRACE 2 6/30/2011 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $59,310.00
493 Wastewater Treatment Fac.2011 PACKERSFAL 6/30/2011 CIP SEWER-CIP $53,307.64
496 New Wtr Tnk&Upgrade Wtr 2011 EXETER RD 6/30/2011 Clp WTR - CIP $2,836.56
449 Fence/Nets/Padding Rec Fields TERRACE 2 711/2011 MACH&EQUIP OTHER EQUI $13,803.00
482 HMI SCADA SOFTWARE PACKERSFAL 7117/2011 MACH&EQUIP WATER EQP $11,450.00
474 COUNCIL LAPTOP #1 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
475 COUNCIL LAPTOP #2 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
476 COUNCIL LAPTOP #3 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
477 COUNCIL LAPTOP #4 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
478 COUNCIL LAPTOP #5 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
479 COUNCIL LAPTOP #6 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
480 COUNCIL LAPTOP #7 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
481 COUNCIL LAPTOP #8 MAIN ST 11/10/2011 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $507.60
484 2012 FORD EXPEDITION EXETER ST 1/9/2012 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $37,736.97
483 UPGRADE TOWNS COMM NETWORK MAIN ST 2/15/2012 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $14,474.51
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485 2012 FORD F150 PU YOUNG'S LN 5/14/2012 MACH&EQUIP TWN HALLV $15,795.00
486 Server HP DL380G7 Accounting NEW ROAD 6/5/2012 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,535.24
487 Server HP DL380G7 Recreation NEW ROAD 6/5/2012 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,535.24
489 Paving 2012 TOWN 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $191,641.42
490 Undrgrnd Utility Piping 11/12 TOWN 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER-CIP $8,855.12
492 Dugout Improvements TERRACE 2 6/30/2012 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $22,853.93
494 Wastewater Treatment Fac.2012 PACKERSFAL 6/30/2012 CIP SEWER-CIP $14,197.15
495 Man Hole Repairs TOWN 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $30,491.00
497 New Witr Tnk&Upgrade Wtr 2012 EXETER RD 6/30/2012 CIP WTR - CIP $4,002.37
498 New Vlig 09-10 Prj. Swr Beech BEECH ST. 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $236,403.35
499 New Vllg 09-10 Prj. Wtr Beech BEECH ST. 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $339,992.51
500 NewVllg 09-10 Rdwy/Swk Beech BEECH ST. 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $3,144.06
501 New Vilg 09-10 Prj. Swr Cedar CEDAR ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $315,842.53
502 New Viig 09-10 Prj. Wtr Cedar CEDAR ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $454,240.99
503 NewVllg 09-10 Rdwy/Sdwk Cedar CEDAR ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $4,200.57
504 New Viig 09-10 Prj. Swr Elder ELDER ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $74,494.17
505 New Vllg 09-10 Prj. Wtr Elder ELDER ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $107,136.62
506 NewVllg 09-10 Rdwy/Sdwk Elder ELDER ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $990.74
507 New Vllg 09-10 Prj. Swr Forrest FORREST ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $82,909.23
508 New Vllg 09-10 Prj. Wtr Forrest FORREST ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $119,046.60
509 NewVllg 09-10 Rdwy/Sdwk Forrest FORREST ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $1,096.82
510 New Vllg 09-10 Prj. Swr Grape GRAPE ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC SEWER INFR $88,372.09
511 New Viig 09-10 Prj. Wtr Grape GRAPE ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC WATER INFR $127,095.71
512 NewVllg 09-10 Rdwy/Sdwk Grape GRAPE ST 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $1,175.31
514 Black Bear Bus. Park, TIF MAIN ST. 6/30/2012 LAND TOWN LAND $811,811.84
530 WATERFRONT MAIN (108) 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC BLDGS&GRND $629,526.00
531 MAIN ST ENHANCEMENT MAIN ST. 6/30/2012 INFRASTRUC LAND IMPRV $9,013,680.00
488 2013 International 7400 DmpTrc YOUNG'S LN 7/11/2012 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $137,800.00
545 SERVER LASERFICHE/ASSESSING NEW ROAD 10/31/2012 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $4,440.33
534 LIVE STREAMING DIGITAL MEDIA MAIN ST 11/9/2012 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $3,575.00
541 Carpet at Library MAIN ST. 12/11/2012 BLDG&IMPRV LIBRARY $30,915.00
533 2011 CROWN VICTORIAN FORD EXETER #70 1/15/2013 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $39,059.34
532 FORBES RD HAM PARCEL PRTSMTH AV 5/1/2013 LAND TOWN LAND $-
535 Undrgrnd Utility Piping 12/13 NEW ROAD 6/30/2013 INFRASTRUC WATER-CIP $14,648.27
536 Wastewater Treatment Fac.2013 PACKERSFAL 6/30/2013 CIP SEWER-CIP $18,394.53
537 New Wir Tnk&Upgrade Wir 2013 EXETER RD 6/30/2013 CIP WTR - CIP $1,028.09
538 Pilot Study Mac Well 2013 ASHSWAMP 6/30/2013 CIP WTR - CIP $141,011.22
539 Rplemnt Waterline-N.Main 12/13 N.MAIN 6/30/2013 CIP WTR - CIP $21,105.37
540 Macallen Dam Engineering 12/13 MAIN ST. 6/30/2013 CIP TOWN-CIP $9,233.78
542 Lights A&B Field Rec TERRACE 2 6/30/2013 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $271,462.40
543 Leo Landroche B-Field TERRACE 2 6/30/2013 BLDG&IMPRV REC.FIELDS $475,361.23
544 Water Meters Installed TOWN 6/30/2013 MACH&EQUIP WATER EQP $497,742.64
546 Paving 2013 TOWN 6/30/2013 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $218,854.74
548 41 NEWFIELD LINE R4-41A TOWN 7/1/2013 LAND TOWN LAND $694.94
552 EXMARK LAWN MOWER/BAG NEW ROAD 7/10/2013 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $13,369.73
547 TRACKLESS MT6 TRACTOR 2013 YOUNG'S LN 8/29/2013 MACH&EQUIP OTHER EQUI $106,500.00
553 Digital Video Encoder MAIN ST 9/6/2013 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $14,148.00
551 Carpeting Town Hall MAIN ST 9/20/2013 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $6,869.00
550 Painting Town Hall Interior MAIN ST 10/17/2013 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $15,577.00
557 Window Replacement at Library MAIN ST. 1/16/2014 BLDG&IMPRV LIBRARY $14,796.00
554 THERMAL IMAGING PACKAGE #1 YOUNG'S LN 3/17/2014 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $13,061.00
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Asset No. Description Location Code In Service Date Category Classification Purchase Price

555 THERMAL IMAGING PACKAGE #2 YOUNG'S LN 3/17/2014 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $13,061.00
556 SNOW BLOWER FOR MT6 TRACKLESS YOUNG'S LN 3/20/2014 MACH&EQUIP OTHER EQUI $23,025.00
558 2013 John Deere Ldr Backhoe YOUNG'S LN 4/21/2014 MACH&EQUIP P.W.VEHIC $93,500.00
573 2014 FORD EXPLORER 9039 EXETER #70 4/28/2014 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $46,152.24
559 BOBCAT MOWER YOUNG'S LN 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $10,000.00
560 CARGO UTILITY TRAILER YOUNG'S LN 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $5,500.00
561 UTILITY TRAILER SPECIALIZED YOUNG'S LN 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $2,000.00
562 GOLF CART YOUNG'S LN 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $8,000.00
563 2008 GODWIN PUMP/TRAILER YOUNGS LAN 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP TOWN EQUIP $21,142.00
566 2002 SPORTSMAN 700 ATV EXETER #70 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $6,705.00
567 2002 TRETON ATV TRAILER EXETER #70 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $1,100.00
568 199 SMART SPEED TRAILER EXETER #70 4/29/2014 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $13,290.00
572 2014 FORD EXPLORER 1097 EXETER #70 5/6/2014 MACH&EQUIP POLICE DEP $47,131.41
569 FORD F250 PU YOUNGS LAN 6/3/2014 MACH&EQUIP WATER $15,088.00
570 FORD F250 PU YOUNGS LAN 6/3/2014 MACH&EQUIP SEWER $15,088.00
574 FLOORING AT RECREATION TERRACE DR 6/20/2014 BLDG&IMPRV RECREATION $2,828.88
571 Ford F350 P/U YOUNG'S LN 6/27/2014 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $31,642.00
575 Rplcmnt Waterline-N.Main 13/14 N.MAIN 6/30/2014 CIP WTR - CIP $11,124.63
576 MacAllen Dam Rmvl Anly 13/14 MAIN ST. 6/30/2014 CIP MACALN DAM $64,206.89
577 WASTEWATER Treatment Fac.2014 NEW ROAD 6/30/2014 CIP SEWER-CIP $1,841.87
578 MACINTOSH WELL ENG 2014 ASHSWAMP 6/30/2014 CIP WTR - CIP $153,202.29
579 MACINTOSH WELL CONST.2014 ASHSWAMP 6/30/2014 CIP WTR - CIP $5,200.00
580 WASTEWATER FAC. ENG 2014 NEW ROAD 6/30/2014 CIP SEWER-CIP $305,380.49
581 PEDIESTRIAN CROSSING 2013 ROUTE 108 6/30/2014 CIP TOWN-CIP $45,096.05
582 PEDIESTRIAN CROSSING 2014 ROUTE 108 6/30/2014 CIP TOWN-CIP $42,959.95
583 PAVING 2014 TOWN 6/30/2014 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $327,917.48
607 LIBRARY WINDOWS UPGRADE ELM ST 9/9/2014 BLDG&IMPRV LIBRARY $4,446.00
586 CARPET TOWN HALL AUDTIORIUM MAIN ST. 12/1/2014 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $11,182.00
603 PAINTING OF AUDITORIUM MAIN ST 12/15/2014 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $7,996.00
604 VEHICLES PUMP CONTROL SYSTEM NEW ROAD 1/9/2015 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $13,559.00
605 NEW LIGHTING AT TOWN HALL MAIN ST. 2/26/2015 BLDG&IMPRV TOWN HALL $7,759.46
584 2015 Intl 7400 SFA Dump Truck YOUNG'S LN 3/3/2015 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $157,000.00
606 LIBRARY DRYWALL REPAIRS ELM ST 4/22/2015 BLDG&IMPRV LIBRARY $9,958.50
608 LIBRARY SHELVING & MILLWORK ELM ST 6/1/2015 BLDG&IMPRV LIBRARY $11,299.04
600 41 EXETER RD BUILDING EXETER ST 6/18/2015 BLDG&IMPRV DPW $190,600.00
601 41 EXETER RD LAND EXETER ST 6/18/2015 LAND TOWN LAND $125,900.00
602 90 HERSEY LAND HERSEY LN 6/18/2015 LAND TOWN LAND $7,300.00
585 2015 Mahindra Tractor YOUNG'S LN 6/23/2015 MACH&EQUIP PW.VEHIC $30,500.00
588 POLICE DIGITAL MOBILE RADIO EXETER RD 6/25/2015 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $3,245.25
587 AIR CONDITIONER DISPATCH CENTE EXETER RD 6/30/2015 MACH&EQUIP POLICE EQU $5,610.00
589 NITRONOX FIELD UNIT NEW ROAD 6/30/2015 MACH&EQUIP FIRE EQUIP $7,675.00
590 MACINTOSH WELL CONST. 2015 ASHSWAMP 6/30/2015 CIP WTR - CIP $309,352.68
592 PEDIESTRIAN CORSSING 2013 ROUTE 108 6/30/2015 CIP TOWN-CIP $36,296.45
593 Macallen Dam Engineering 14/15 MAIN ST. 6/30/2015 CIP TOWN-CIP $17,469.31
594 GREAT HILL WTR MAIN ENG. 14/15 ROUTE 108 6/30/2015 CIP WTR - CIP $42,679.95
595 N.MAIN ST WTR RPLCMNT CIP14/15 N.MAIN 6/30/2015 CIP WTR - CIP $669,872.68
596 N.MAIN ST WTR RPLCMNT ENG14/15 N.MAIN 6/30/2015 CIP WTR - CIP $34,051.47
597 BIKE PATH ENGINEERING 14/15 TOWN 6/30/2015 CIP TOWN-CIP $34,564.89
598 PAVING 2105 TOWN 6/30/2015 INFRASTRUC TWN PAVING $255,485.33
599 40 DURELL DRIVE R5-134 DURELL DR 6/30/2015 LAND TOWN LAND $77,000.00
591 WASTEWATER FAC. ENG. 2015 NEW ROAD 8/5/2015 CIP SEWER-CIP $723,414.00
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2015 Deliberative Session and Ballot Results

Town of Newmarket, NH

Annual Town Meeting - First Session
- January 31, 2015

Newmarket Jr/Sr High School Gym

he meeting was called to order
Tat 9:01 am by Moderator Chris

Hawkins. Fifty-nine (59) registered
voters checked in per the official checklist
of the Supervisors. Moderator Hawkins
requested any non registered voters move
to the designated area. He indicated there
are Deliberative Session rules at the check
in table which can be changed by the
voters and that the voters may overrule
any decision made by the Moderator. He
stated anyone who wished to be recog-
nized to speak must announce their name
and address and will be given 3 minutes
to comment. Each individual will be al-
lowed to speak once before anyone would
be allowed to speak for the second time.
Moderator Hawkins deferred article 3 to
the last article.

Article 1 Election of Officers
Motioned by Councilor Pike, Councilor
Bentley Second. No discussion, motion
passed.

Article 2 Consideration of a proposed
Charter Amendment

Motioned by Councilor Bentley, Coun-
cilor Carmichael Second.

Town Administrator Steve Fourni-
er asked if he could speak. Moderator
Hawkins stated that the rules indicate
that non residents of the Town must have
permission to speak with the exception of
the Town Administrator and the Town
Attorney.

Dana Glennon, 2 Beech Street, ques-
tioned if the wages are a part of the char-
ter and if they are going to be set in the
charter now instead of annually?

Administrator Fournier explained
that the article was to correct a provision
in the Town Charter and has nothing to do
with employee wages. He explained that
over the past twenty (20) years the Capital
Reserve funds were a part of the operating
budget. The Department of Revenue Ad-
ministration reviewed the Town Charter
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and stated that each Capital Reserve Fund
must be a separated warrant article on the
ballot.

No further discussion, motioned
passed.

Article 4 Relative to collective
bargaining agreement between

the Town of Newmarket and the

New England Police Benevolent
Association.

Motioned by Councilor Weinstein, Coun-
cilor Pike Second. No discussion, motion
passed.

Article 5 Relative to the Public Works
Capital Reserve Fund

Motioned by Councilor Pike, Councilor
Bentley Second.

Municipal =~ Budget =~ Committee
Member, Drew Kiefaber explained why
we must vote on each Capital Reserve
fund separately this year. He reiterated
the comments made by Administrator
Fournier regarding this process.

No further discussion,
passed.

motion

Article 6 Relative to the Storm Water
Management Gapital Reserve Fund
Motioned by Councilor Bentley, Coun-
cilor Carmichael Second. No discussion,
motion passed.

Article 7 Relative to the Macallen
Dam Capital Reserve Fund

Motioned by Councilor Carmichael,
Councilor Weinstein Second.

Dana Glennon, 2 Beech Street, ques-
tioned if the Moderator could read the
text of the article in its entirety. Moderator
Hawkins stated that he hadn’t proposed to
do this as the information was published
and available to the public and the pur-
pose of the article was being explained.

Dana Glennon, 2 Beech Street, mo-
tioned to read the text of the article in
its entirety. Gail Desrocher-Wentworth
second. Voice vote taken, nays win. Hand
vote taken, nays win.

No discussion, motion passed.

Article 8 Relative to the Police
Vehicle Capital Reserve Fund
Motioned by Councilor Weinstein,

Councilor Pike Second. No discussion,
motion passed.

Article 9 Relative to the Compensated
Absences Capital Reserve Fund
Motioned by Councilor Pike, Councilor
Bentley Second. No discussion, motion
passed.

Article 10 Establish a Capital Reserve
Fund for the purpose of planning,
engineering, and maintenance of
Town roads

Motioned by Councilor Bentley, Coun-
cilor Carmichael Second. No discussion,
motion passed.

Article 11 Relative to the Police
Dispatch Gapital Reserve Fund
Motioned by Councilor Carmichael,
Councilor Weinstein Second. No discus-
sion, motion passed.

Article 12 Relative to the Revaluation
Capital Reserve Fund

Motioned by Councilor Weinstein, Coun-
cilor Pike Second. No discussion, motion
passed.

Article 13 Relative to the Fire
Department CGapital Reserve Fund
Motioned by Councilor Pike, Councilor
Bentley Second. No discussion, motion
passed.

Article 14 Relative to the Tri-
centennial Expendable Trust Fund
Motioned by Councilor Bentley, Coun-
cilor Carmichael Second. No discussion,
motion passed.

Article 15 Establish a Capital Reserve
Fund for the purpose of conducting
the Master Plan

Motioned by Councilor Carmichael,
Councilor Weinstein Second. No discus-
sion, motion passed.

Article 16 By Petition: Donate
$10,403 to Lamprey Health Care
Senior Transportation Program
Motioned by Councilor Weinstein, Coun-
cilor Pike Second.

Mary Mongeon, Grant Road stated
how vital the Lamprey Health Care Senior



Transportation Program is to herself and
all of the residents who use this service.
She stated that she appreciates what the
Town has done in the past but hopes that
the contribution won’t stop.

Elizabeth Crepeau, 27 Hamel Farm
Drive, brought forth additional informa-
tion/statistics regarding the contributions
from each Town utilizing the transpor-
tation services, which was requested at
the previous Town Council Meeting she
attended.

Trish Simon, Cushing Road, was
looking for clarification regarding the use
of the contribution.

Administrator Fournier stated that
prior to the petition there was no earmark
as to what the money was being used for.
He stated that the Town could not write a
check without proof that it is going to be
used solely for transportation.

Thomas Drew (commonly known
as Chris Drew), 2 Fogg Circle, stated
that the Town should not worry that the
money will be used for anything other
than transportation. He gave statistical
information regarding Lamprey Health
Care and their contributions made to the
community. He stated to reach out and
help support the transportation program
and its riders would be a small token of
appreciation.

Ray Goodman, 4 Norton Woods
Drive, stated that this service is used for
the Towns most vulnerable citizens and
hopes we want to be a community who
provides access to those individuals who
need it. He hopes that the Town finds it
necessary to pass this article and do the
right thing.

Dana Glennon, 2 Beech Street, dis-
cussed his involvement in the Town and
with the Senior Citizens. He discussed
how Lamprey Health Care has assisted
him and how this contribution would be
well worth it to the community.

Karen Polzinetti, 8 Stonewall Way,
stated that it was sad to be discussing the
importance of this article and how impor-
tant it is for this community regardless of
what the money is being used for. Could
not understand why this article was even
being discussed.

Councilor Bentley stated that he vot-
ed no but did not have enough informa-
tion. He asked Administrator Fournier
what the tax bill would be for Lamprey
Health Care. Administrator Fournier

stated the assessed value and tax amount
for both properties owned by Lamprey
Health Care. Councilor Bentley stated
that he understands the importance of
this article but wanted everyone to know
that the Town already contributes by not
taxing these properties.

Judith Ryan, 125 Main Street, stated
that she has been involved with Lamprey
Health Care since 1978 and wanted to re-
mind all of the members of the boards that
Lamprey Health Care has a federal desig-
nation of a 501(c)3 along with other agen-
cies and other properties in Newmarket.

Lynn Badjer, Cushing Road, ques-
tioned why for $0.01 the Board/Commit-
tee members voted against the article. She
personally takes the recommendations
into consideration when voting and was
wondering why it was not recommended.

Drew Kiefaber stated that he was one
of the nay votes on the Budget Commit-
tee. He stated that he personally voted the
way he did because when the Town bud-
get was presented it did not include the
$10,000 contribution. One of the goals for
the Town Budget this year was to main-
tain a level budget. He stated that histori-
cally Lamprey Health Care had provided
a payment in lieu of taxes which ceased
over a decade ago. He stated that Lamprey
Health Care did apply for a Social Ser-
vices Grant which was one of the items
removed from the budget this year. When
the Budget Committee received the peti-
tion warrant article they did not receive
any additional information other than
the words on the article. He encouraged
Lamprey Health Care to continue to edu-
cate people about what exactly the money
would be used for and how much it makes
a difference.

Dana Glennon, 2 Beech Street, want-
ed to add to the statement made by Mr.
Kiefaber. He stated that Lamprey Health
Care was never notified that this article
was being discussed at the Budget Com-
mittee meeting and if they had been noti-
fied they would have been at the meeting.
He also believed that when a petition is
presented the first five (5) or ten (10) sign-
ers of the petition must be notified about
the hearing, which never happened. He
stated that the Administrator can remove
whatever he wants from the budget but
the information should be made avail-
able because the Council is the governing
body.

Administrator Fournier wanted to
explain the process and stated that there
were misstatements made by Mr. Glen-
non. He stated that all nonprofit organi-
zations have the right to apply for a con-
tribution from the Town and that there
are deadlines to apply. After this deadline
it was his job to present the budget. This
year, this was one of the items cut from
the budget. He stated that the Council
had access to all of the applications and
financial information and chose to not
include this in the budget which was pre-
sented to the Municipal Budget Commit-
tee. The Municipal Budget Committee
also did not include this in their budget.
Administrator Fournier advised Lamprey
Health Care how to create a Petition War-
rant Article.

Councilor Carmichael acknowledged
that he voted for this article. He stated
that he understood the comment made by
Councilor Bentley regarding the money
the Town does not receive but felt that if
they had received more information the
vote might have been different. He stated
that he appreciated everyone’s stand on
this and that they are just trying to do a
job and sometimes only see numbers in
front of them.

Ray Goodman wanted to clarify and
comment on Administrator Fournier’s
comments on taxes. He stated that Lam-
prey Health Care paid a payment in lieu
of taxes when they sublet to a tenant
which ceased when they stopped making
that payment. He feels as they are more
than justified to not pay taxes as they are
a qualified 501(c)3 as any other organiza-
tion would that provides a critical social
service to the community.

No further discussion,
passed.

motion

Article 3 FY 2015-2016 Operating
Budget

Motioned by Councilor Carmichael,
Councilor Weinstein Second. No discus-
sion, motion passed.

There being no further business, mo-
tion to adjourn made by Councilor Wein-
stein. Seconded by Councilor Bentley.
Unanimous voice vote.

Meeting adjourned at 9:44 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Terri J. Littlefield
Town Clerk-Tax Collector
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Minutes
Annual Town Meeting
Newmarket, NH

Second Session: March 10, 2015

he second session of the Annual
TTown Meeting was called to order

by Town Clerk Terri Littlefield, and
voting polls were opened at 7:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, March 10, 2015, at the Newmar-
ket Town Hall.

The ballots had been verified, count-
ed and tested. Sample ballots and election
signs were posted.

Supervisors of the checklist were
Madeleine St. Hilaire, Nicole Benson and
Jane Arquette.

Ballot Clerks/Inspectors of the elec-
tion were: Sandra Bailey, Constance
Bentley, Joel Bogan, Annette Brousseau,
Fred Edgerly, Lisa Zhe, Sandra Allen, Eric
Botterman, Susan Beaulieu, Lynn Beaver,
Deborah Webster-Grochmal and Crystal
Weitzell.

The Moderator was Christopher
Hawkins. Town Councilors present at the
polls and/or participating in counting and
tallying were Toni Weinstein, John Bent-
ley, Dan Wright, Dale Pike, Phil Nazzaro
and Ed Carmichael. Town Administrator
Steve Fournier was also present.

Processing of absentee ballots (53)
began at 11:00 a.m. and ended at 1:00 p.m.
The checklist included 7019 registered
voters. A total of 1096 ballots were cast.

The polls were declared closed at 7:00
p.m. Moderator Hawkins announced the
Town and School Election Results.

The Town results were as follows:

Article #1. To choose all Town
Officers for the ensuing year.
(*Denotes winner)

Budget Committee
(three for three years)

Daniel V. Smith* 590 votes
Dan Hill* 600 votes
Jeff Raab* 490 votes
Russell R. Simon 462 votes

Planning Board (two for three years)
Ezra Temko* 634 votes
Rose-Anne Kwaks* 95 votes
(Write-In)
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Supervisor of the Checklist
(one for three years)

Carol Ross* 797 votes
Town Clerk-Tax Collector

(one for three years)

Terri J. Littlefield* 829 votes

Town Council (two for three years)
Amy M. Thompson* 581 votes
Amy Burns* 667 votes

Town Council (one for one year)

Charles K. Walker 298 votes
Larry Pickering* 537 votes
Trustee of Trust Funds

(one for three years)

All write-in votes 62 votes

Trustee of Trust Funds (one for one year)
Michael LaBranche* 27 votes
(Write-In)

Article 2. Charter Amendment - This
amendment would authorize the Town
of Newmarket, through its annual bud-
getary process, to appropriate funds and
anticipated revenues to previously estab-
lished capital reserve funds, expendable
trust funds and other funds, as part of the
Town’s operating budget.

PASSED YES840 NO 129

Article 3. FY2015-2016 Proposed Oper-
ating Budget ($9,107,827)
PASSED YES973 NO 88

Article 4. Collective Bargaining Agree-
ment — Town of Newmarket and the New
England Police Benevolent Association
Local 215.

PASSED YES 858 NO 197

Article 5. $130,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Public Works Capital Re-
serve Fund.

PASSED YES873 NO 167

Article 6. $50,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Storm Water Manage-
ment Capital Reserve Fund.

PASSED YES950 NO 108

Article 7. $50,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Macallen Dam Capital
Reserve Fund.

PASSED YES886 NO 159

Article 8. $46,500 from fund balance to
be placed in the Police Vehicle Capital Re-
serve Fund.

PASSED YES863 NO 179

Article 9. $10,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Compensated Absences
Capital Reserve Fund.

PASSED YES784 NO 272

Article 10. Establish a Capital Reserve
Fund for the purpose of planning, engi-
neering, and maintenance of Town roads
and to raise and appropriate the sum of
one hundred twenty five thousand dollars
($125,000) to be placed in this fund.
PASSED YES823 NO 187

Article 11. $29,449 from fund balance to
be placed in the Police Dispatch Capital
Reserve Fund.

PASSED YES833 NO 182

Article 12. $10,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Revaluation Capital Re-
serve Fund.

PASSED YES914 NO 104

Article 13. $50,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Fire Department Capital
Reserve Fund.

PASSED YES929 NO 92

Article 14. $2,000 from fund balance to
be placed in the Town of Newmarket Tri-
centennial Expendable Trust Fund.
PASSED YES877 NO 137

Article 15. Establish a Capital Reserve
Fund for the purpose of conducting the
Master Plan and to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000)
to be placed in this fund.

PASSED YES797 NO 214

Article 16. By petition: Donate
$10,403 to Lamprey Health Care Senior
Transportation

PASSED YES842 NO 161

Respectfully submitted and A True
Copy of Record Attest,

Terri]. Littlefield
Town Clerk - Tax Collector



Departmental Reporting

Assessing
Property Tax Rates — Tax Years 2005-2015 The firm of Municipal Resources, Inc.
Local State continues to handle the assessing func-
Town County Education Education Total tions for the T%wn Offl\g}elwntlaf;ket- 'E}e two
primary members of the staff working in
2005 $5.58 $0.95 $11.21 $2.65 $20.39 Town are, Scott Marsh (Assessor) and
2006 $5.58 $0.97|  $11.34 $2.60 $20.49 Jerry Quintal. Additional staff members
2007 $5.76 $0.99 $11.92 $2.53 $21.20 Paul McKenney and Shawn Main may
2008 $5.94 $0.98 $12.65 $2.49 $22.06 be assisting. It is requested that if any of
2009 $5.74 $1.01 $12.68 $2.44 $21.87 the appraisers come to your property, you
2010 $5.42 $1.03 $13.26 $2.29 $22.00 support the Town’s efforts to keep assess-
2011 $7.03 $1.04 $14.87 $2.37 $25.31 ments equ'itable and proper by answeri’ng
2012 $6.07|  $1.03| $1412]  $245|  $2367 any questions and allowing them to in-
spect and verify the data of your property.
2013 $6.07 $1.02 $15.02 $2.35 $24.46 Municipal Resources personnel are
2014 $6.22 $1.10 $16.00 $2.43 $25.75 available to meet with taxpayers and if an
2015 $6.02 $1.07 $15.41 $2.46 $24.96 appointment is desired, the Town’s As-
sessing Office staft can schedule one for

you.

Below is a list of Tax Exemptions and Credits currently available. Additional information and applications are

available at the Assessing office.

Elderly Exemption
Amount Required Age |Income Limitations Asset Limitation
(S off Assessed Valuation)
$ 80,000 65to 74 Not in excess of $35,000 if Not in excess of $110,000 excluding
$100,000 75 to 79 single, $50,000 if married the value of residence & to 2 acres
$120,000 80 and up

Disabled Exemption
$70,000 off assessed valuation

Blind Exemption
$20,000 off assessed valuation

Veteran
Standard: Tax Credit $500

Surviving Spouse: Tax Credit $2,000

Service Connected Disability: Tax Credit $2,000

The same income and asset limitations as the elderly exemption.

Every inhabitant owning residential real estate and who is legally blind, as
determined by the Administrator of Blind Services of the Vocational Rehabilitation
Division of the Education Department.

Every resident who served in the armed forces in any of the qualifying wars or
armed conflicts as listed in RSA 72:28, was honorably discharged; or the spouse/
surviving spouse of such resident.

The surviving un-remarried spouse of any person who was Killed or died while on
active duty in the armed forces, as listed in RSA 72:28.

Any person who has been honorably discharged and received a form DD-214
and who has a total and permanent service connected disability, or is a double
amputee or paraplegic because of the service-connected injury, or the surviving
spouse of such person if such surviving spouse has not remarried.
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Source: Strafford Regional Planning Commission

The past year saw the assessing office
handle 60 abatement requests. There were
also roughly 350 properties reviewed due
to taxpayer inquires, issued building per-
mits, incomplete status of prior visit re-
view and/or site changes, which resulted
in roughly a $10,500,000 increase in tax-
able value. The town will also be continu-
ing the process of reviewing 25% of the
properties each year to verify the listed
assessment information.

The State has completed an analysis
of the annual DRA’s equalization sales
survey and the Town’s overall median as-
sessment ratio as of April 1, 2015 is 91%.

Individual property assessing infor-
mation may be obtained by visiting the
assessing office or on-line by following
the link on the Town’s website.

Planning Board

During the past year, the Planning Board
continued to address a broad array of is-
sues related to growth and development
of the Town, as outlined below:
« In 2015, we saw the completion of
a number of high profile projects
that had been in the planning
stages for several years, including
the final phase of the Newmarket
Mills involving the redevelopment
of the former Riverdale property
into the Newberry Farms market
and the adjacent “Weaver’s Row”
retail shops, which are now fully
leased, with a nano-brewery, two
restaurants and a barbershop.

Construction has moved ahead

at Rockingham Green, a new
residential open space development
at the southern gateway to Town,
which includes the clustering of 52
new homes and the preservation of
adjacent wetlands and the existing
golf course to remain open to the
public. A second smaller scale

open space development with ten
homes was approved and is under
construction at the foot of Bald Hill.
Site work is also underway at the
Newmarket Industrial Park for a
24,000 square foot expansion of an
existing manufacturing facility on
Forbes Road.

In 2015, the Planning Board has
seen an increase in the number

of applications for development,

a sign that the economy is indeed
recovering. A proposal for a mixed-
use development on Exeter Road at
the Newmarket Corporate Business
Park is in the final stages of Planning
Board review and a five lot (in-fill
development) has been approved for
a site along the Lamprey River, both
of which were developed under the
new M-2A zoning that was adopted
by the Town in 2013.

At the annual Town Meeting in
March, Ezra Temko was elected

to serve on the Planning Board

and Rose-Anne Kwaks, who was
previously an Alternate on the
Board, was elected as a full Board
member. Eric Botterman was
nominated and voted in for a third

Newmarket LIVE Visioning Session, April 2015
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term as Chairman of Planning
Board and Valerie Shelton was

voted in as Vice Chairman at the
April meeting. Also at that meeting,
Peter Nelson was re-appointed

by the Planning Board as an
Alternate member. In August, Diane
Germanowski was also appointed by
the Board as an Alternate.

o The Planning Board continues to
work with the Strafford Regional
Planning Commission (SRPC) on
updating the Newmarket Master
Plan. Every year, the Planning
Board tries to update at least one
chapter of the Master Plan. This
year, two chapters were adopted: the
Vision Statement and Housing and
Demographics. Work continues on
the Future Land Use chapter to be
unveiled in early 2016.

o A highlight this year was the
visioning process, facilitated
by the SRPC during the spring.

This process engaged residents in
envisioning the town’s future.
 Through a combination of
interactive forums, small group
discussions, live polling and an
online survey, input was received
from over 455 residents. From
the information, a broad policy
statement was generated by the
Planning Board which will provide
direction for the Town’s master
planning process through the year
2025. The Vision chapter, which
details the outreach process and
public input, was adopted by the
Planning Board in November.

o In August, the Planning Board held
a joint meeting with the Economic
Development Committee (EDC). The
Economic Development Committee
presented recommendations
for changes to the B-2 and B-3
business zoning districts to allow
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for senior housing opportunities
that would permit “aging in place”.
In particular, they advocated for
the development of Continuing
Care Retirement Communities
(CCRC), which provides options
for independent living and assisted
living, with supportive services and

skilled nursing care for memory
impaired residents. Such facilities, in
addition to providing housing for a
growing segment of the population,
would have a positive fiscal

impact in terms of providing job
opportunities and tax revenue to the
Town. A committee of the Planning

Board was formed in November to

study the recommendations of the

EDC and report back to the full
Planning Board.

« The Planning Department continues

to work on the pedestrian safety

improvements in the downtown.

The improvements include improved

Subdivision & Site Plan Applications 2015

NIP Lot 6, LLC/Shearwater Invest-
ments Corp. — Major Site Plan review,
at 2 Forbes Road (NIP Lot 6 LLC),
Tax Map R3, Lot 9-6, and 181 Exeter
Road (Shearwater Investment Corp.),
Tax Map R3, Lot 8, both in the B2
Zone. The proposal was for a 24,000
square foot expansion of the existing
industrial building located at 2 Forbes
Road, with associated parking, drain-
age, and landscaping improvements.
After site plan approval, the lots will
be merged to make one lot. Condition-
ally approved.

Moody Point Company - Special

Use Permit, pursuant to Section 5.03
Wetlands Protection Overlay District,
Paragraphs C, E, F, involving wetland
modification, dredging and filling,
and mitigation associated with the
development of a duplex structure
(two units) with a proposed impervi-
ous area of 6,100 square feet on Lot

2, Building Space 7. The application
proposed: (1) a 1824 square foot direct
wetland impact on wetlands soils,
classified as Hydric B (poorly drained
soils); and (2) disturbance, construc-
tion, filling, dredging and removal

of vegetation within said wetlands
and the corresponding 25 foot buffer
area around said wetlands for the
construction of buildings, driveways,
drainage modifications and two (2)
bioretention areas. The property is lo-
cated at 505 Cushing Road, Tax Map
R2, Lot 36-2-7, R1 Zone. Application
withdrawn.

Hayden Family Rev. Trust, Mark L &
Karen S. Hayden, Trustees/Chinburg
Builders, Inc. - Compliance hearing

subject to RSA 676:4 1 (i) regarding a
subdivision & special use permit, at
74 Bald Hill Road, Tax Map R7, Lot
24, R1 Zone. This involved the review
and approval of a management plan
for open space related to the afore-
mentioned development. Application
conditionally approved.

Lubberland Creek Homeowners
Association and its members - Sub-
division/site plan review, with the
following lots involved in the applica-
tion. All are located on Tax Map R2
and are within the R1 Zone. The lots
are 117 Cushing Rd, Lot 36-6-1; 118
Cushing Rd, 36-6-2; 119 Cushing Rd,
36-6-3; 120 Cushing Rd, 36-6-4; 121
Cushing Rd, 36-6-5, 122 Cushing Rd,
36-6-6; 123 Cushing Rd, 36-6-7; 124
Cushing Rd, 36-6-8; 131 Cushing Rd,
36-6-9; 132 Cushing Rd, 36-6-10; 133
Cushing Rd, 36-6-11. The purpose of
this application was to reaffirm the
lot lines, as originally approved by the
Newmarket Planning Board in 1992
Plan D-21973 and revised in 1995,
Plan D-23691, affirm that the policy
of requiring a “Final Configuration
Plan” does not apply to these lots,

and reaffirms their prior votes that
density, setback, and building location
requirements continue to be vested, as
established under the Alternative De-
sign Subdivision (ADS) approval for
Moody Point. Application approved.

Milton Elm Street, LLC, and Cam-
mar Properties, LLC - Boundary Line
Adjustment and Subdivision at 1 Elm
Dr., Tax Map U2, Lot 248; 2 Elm Dr.,
Tax Map U2, Lot 243; and 2 Elm St.,
Tax Map U2, Lot 249, all located in

the M2A Zone. The proposal was for
a boundary line adjustment involving
the three lots, then the subdivision of
five lots on the revised Lot 243. Ap-
plication conditionally approved.

Rockingham Golf, LLC & James
Gove/Jeannie Mackay - Boundary
Line Adjustment, for Rockingham
Golf, LLC, at 4 Honeycomb Way, Tax
Map R3, Lot 23-18, and James Gove
& Jeannie Mackay at 2 Honeycomb
Way, Tax Map R3, Lot 23-17, both

in the M4 Zone. The proposal was

to place one additional bound along
the shared property line decreasing
Lot 23-17 by .014 acres, which will be
added to Lot 23-18. Approved.

Wayne & Janice Rosa - Renewal of an
excavation permit, for the property
located at 421 Wadleigh Falls Road,
Tax Map R6, Lot 2, B3 Zone. Condi-
tionally approved.

Karen Tucker, Executor; Donald
Tucker, Revocable Trust; Donald
Tucker, Trustee — Subdivision, at 22
Neal Mill Road, Tax Map R7, Lot 4-2,
R1 Zone. The proposal was to create

a five lot subdivision. Proposed Lot 1
would encompass the existing house,
with proposed Lots 2 & 3 being front-
age lots on Neal Mill Road, while Lots
4 & 5 would be oversized lots encom-
passing the remainder of the property.
Conditionally approved.

Respectfully submitted,
Eric Botterman, Chairman
Planning Board
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pedestrian signage, decorative
luminaires to improve night time
visibility, textured pedestrian
crossings, enhanced curb extensions,
and a new crosswalk. The project is
scheduled to be advertised for bids
in February 2016, with construction
beginning in the spring of 2016 and
completion before the end of the
year.

The Planning Department has been
working on a Shoulder Widening
and Bike Path Construction Project
on Route 108, from the Irving Gas
Station to the Newmarket/Newfields
town line. The New Hampshire
Department of Transportation (NH
DOT) and the Federal Highway
Administration are providing full
funding for this project, in the
amount of $809,292, through the
federal Congestion Mitigation and
Air Quality (CMAQ) program.
Underwood Engineers, the Town’s
consultant, has completed a
feasibility study, which identified
two possible alternatives and cost
estimates for the project. The project
is currently being reviewed by the
NH DOT. The Town is awaiting their
approval before moving forward
with the preliminary engineering
and design phase of the project.

The Planning Board, once again,
participated in the Town’s

Capital Improvement Program
(CIP) process. This year, the CIP
committee recommended a full
complement of Town capital projects
totaling $1,303,930 to be considered
as part of the FY 16/17 budget

and water and sewer enterprise

fund totaling $538,200. With the
Charter changes that were made in
March 2014, the Newmarket School
District is now part of the Town’s
CIP process. The Newmarket School
Board and District recommended

a variety of projects, including
additions and renovations to the
Junior and Senior High School
totaling $13,129,100 and $3,252,555
for improvements to the Newmarket
Elementary School. The School
District is working with an architect
and a School Facilities Committee
to assess facility needs district-wide
and come up with a specific funding
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proposal and warrant articles to be
considered at the Fiscal Year 17/18
Annual Town Meeting.

In closing, it has been a pleasure to
serve the Town of Newmarket and the
Planning Board again this year as Chair-
man. I would like to thank all of the Plan-
ning Board members for their service to
the community. The Board is often faced
with difficult and controversial issues and
their willingness to share their time, en-
ergy and expertise for the betterment of
the community is admirable.

On behalf of the Planning Board, I
would also like to recognize the outstand-
ing support we receive from the New-
market Planning Department. The Board
would not function as effectively without
the hard work and professional expertise
of Town Planner Diane Hardy and Ad-
ministrative Secretary Susan Jordan.

In the coming year, we will continue
to strive for quality development through
sound land use planning, in balance with
the interests of the private landowner. We
look forward to the challenges ahead as
we continue on our present course of eco-
nomic revitalization.

Respectfully submitted,
Eric Botterman, Chairman
Newmarket Planning Board

Building Safety

The Department of Building Safety is re-
sponsible for the oversight of all aspects
of building construction and locally

regulated land-use. We also serve as the
Town’s Health & Safety Office. In many
communities, these functions are admin-
istered by a ‘Code Enforcement Office’.
We are proud to offer the public a service
where ‘enforcement’ is the final tool, not
the primary means of compliance.

2015 was another banner year. Our
revenues from permits were up over 20%
from last year and over 60% from the pre-
vious year. Certainly, the two major resi-
dential subdivisions, Rockingham Greens
and Hayden Place, are the most signifi-
cant factors. We continue to credit a posi-
tive regulatory environment with the in-
crease of permit applications. Our goal is
to bring value to both the community and
the project, and not be an obstacle to ef-
ficient construction. We have been fortu-
nate to work with experienced designers,
architects, developers and contractors,
who require less municipal over-sight.
84% of the new homes built have been En-
ergy Star Rated homes, which consume a
fraction of the energy of a home built to
minimum code requirements.

Building departments are some-
times referred to as ‘First Preventers’. We
take this role seriously, staying abreast of
emerging trends, products and technolo-
gy. We administer the statewide Building
Code withoutlocal amendment, which as-
sists contractors in knowing the require-
ments prior to doing work in Newmarket.
This familiarity with the codes coupled
with the customer service philosophy of
the Building Department contributes to
high value construction with lower costs
that can be passed onto the property own-
er. By adhering to known best practices,




we reduce future maintenance, repair and
recovery costs, often lessening the burden
on taxpayer dollars after disaster strikes.
It is our goal to build a sustainable and re-
silient community that we all feel proud
of and safe in.

The Building Safety Officer is a part-
time position, available weekdays 8:00 -
1:00 for consultations and inspections.

Respectfully submitted,
Mike Hoffman
Building Official

Conservation
Commission

In 2015 the members of the Conservation
Commission included: Bruce Fecteau,
Andrea Sellers(Frey) (Treasurer), Jeffrey
Goldknopf (Chairperson), Drew Kiefa-
ber (Vice Chairperson), Marianne Han-
nagan, Fred Pearson, Amy Burns (Town
Council representative), and Ezra Temko
(Planning Board representative). Robert
Gazda, and Patrick Reynolds served as
alternates. Sue Frick served as our record-
ing secretary.

During the year we reviewed subdi-
vision plans for wetland setbacks and the
protection of our natural resources. We
also reviewed Shoreland Permit, Altera-
tion of Terrain, as well as Dredge and Fill
applications and forwarded our recom-
mendations to the State of New Hamp-
shire Department of Environmental
Services.

The Conservation Commission re-
sponsible for annual monitoring of five
conservation properties in town to ensure
that the easements are not being violated
and the properties are being used for the
intended purposes. Monitoring reports
are forwarded to partner organizations
that help with funding and management
as well as kept on file locally.

With the Recreation Department
and Boy Scout Troop 200, the Conserva-
tion Commission is a co-sponsor of the
annual Fishing Derby. The Fishing Derby
is held for Newmarket children under the
age of 14 and is a popular event every year.

A $1000 scholarship was awarded to
a Newmarket graduating senior pursuing
further education in the Environmen-
tal Sciences. $500 was made available to

Building Permits by Type 2015

(Does not include number of plumbing/electri
vendor permits)

Type Number Issued
SingleFamily. ....... ... . 25
Accessory Apartments. .......... ... .. i 0
Multi-family. .. ... 0
Condominiums. ........... 1 (1 permit for 3 buildings, 10 units)
Garages/Sheds/Miscellaneous. . . ...................... 60
Additions/Alterations . . ....... ... ... . 36
Commercial/Additions & Alterations. ..................... 6
SwimmingPooIs . .......... 0
Demolitions. . ........ .o 6
Mobile Homes . ........ ... ... . 0

Department of Building Safety Year-to-Year Comparison

cal/mechanical/sign/sidewalk café/

Building Permits  Single Family (BundingFFi?rgits Only) Value
2015 134 25 $45,991 $9,645,108
2014 129 10 $38,847 $7,442,055
2013 128 1 $24173 $4,174,822
2012 157 6 $43,921 $7,864,411
2011 173 5 $40,193 $6,847,033
2010 175 2 $19,895 $2,686,741
2009 163 0 $14,692 $1,877,796

Total Permit Fees Collected: $59,237

255 Electrical, Plumbing & Mechanical Permits. Fees: $13,246.

Newmarket K-12 educators to help fund
environmental science related field trips
or educational opportunities.

Schanda Park continued to be a well
utilized part of Newmarket’s downtown
waterfront. The park was once again the
site of several popular Recreation Depart-
ment activities, Chick’s Weir, and saw the
occasional permitted event.

The Commission continued to pur-
chase composters, compost turners, and
rain barrels which we resell to area resi-
dents at cost. These products can help
recycle yard and kitchen waste and water
gardens with stored rain.

An invasive plant species removal
work session was held at the Piscassic-
Loiselle Conservation Property. The vol-
unteers pulled several large clumps of
Japanese Barberry which had established
near a seasonal stream in the woods. Our
goal is to minimize the spread of invasive
plants on Newmarket owned conserved

lands.

The Commission donated funds to
the Southeast Land Trust of New Hamp-
shire to aid in the stewardship of the Bald
Hill Open Space. The Commission also
pledged $10,000 towards the engineer-
ing study for the Lubberland Creek Cul-
vert Replacement Project which is being
spearheaded by The Nature Conservancy.

The Commission is continuing to
maintain established trails on conserved
properties. We encourage residents to
get outside and use/enjoy the conserved
properties in Newmarket.

Respectively submitted,
Jeff Goldknopf, Chairperson

Environmental Services

The Wastewater Department treated 160
million gallons of water for fiscal year
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2015. The Department removed 93% of the
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (food), 91%
of the Total Suspended Solids, and disin-
fected the water with sodium hypochlo-
rite to destroy pathogenic bacteria before
the water was discharged to the Lamprey
River. The EPA NPDES Permit requires
the Department to remove at least 85% of
the Biological Oxygen Demand and Total
Suspended Solids before discharging the
water into the Lamprey River.

The Wastewater Department began
work on the Wastewater Treatment Fa-
cility (WTF) Improvements Project. The
project will be completed in the spring of
2017, and will reduce the WTF Total Ni-
trogen discharge by 80 to 90 percent.

In 2015, the Department has com-
pleted and is using a Total Nitrogen
Tracking System. Department staff con-
tinues to work with the New Hampshire
Department of Environmental Services,
University of New Hampshire Storm
Center, and other communities to devel-
op a Total Nitrogen Accounting System.
The Department is required to have a
complete Total Nitrogen Control Plan by
September 30, 2017.

The Water Department pumped 139
million gallons of water into the water
system from its two gravel packed wells.
In fiscal year 2015, the unaccounted for
water is approximately 5% or 6.95 million
out of the 139 million gallons pumped.
The Sewall Well Pump Station pump was
replaced due to a vibration problem.

The distribution water was tested at
five locations in the distribution system
twice monthly for bacteria. The pump
stations are tested quarterly for inorganic,
synthetic organic, and volatile organic
compounds. In 2015, the bacteria tests
were clean, and the quarterly tests were
within the required limits.

The Water Department had four ma-
jor water breaks in 2015. The Dame Road,
Maplecrest, and New Road water breaks
took place within a twenty-four hour pe-
riod. The Bay Road water break required a
ten-foot section of pipe be replaced.

The Water Department replaced an
old 6-inch water main with a new 12-inch
on Route 108 from Bay Road to Simons
Lane. The old 6-inch water main had bro-
ken several times in recent years. The old
main had severe tuberculation inside the
pipe, and the pipe was brittle and broke
apart easily when it was removed. The
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new 12-inch water main can meet the fire
flows for the houses and businesses from
Bay Road to Simons Lane.

Should you have any questions or
comments, please contact me at 659-3093.

Respectfully submitted
Sean T. Greig
Superintendent Water and Sewer

Fire & Rescue

In 2015 the members of Newmarket Fire
& Rescue responded to 1089 calls, with a
breakdown of 765 EMS calls and 324 fire
calls.

The department currently has 42 vol-
unteer members, 2 full time employees,
and 1 part time employee. In 2015 our
volunteers logged 28,886 hours of duty
time covering the town.

The staff has been busy responding
to emergency calls, issuing burn permits,
maintaining the apparatus, training, and
assisting with fire prevention duties.

We continue to do educational and
fire prevention activities for the commu-
nity. If your scouting troop, school, busi-
ness, or neighborhood group is interested
in a tour of the department or having
someone speak to you, please contact the
fire station.

A little prevention goes a long way! If
there is a hydrant if front of your house
make sure it is always visible by clearing
away snow or tall grass. Make sure that
your address is clearly marked and visible
from the street. We highly recommend
using green signs with reflective num-
bers placed at the end of your driveway.
These signs are easy to spot either day or
night. Have your chimneys, furnaces, and
wood/pellet stoves cleaned and inspected
annually. Lastly, always remember to
make sure that your smoke detectors and
carbon monoxide detectors are operable
and that you replace your batteries twice
a year.

Please remember to get a permit be-
fore you light any outside fires, this in-
cludes fires in chimineas and fire rings.
Burn permits are issued at the fire station
Monday through Friday 7 A.m. to 5 p.M.
You can also now get a permit online at
www.nhdfl.org.

The Newmarket Fire and Rescue
is now on Facebook. Like our page for

important emergency information such
as road closures, school cancellations,
weather related events, as well as updates
about the department.

To learn more about Newmarket Fire
& Rescue visit our website at www.new-
marketnh.gov. If you have any questions
or concerns, please do not hesitate to con-
tact us at 659-3334.

On behalf of the members of New-
market Fire & Rescue I would like to
thank the community for supporting the
department throughout the year. Our
members are proud to serve the Town of
Newmarket, and are committed to pro-
viding quality care to those who call.

Respectfully Submitted,
Rick Malasky, Fire Chief

Public Library

2015 was another year of growth for the
Newmarket Public Library. Usage is up
in all categories including patron visits,
program attendance, interlibrary loan re-
quests, and public computer use. Our pa-
trons downloaded 5,689 free eBooks and
audiobooks through the NH Download-
able Consortium. There was a 5% increase
in total circulation and we added 472 new
patrons.

The library has continued to focus
on several significant maintenance is-
sues. The entire granite foundation, both
inside and outside, and the front portico
and steps have been repointed. We had a
severe leak last year, due to the copious
amount of snow on the roof, that caused
damage to the ceiling in the adult stack
area. The ceiling has been repaired, insu-
lation has been blown in to help mitigate
heat loss and heated wiring has been in-
stalled on the roof to help melt ice dams.

One of our goals last year was met by
moving the mystery collection into the
Tower room which opened up space for
the Young Adult collection with a seating
area. It is a pleasure to see that this space
is being used by young adults to study
and relax after school. Thank you to the
Friends of the Library for purchasing a
new chair for this area.

The following groups met at the New-
market Public Library: our book group
“Books ‘n Coffee”, Newmarket Knitters,
the Seacoast Modern Quilt Guild, the



Report of the Newmarket Public Library Treasurer for the Fiscal Year
July 1, 2014 —June 30, 2015

TD Bank (CD) Newmarket, NH* Peoples United Bank (CD) Durham, NH*

Beginning Balance $11,595.21 Beginning Balance $36,180.71
Interest $23.21 Interest $108.70
Ending Balance $11,618.42** Ending Balance $36,289.41**
Beginning Balance $9,575.84 Beginning Balance $5119.19
Interest $0.04 Interest $46.13
Ending Balance $9,575.88** Ending Balance $5165.32**
Beginning Balance $7,839.34 Beginning Balance $45,059.10
Interest $0.04 Interest $3.86
Ending Balance $7,839.38** Ending Balance $45,062.96*
Beginning Balance $53625.80 Beginning Balance $42,344.85
Interest $92.20 Interest $11.17
Deposits $32,000.00* Deposits $3,028.83
Ending Balance $85,718.00** Debits $35,040.95

Ending Balance $10,343.90

* Transferred from TD checking account 11/13/2014
** Funds listed with this symbol are held for the purpose of future library expansion needs.

Newmarket Public Library Detail of Library income and Expenditures
July 1,2014 — June 30, 2015

Detail Income

Detail Expenditures

Copier $1405.40 Brick Engraving $245.00
Donations $375.00 Lost Inter loan library book $26.98
Fax fees $3.03 Sign for library $295.00
Lost Book fees $309.90 5 Registrations for NHLTA Conference $325.00
Humanities Program Grants $666.00 6 memberships NHLTA $180.00
Sale Items $45.00 12 Personnel policy books $128.93
New card $2.00 2 State of NH Criminal Background checks $70.00
Reimbursement for book $42.50 Seacoast Laser Tech toner cartridges $344.00
Brick purchase $180.00 Televand Services Fax cards $44.85
Total $3028.83 Safety Deposit box rental $46.20
Flowers for staff member $58.99

Reimbursement for Humanities program $666.00

Replacement of all library locks $510.00

Staff recognition $100.00

Respectfully Submitted, Total $3040.95

Roderick D. Crepeau, Treasuret,
Newmarket Public Library
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Newmarket Garden Club, the Girl Scouts,
the Natasin dance group, Exeter Adult Ed-
ucation, Dover Adult Education, Seacoast
Reads, the Friends of the Newmarket Li-
brary group and the Library Trustees.

Last year residents took advantage
of free programs provided by the library.
These included a summer reading pro-
gram for children, free reading tutors
for elementary aged children (Seacoast
Reads), an on-going movie program with
movies shown weekly, 5 book groups, 6
musical events, a series of programs on
organic gardening, 2 puppet shows, infor-
mative talks on Medicare and Social Se-
curity, a workshop on how to paint Ukrai-
nian eggs, several beading workshops,
and author book talks by local authors
Willow Ferrin and Robert Curtis.

We also added three new regularly
scheduled children’s programs: Technol-
ogy Thursdays, Tales with Thelma and
Baby Lapsit. Technology Thursdays is a
service offered to those who need some
one-on-one help with downloading au-
dio or Ebooks, or with using their phone,
tablet or laptop. Help is available on a
walk-in basis on Thursdays from 2-4 p.M.
Children have been shown to improve
their reading skills by reading to regis-
tered therapy dogs. Thelma is a 4 year old
chocolate Labrador retriever. She is at the
library on Mondays at 4:00 p.m. Preschool
through 5th-Graders and their families
are invited to come in and read to Thelma
in the Children’s Room. Baby Lapsit is for
infants to 2 years old and is an opportuni-
ty for babies and their caregivers to gather
and enjoy boardbooks, songs and rhymes.

In addition to the programs above,
the Friends of the Newmarket Public Li-
brary sponsored two programs funded by
a grants from the New Hampshire Hu-
manities Council: The Ballad Lives! Sing-
ing the Roots of Narrative Art with John
Perrault and That Reminds Me of a Story
with Rebecca Rule. Both of these perfor-
mances were very well attended.

The theme for the Summer Read-
ing Program 2015 was Every Hero Has a
Story. Our children’s librarian visited the
Newmarket Elementary School and pro-
moted the summer reading program to
grades K-4. There were 84 participants.
The library applied for and received a
Kids, Books and Arts grant. This grant al-
lowed us to kickoft Every Hero Has a Story
with the Hampstead Stage Company. The
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children also learned about “earth he-
roes” presented by the Squam Lakes Nat-
ural Science Center. The 40 children in
attendance learned about the naturalists
Rachel Carson, John Weeks and James
Audubon which was tied into an animal
presentation.

Our Friends of the Library give gen-
erously of their time, talents and funds.
They have had a productive year and are
always looking for new Friends. Please vis-
it the library website newmarketlibrary.
org to find out more about the Friends of
the Library. The Friends are in charge of
library book sales from which proceeds
are used to support the library. They hold
a book sale monthly, please check the
website for dates and times. This year the
Friends generously funded several of our
programs and purchased three museum
passes for us: The Seacoast Science Cen-
ter, the Children’s Museum of NH and the
Currier Museum of Art. A big thanks to
the Friends for funding these passes and
for all of their support.

Thanks again for generous donations
made to the library during the course of
the year. We would also like to thank the
Public Works Department for the care of
the parking lot, walkways and grounds.
Thanks for our volunteers who donate
their time to help at the library in various
ways. The Newmarket Gardeners contin-
ue to maintain our library garden enjoyed
by staft and patrons alike.

Every resident of Newmarket is en-
titled to a library card and we invite you
to come and take advantage of the won-
derful programs and services that we of-
fer. Please come in, meet the staff and get

your library card. Visit us on our website
newmarketlibrary.org and on Facebook.

Statistics

« Added 472 new borrowers for a total
of 7,250 borrowers.

« Total collection items (includes
eBooks and downloadable
audiobooks): 42,370

o Circulation (checkout and renewals):
51,015

o Circulation Interlibrary Loan*
(checkout and renewals): 1,622

« Circulation eBooks and
downloadable audiobooks (checkout
and renewals): 5,689

* Interlibrary Loan (ILL) are items
that we borrow from other NH li-
braries for our patrons .

Respectfully Submitted,
Carrie R. Gadbois
Library Director

Police Department

The Newmarket Police Department’s dis-
patch center closed out 2015 with 17,446
calls for service. We conducted 335 Crim-
inal Investigations up from 263 in 2014.
Custodial Arrests were down slightly to-
taling 227 in 2015 compared to 251 dur-
ing 2014. Reportable motor vehicle acci-
dent totals increased with 115 reported
accidents in 2015 compared to 98 in 2014.

The Newmarket Police Department
remains committed to the strict enforce-
ment of drug laws to preserve the quality
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of life in our community. Illegal drug use
has continued to pose serious problems
for law enforcement in our country and
here in the Seacoast. We have seen an
upsurge in the amount of heroin cases
and the crimes associated with addiction
issues here in Newmarket and through-
out the State. This graph (right) illus-
trates the magnitude of this issue for our
community.

The highly addictive nature of heroin
and prescription pain medications fuels
many of the property crimes, thefts and
robberies. In addition heroin is some-
times mixed with fentanyl causing the
dose and strength of the drug to be un-
known to user. Recent State legislation
offers immunity from prosecution to
anyone calling for assistance in a drug
overdose, this is particularly important in
order to assist those addicted to the sub-
stances into treatment.

I'm proud to recognize that our com-
munity has come together to tackle this
drug addiction. The Newmarket Alliance
for Substance Abuse Prevention, (ASAP),
formed earlier this year, and made up of
a cross section of community members
representing all disciplines concerned
with this issue. The Coalition held a pub-
lic forum in October to educate members
about the nature and scope of this issue
and to identify the efforts underway to
combat addiction. Any resident interest-
ed in learning more about the addiction
problem issue or who is looking for help
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for a friend or family member can contact
the Police Department and we’ll put you
in contact with those who can help.

The department experienced some
turnover during 2015. Full-time Officer
Michael Worrick left us to pursue full-
time law enforcement employment out
of State. Mike did a great job for us here
and he will be sorely missed. We were
extremely proud to promote Dispatch-
er Zachary Wedgeworth as the newest
member of the patrol force. Zach recently
attended and graduated from the 168th
session of the NH Police Academy and is
currently undergoing field training. He
will make an excellent addition to our
very experienced team.
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Zachary Wedgeworth

I am happy to report that after a full
year since our initial decision to pur-
sue the grant for the CopSync911 School
Emergency Notification Software, that
the system was operational for the begin-
ning of the school. This software allows
all school staff in both the Junior Senior
High School and the Elementary School
to immediately contact law enforcement
directly from their classrooms in the event
of a critical emergency. It also allows law
enforcement to communicate directly to
the classrooms, to gain information about
the ongoing situation or to provide staff
with timely information and instructions.

There were several technical delays
that held up the completion of the soft-
ware installation but those have been
resolved. All staff and faculty members
from the High School have been trained
in the use of the software and the El-
ementary School Staff will be completely
trained by the end of this month.

I had an opportunity to work with
the software during a drill exercise in Au-
gust at the Stratham Cooperative Middle
School. It proved to be a valuable tool for
both educators and police under realis-
tic conditions. It will increase the safety
of students and staff at our two schools.
In the upcoming year we will continue to
work closely with the School Board, Ad-
ministrators, and Staff at both schools to
make improvements to building security
and safety.

With the recent public interest in gun
ownership, the department will be offer-
ing a firearms safety course free of charge
to residents. Course topics will cover
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firearms safety, the current federal and
state laws on responsible gun ownership
and use of force. The date for this training
has not been set but will be announced
in the early months of the year. Keep an
eye on the department’s web page and
Facebook page as well as the Newmarket’s
Town Newsletter for the upcoming date
and time. Depending upon interest we
are preparing to offer the course at several
times during the year.

In other Department news, School
Resource Officer Wayne Stevens recently
received National Practitioner Status
from the National Association of School
Resource Officers. This prestigious ac-
creditation status is granted to those offi-
cers who have attained a high level of spe-
cialized training and experience in their
field. National Practitioners are sought af-
ter to mentor and train new SRO’s and are
considered leaders in their field. There are
only a handful of NH Resource Officers to
receive this level of recognition.

In addition, Officer Stevens has also
received recognition as an expertin school
campus safety assessment. This certifica-
tion recognizes his expertise in the devel-
opment of school safety, emergency plans
and assessing the physical security of the
buildings. Wayne is one of only two offi-
cers in the State of New Hampshire that
holds this certification. We are very for-
tunate to have Wayne working here in
Newmarket with our students and school
staff. I congratulate him on achieving this
national recognition.

We would like to thank those resi-
dents who took the time to send cards,
baked goods and goodies to the police
station over the holidays and during Na-
tional Thank a Police Officer Week. The
thanks, words of encouragement and the
food were very much appreciated by all
of us. It shows us what great community
support we have and how lucky we are to
serve in Newmarket.

Our invitation to call us or visit the
police department remains open. We wel-
come the opportunity to answer questions
from our residents about how we conduct
business and look for input on how we
could better serve the community. Please
call us whenever we can be of assistance.

Respectfully Submitted,

Kevin P. Cyr
Chief of Police
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Public Works

The year began quiet with little to no snow
but that all changed on January 26" when
the first blizzard hit us with 34 inches of
snow. From the 26™ of January thru the
end of February crews worked nonstop
plowing snow or hauling it away from
the downtown area. The snow field be-
came full on Beech Street Extension and
we had to utilize the Carpenter Property
on South Main Street. By February 29
the town had received 121 inches of snow
from the winter blitz. Crews also had to
repair several water main breaks during
this period. The temperatures didn’t rise
above freezing for several weeks and it
caused a lot of problems for everyone.

No new sidewalks were construct-
ed this year. The Bennett Way sidewalk
project will begin in the spring of 2016.
Other projects completed included new
fire hydrants installed on Bay Road and
North Main Street at the Bridge and some
water services were replaced throughout
town. Crews spent two months demoing
the Carpenter Property for the school de-
partment. The house was burned by the
fire department. Crews then filled in the
foundation and removed all the concrete
pads, greenhouses and other debris that
was left behind. The site was then graded
and a gravel parking lot was constructed.
Crews also replaced some failing culverts
on Grant Road.

Ash Swamp Road had the finish wear-
ing course paved from the four corners to
#121 Ash Swamp Road. Once again, Bell
& Flynn, of Stratham, NH, was awarded
the Paving Program Contract. Due to the
dramatic rise in costs of fossil fuels, not as
many streets could be paved as scheduled.
This will affect the paving schedule in the
years to come unless additional funding is
allocated for the paving program.

Casella continues to collect our solid
waste and recyclables. Should residents
have questions, Casella’s phone number
is 603-693-2111. Please remember to have
your rubbish and recyclables at curbside
prior to 7 A.M. on your scheduled pick up
day. Curbside recycling decreased from
852 tons in 2014 to 821 tons in 2015. Pay-
per-bag decreased from 987 tons in 2014
to 905 tons in 2015. Spring Clean Up was
held again in May we collected 116 tons of
bulky waste. This was the first time spring
clean up was offered in three years.

The transfer station is open every
Saturday from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. year
around. Wednesday hours are: Summer
hours beginning the first Saturday in
April 12 p.m. to 6 P.M. and Winter hours
beginning the first Saturday in October
8 a.M. to 2 p.M.. Coupons may be pur-
chased by check or money order at the
transfer station or the town clerk’s office
in the town hall.

Should you have any questions or
concerns please contact the Newmarket
Public Works Department at 659-3093.

Respectfully submitted,
Rick Malasky
Director of Public Works

Recreation Department

Recreation Revenue in the revolving ac-
count in Fiscal Year 2015 added up to
$259,192.81. The forecasted amount of
revenue that the Recreation Department
projected to make in Fiscal Year 2015 was
$191,172.00 The Recreation Department
surpassed this projection by $68,017.00
in additional revenue collected which is
136% of the anticipated revenue. The Rec-
reation Department collected $4,861.20 in
the General Fund Revenue account. The
Recreation Department spent $159.888.50
in the revolving account leaving a
$31,283.50 balance. With additional rev-
enue and this cost savings from expenses,
the Recreation Department began Fiscal
Year 2016 with a $99,300.00 surplus. The
2015 General Fund was $204,114 and is
expected to shrink to $200,332.00 in fis-
cal year 2017. We invite you, our town
residents, to read what your Recreation
Department has accomplished in your
community in the year 2015.

2015 Rec Connect, the NEW Com-
munity, Relations, & Collaboration pro-
gram continues to provide great com-
munity communication. It alone helped
the department raised over $3,500 in
advertising via the Annual Recreation
Brochure and Community Info Guide
and Town Map insert (offered both on-
line and in print). The program also
helped to increase annual community
event sponsorship revenue by more than
$5000 by way of monetary donations,
collaboration efforts and in-kind service,
with other Newmarket organizations and



the Newmarket Business Association in
streamlining communications and the
sharing of community resources. Rec
Connect’s Community Calendar Page
on the Rec’s Website and Newmarket
NewBee Printed Information Packet, both
continue to receive rave reviews as a valu-
able resource providing new residents
all the latest “Buzz” regarding important
Newmarket community information in
a “one stop communication shopping.”
Last spring Rec Connect once again gave
back to the community by RECogniz-
ing several community leaders and busi-
nesses in town at the Annual Rec Connect
May Mixer. The Newmarket Rec Depart-
ment’s Rec Connect program was even
market presented at last year’s North-
ern New England Recreation and Parks
Conference. We are excited to announce
that several towns who attended the Rec
Connect presentation have since adopted
the very same program philosophy in
their town. Rec-Connect is committed to
try and expand its services to the Town
of Newmarket with little to no overhead
costs due to the very nature of its mission
and because it’s the right thing to do.
Recreation Cost Centers News:
The Recreation Department has been busy
expanding cost centers and adding new
revenue sources that will capture revenue
throughout the course of the year, and in-
crease traffic into the center and promote
other programs. The first cost center is the
Fun and Fit room for ages 5 and under.
The Recreation Department has had great
success with preschool programs over
the past 5 years and now is expanding
its offerings focusing on that population.
“Music and Fun for Everyone” is one of
our newest classes and includes an infant
class, 2 year olds and under class, and 3, 4,
and 5 year old class. This dedicated room
has a matted floor, plus lots of age appro-
priate play equipment for young children
to crawl under, through or slide down.
The usage of this room expanded greatly
in 2015 because of the long cold winter
we braved. When it is cold in the winter
or hot in the summer this room has lots
of visits. The second cost center is the Fit
and Flex Dance Studio. A wood laminate
floor was installed, ballet rails were fas-
tened to one wall, the room painted and
one wall is all mirrors. This room offers
many kinds of dance and fitness options
that have proven to be exciting to all ages.

Just a few of the exercise and dance offer-
ings now occurring include; Blooming
Ballerinas, Tap Dance, Dance Fit, Hip
Hop, theatre, Tai Chi, Yoga, and Ballroom
Dancing. The newest cost center that has
been added to the Recreation Department
is called The Hobby Center. It hosts pre-
schoolers in the morning during school
with crafts, big Legos, grade school chil-
dren in the afternoon with Wanna Iguana
Mondays, Leo League, Silly Science are
run by the Recreation Department. In the
evenings the Hobby Center will be open
(for a fee) to groups and clubs with adults
interested in meeting people who have in-
terests in a particular hobby and this op-
tion is in the works and has become a new
revenue source for the Recreation Depart-
ment. The Hobby Center has just begun to
scratch the surface of offering adults hob-
bies and interests that already exist in our
community but need a space to meet.

Rentals: The Recreation Depart-
ment was been busy in promoting and
then booking rental opportunities in or-
der in increase revenue. The department
added birthday parties to its offerings.
The A field that is used for baseball is now
available for rental and the Bl premier
softball field has been booked for one day
a week all summer with an outside league
that resulted in over $600.00 in rental
revenue, The Recreation Department
will rent the conference room, the multi-
purpose room, and the fit and fun room
in the Community Center. The outside
amenities were made available for rent-
als are the outdoor gazebo, the stage with
stadium hill seating, and the regulation
outdoor sand volleyball court.

2014 New and Innovative Seasonal
Recreation Programming

The fall soccer season began in Septem-
ber with 160 enrolled. This is the third
year addition to the Recreation Depart-
ment program offerings which was one
of the major contributors to the increase
in revenue for the department. The pro-
gram is run by all volunteer coaches and
coordinated by the department’s sports
coordinator. Sponsorships were offered to
several companies and this increased rev-
enue for the Recreation Department.

Star Performer Preschool soccer
program continued to bust at the seams
with Jean Holmes joining our staff as
the Sports Coordinator. The programs

include soccer, basketball, soft hockey,
and t-ball for 3 to 5 year olds.

The 5 and 6 year old Tee-Ball League
for children had 60 participants.

Granite State Track and Field is a
new program that took the place of Her-
shey Track and Field Newmarket Youth
Track Club also expanded and continues
to be sponsored by Loco Sports with new
uniforms. Hershey Track and Field had
its Regional meet at Dover High School
with 28 Newmarket track stars. Newmar-
ket won 4 first places at the Granite State
Track Meet in 2015.

Spring Flag combine Football and
the fall NFL Flag Football program grew
to 60 this year and the Recreation De-
partment plans to add a 7" and 8" grade
team next season. The players went to Gil-
lette Stadium this past spring and visited
“Patriots Place at “The Hall” of the New
England Patriots. This was a huge hit. All
the older players got NFL Patriots Jerseys
as their team jersey so the Recreation De-
partment had lots of Patriots teams and
that drove the increase in participation
as every player wanted to be Tom Brady
or Gronk after the Patriots won the Super
Bowl.

The Wanna Iguana Monday’s con-
tinued to thrive and the First Student bus
delivered thel4 participants right to the
Community Center at no extra charge.

Preschool Play Group continued to
be popular with 10 children coming regu-
larly every Monday- Wednesday and Fri-
day mornings and the younger group of 8
children meet on Tuesday and Thursdays.
This will change in 2016 as Kindergarten
will be a full day this school year so 5 year
old who were one of our largest preschool
group are now not available for program-
ming during the school day.

A Briefing on our 2014-2015 Seasonal
Special Events

On February 12, the 20" Annual Dad-
dy-Daughter Date Night took place at the
Rockingham Ballroom. Over 174 girls at-
tended the event with their escorts from
6:30-8:30 p.m. Over 400 participants at-
tended this event which proved to be the
largest turnout to date. The theme was “A
Winter Wonderland.” The Rockingham
Ballroom was transformed into the chil-
dren’s “Frozen” paradise with snow, white
and silver balloons and a spectacular fro-
zen castle. Girls of all ages danced the
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night away and made a snow wand as
their craft project. The girls were given
a necklace as they entered the ballroom
and a balloon when they left the ballroom
for the evening. The event was a huge hit
and continues to grow 21 years from its
inception.

The ‘Eggs-travaganza’ Egg Hunt was
a huge success again this year with over
500 residents attending the event. The
event took place at the Leo Landroche
Field Complex in April. There were over
4,000 eggs hidden and 3,000 of the eggs
utilized for the hunt were recycled from
last year’s hunt to cut expenses. The Rec-
reation Department continues to seek out
sponsors to pay for Community Events
as they are not self sufficient but many of
these events have taken place for years.

Mommy and Me Tea was a hit again
this year. The Tea is held at the Commu-
nity Center with moms and daughters
and grandmothers and granddaughters.
This year there was only one setting that
was sold out,

The 26" Annual Fishing Derby had
over 100 participants in 2015. The event
was tri-sponsored by the Recreation De-
partment, the Conservation Commission,
and Boy Scout Troop 200.

The Recreation Department ran its
26™ Annual Drive In at the Movies for
the camp and families of Newmarket over
200 parents and children attended this
special event.

The Halloween Haunt took place in
October from 1:00 - 4:30 p.M. The event
had many new games and activities locat-
ed at Schanda Park. The parade was huge
with over 2,000 children and parents who
attended and participated in the Hallow-
een Haunt events after.

The Mother Son Dance had a little
different twist this year and was themed
“A Magical Moment with Mom”. The pro-
gram began with a magic show and the
décor was magic in the air. There were
magic activities that occurred during the
evening followed by a dance. The depart-
ment was offered a volunteer DJ to help
defray the costs. The UNH Recreation
Management and Policy program class
ran the event for the department as part
of their grade requirements. The event
brought in over 60 boys and their moms
and surpassed the number of participants
from last year.

The Holiday Spirit came alive at
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Newmarket’s second “Very Merry Main
Street Celebration” and the Holiday Party
in the Mill space in Newmarket. There
were activities going on for all ages in the
in the Newmarket mill space! The Recre-
ation Department had record numbers at-
tending this year’s holiday party and con-
tinued to tripled the attendances of years
past. The 26™ Annual Giving Tree was
lit by Newmarket Town Council Chair
Dale Pike and was well attended by many
residents and dignitaries. The Giving Tree
marks the beginning of the Holiday Sea-
son and kicked off Operation Santa Claus.

Newmarket Recreation’s 2015
Summer Camp Program: Gamp Wanna
Iguana

The Recreation Department’s Wanna
Iguana Day Camp program had 240
campers and was sold out in May 2015.
The objective of a sold out camp was met
this year with many forms of online mar-
keting and by the department providing a
quality camp program last year. However,
word of mouth has driven the department
to sell out all spaces for Day Camp in 2015
to reap this revenue benefit. The camp was
very successful and camp numbers con-
tinue soar with most campers attending
camp every day. The camp was jammed
full of special events and wacky activities
that were planned out. Many thanks and
kudos to Aimee Gigandet, Assistant Rec-
reation Director, for stepping into the role
as Day Camp Director for the 4™ year in
a Tow.

Newmarket Recreation’s Sunrise
Sunset 55+ Activity Genter

The Sunrise Sunset Center has welcomed
many new people to the center this past
year. The number of day trips we’re plan-
ning has doubled and were seeing new
faces on every trip we take. The day trip-
pers have enjoyed everything from live
theatre & wine tours to museums & great
restaurants. Along with day trips there are
new programs happening at the Sunrise
Center, too. The African Marimba group,
played outside in the parking lot all sum-
mer long and now plays inside during the
colder weather. Tuesday Trivia has been
popular one Tuesday evening a month
and the Random Acts of Art Group meets
every Tuesday with many creative ladies
in the group. A new Whist Club that is
enjoying tournament play on Wednesday

afternoons and the Beyond the Last Page
Book Club, which utilizes the Newmarket
Public Library’s Reads To Go Program.
The Breakfast Club van is always full as we
travel around the Seacoast area one Friday
a month to have a social meal together.
Tuesday Talks have been consistent with
engaging guest speakers in many different
topics from local authors and storytellers
to historians and teachers. The Center has
added three new yearly events to the cen-
ter’s curriculum with a September Har-
vest Dinner Dance, a March Casino Night
and a Red Sox Opening Day party in the
spring. All have been fun and festive as
local community members come out to
partake in these seasonal gatherings. The
Bone Builders exercise group continues to
grow weekly with a large group of moti-
vated members. The Sunrise Sunset Cen-
ter took over the Vial for Life Emergency
Medical program from the Fire Dept. this
past year. The Program signed up many of
our seniors for what could be a lifesaving
program which consists of a simple pro-
cedure of having pertinent information
available for EMT’s in case of a medical
emergency. The center continues to be a
popular gathering place where our ma-
ture population can find companionship
& camaraderie together with recreational
fun.

We are here to Rec your Day in
Every Way by inviting each and every res-
ident of Newmarket to participate and en-
joy themselves in Newmarket Recreation
activities! In exchange we will continue
to create an inclusive recreation culture
so that all members of our community,
regardless of differences of background,
can participate in recreational outlets that
they can enjoy throughout the year.

Jim Hilton, Recreation Director;

Aimee Gigandet, Assistant Recreation
Director; Dee McCarthy, Office Manager;
Kim Tilton, Sunrise/Sunset Director

Veterans
Memorial Trust

The Newmarket Veteran’s Memorial
Trust oversees the establishment, main-
tenance, care, and improvements to
the town memorials honoring the resi-
dents of Newmarket that have served



our country in uniform. This past year
the committee has engaged in multiple
activities to ensure the continued main-
tenance of our memorials and work to-
wards a permanent memorial for those
veterans that served our nation since
World War II.

The year started with work restoring
the cannon that sits on the corner of Bay
Road and North Main Street adjacent to
the Corporal White Memorial. The can-
non now looks fresh and clean and serves
as a great piece of our gateway into the
downtown area. The committee also con-
ducted work on the Grand Army of the
Republic, or GAR Memorial that sits near
the Tiger Number Two Station on South
Main. Several cracks were repaired and
the memorial is back in tip top shape.

The committee also held its second
annual Armed Forces Day Gold Fund-
raiser to try to raise funds for the planned
memorial commemorating veterans of
WWII and the conflicts that have oc-
curred since. This year we held the fun-
draiser at Pease golf course. It was a great
success but we are pleased to announce
that this year we will be bringing the fun-
draiser back to town and will hold it at
“The Rock.”

Finally, the Committee conducted
a site walk and evaluation of the condi-
tion of all our memorials and noted the
work that is necessary to keep them in
good repair. The memorial in the most
need of maintenance is the Bandstand.
As the heart of our beautiful downtown
we recognize that its upkeep is one of our
highest charges and are working to en-
sure money is put aside to ensure it always
looks great while being fiscally respon-
sible at the same time.

It is an absolute honor to serve on
the Veteran’s Memorial Trust, an honor
because it provides the opportunity to
ensure we recognize those who bravely
stood up and said “send me” when their
country called, and an honor because of
the incredible people that choose to serve
on this committee. The committee mem-
bers work tirelessly and with little to no
fanfare, but they are truly heroes in their
own right.

I'd like to close with a reminder
that we are still working to ensure that a
permanent and proper memorial is cre-
ated for Newmarket service members that
were in World War II, Korea, Vietnam,

Afghanistan, Iraq, and all the other con-
flicts in between. Their sacrifices deserve
a fitting memorial and we continue to
work to raise funds to pay for this. If you
or someone you know is willing to help
donate to honor these great men and
women please contact the committee to
let us know.

Respectfully submitted,

Phil Nazarro, Chairman

Newmarket Veterans Memorial Trust
Committee

Town Clerk & Tax
Collector

...“to provide each of our residents with
professional Town Services in a timely and
courteous manner.”

Motor Vehicle and Boat Registrations
Again this year, motor vehicle revenue
continues a slow and steady rise, due to
the increased number of vehicles being
registered and the number of newer ve-
hicles being purchased. Additionally, our
office is on-line with the DMV for boat
registrations, allowing the capability and
efficiency to process renewal & new boat
registrations in the same manner as mo-
tor vehicles.

Property Taxes

The property tax year is April 1 to March
31. Taxes are billed twice yearly and are
typically due July 1 and December 1. The
July bill is an estimate, based on 50% of the
previous year’s tax rate. The State sets our
tax rate each fall based on town, school,
and county approved budgets and pro-
jected State revenues. The December bill
reflects the increase/decrease necessary
to collect the full amount set by the State.
Liens on unpaid taxes and water/sewer
amounts are generally perfected (secured)
in April through a statutory process. Tax
liens accrue interest at 18%. If tax liens
are not redeemed within 2 years, the Tax
Collector must deed the property to the
Town.

Online Payments...

Debit & Credit Cards

Credit Cards are accepted on-line and at
the counter (fees apply, charged by the

payment provider). The Town does not
incur/receive any fees for this service.
Online bill payment is available at www.
newmarketnh.gov. As always, checks and
cash are accepted forms of payment at our
counter.

Vital Records
Certified copies of the following New
Hampshire records are available at Town
Clerk’s Office:

o Birth Certificates/1982 — present

« Civil Union/2008 - 2009

o Death Certificates/1990 - present

« Divorce/1990 - 6 month from

present

o Marriage Certificates/1989 - present

o Civil Union Dissolutions/2008

- present

Some earlier birth, death, and mar-

riage records are also available.

Cost is $15/certified copy; $10 for
each additional copy purchased at same
time. Marriage Licenses are $50. Any
couple wishing to be married at Town
Hall during business hours (brief civil
ceremony by Justice of Peace) may do so
by appointment. Fee is $25 payable to the
Town.

Dogs
Licenses are due April 30" each year
(State Law). We typically have the licenses
available after January 1.
Fees:  $10.00 Male/Female
$ 7.50 Spayed/Neutered
$ 3.00 Senior Citizen (1 dog
only if own more than one)

Civil forfeitures ($30.00 per dog) are
issued to owners of dogs not licensed by
June 20. (RSA 466:14)

Water & Sewer

Billed monthly; payments are received
and processed in our office. Property tax
liens are executed in April for any unpaid
water and sewer bills. (See “Property Tax-
es” above)

Other Services

Safekeeping Town records, voter regis-
tration, facilitating and carrying out all
elections; transfer station coupons; trash
bags; recycle bins, tax map copies, town
regulations, wetland applications, ped-
dler & hawker permits, pole licenses, and
notary public.
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Town Clerk Financial Report Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending
30-June-15 30-June-14 30-June-13

Automobile Permits 1,282,501.56 1,221,888.32 1,112,378.00
Automobile Stickers 31,842.00 31,377.00 29,101.50
Municipal Transportation Improvement 50,300.00 49,395.00 47,095.00
Title Fees 4,038.00 3,928.00 3,496.00
Local MV Clerk Fee 10,311.00 10,142.00 9,634.00
Local MV Transfer Fee 3,890.00 3,630.00 2,910.00
Local MV Mail in Fee 7,316.00 7,100.00 7,215.00
Dog Licenses (Registrations & Late Fees) 6,595.00 9,681.50 9,474.00
Dog Fines 1,420.00 1,125.00 1,728.00
Vital Records (Town revenue only) 6,943.00 5,210.00 4,310.00
Returned Check Fees 290.08 187.77 357.75
Notary Fees 302.00 375.00 514.00
Landfill Permit Fees 580.00 475.00 503.00
Trash Bags 21,898.65 16,868.25 11,657.50
Recycle Bins 1,450.00 1,440.00 1,290.00
Copies & Sale of Booklets/Lists 1,079.10 1,194.4 2,078.00
Misc (UCC, Filing Fees, Junk Dealer, Peddler License,
Dredge & Fill) 4,139.07 1,022.68 2,076.61
Remitted to Town Treasurer $1,434,895.46 $1,365,039.92 $1,249,980.56
Remitted to State Treasurer

(Vital Records, Motor Vehicle & Dog Licensing) $503,085.54 $497,882.03 $485,084.46
Water & Sewer Fees Collected 2,033,648.41 1,924,254.79 1,941,848.55
TOTAL Non-Taxes* Remitted $3,971,629.41 $3,787,176.74 $3,676,913.57
Vehicles Registered 10,170 10,005 9,643
Dogs Licensed 1,293 1,306 1,236

* For Taxes remitted, see Tax Collector’s Report

Staff

Our staff continues to work diligently to
maintain our reputation of providing ef-
ficient and courteous service to all New-
market residents. Our very capable team
(Donna Dugal, Deputy Town Clerk-Tax
Collector, Judi Harvey & Nicole Maurice)
welcomes the opportunity to assist you.
Please feel free to contact us—by phone,
email, or in person—with any comments,
questions, or concerns regarding your
Town Clerk-Tax Collector Office. Togeth-
er we will continue to make Newmarket
a wonderful community in which to live
and work.
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Office Hours
Monday, Tuesday, & Thursday
7 A-M. to 5 P.M.
Wednesday 7 A.M. to 7 P.M.
Closed Fridays.
(A secure 24-hour payment drop box is
located on the right side of Town Hall
building.)

Respectfully submitted,
Terri J. Littlefield
Town Clerk-Tax Collector
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Established by state legislation in 1969 the regional planning commissions serve in an advisory role to local governments
and community organizations. The Strafford Regional Planning Commission is composed of eighteen municipalities
including all thirteen in Strafford County, three in Rockingham County, and two in Carroll County. Its mission is to assure
that the region is responsive to the needs of its residents through cooperative actions with municipalities and federal and
slate agencies, through the implementation of regional plans, and through local planning assistance. Together these actions
foster sustainable development and improve the quality of life in the region. The Commission’s professional staff provide
transportation, land use, economic development, hazard mitigation, water, public health, and natural resource planning

Strafford Regional Planning Commission 2015 Report

services; geographic information services (GIS); data collection and analysis; facilitation; and project management.

2015 Specific Accomplishments in Newmarket:

Completed a Road Surface Management System pilot study to assess road conditions in town.

Organized and facilitated two Newmarket LIVE visioning sessions (Local Interactive Visioning Exercise) to aid in
the development of master plan chapters.

Worked with municipal officials to identify vulnerable culverts that will receive a GIS hydrologic and hydraulic
modcling analyscs as part of a Coastal grant project of special merit.

Worked with the Newmarket Planning Board to develop master plan chapters. SRPC drafted, revised, and presented

two chapters of the Newmarket master plan: Housing & Demographics and the Vision Chapter for adoption. The
chapters were adopted in 2015. The Future Land Use Chapter will be completed in early 2016, with a draft ready in
December 2015.

Worked with Newmarket (in addition to other towns on the byway) to create a Mills Scenic Byway Committee.
Designed and prepared a map set for the Lamprey River Footpath Feasibility Study.

Met with Town staff to solicit transportation projects for the Statewide Ten Year Transportation Plan.
Distributed New Hampshire Planning and Land Use Regulation books to local land use boards.

Adopted an update to the Regional Master Plan — Local Solutions for the Strafford Region.

Adopted a Regional Broadband Plan and an updated Regional Housing Needs Assessment.

Goals for 2016 for the Region:

Provide technical assistance through mapping efforts.

Develop online web maps and applications for use by the public using ArcGIS online.

Carryout Brown[iclds assessment grant for the region.

Update the 2015-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan.

Carry out SHRP2 performance measure project with NHDOT, MPOs, our communities, and other stakeholders.
Continue to implement regional data collection and analysis in preparation for performance metrics.

Continue local transportation planning tasks in support of safety, mobility, and access management.

Use federal designation as an Economic Development District to provide municipalities with access to additional
infrastructure and program development grants.

Work with municipalities and businesses to attract new public and private investments to the Strafford region.
Provide technical assistance to communities updating their floodplain and/or stormwater regulations.

Pilot an accounting and tracking tool in order to assist the region in complying with MS4 requirements.
Continue to work with municipalities on efforts that improve drinking water protection.

Boost the implementation of green infrastructure projects.

| 50O WAKEFIELD STREET ' SUITE | 2 '+ ROCHESTER, NEw HAMPSHIRE O3867-1300
TEL; 603.994,3500 FaX; 603.994,3504 E-MAIL; SRPC(STRAFFORD.ORG
WWW . STRAFFORD.ORG
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Continue to provide education and outreach on multi- hazard mitigation strategies, and low impact development.
Continue development in the following three planning program areas to benefit the region’s communities:
energy/utilities, community health and safety, and resiliency to climate adaptation.

e Enhance public health in the region through participation on the Public Health Advisory Council and Executive
Committee for Strafford County.

We look forward to working with the citizens and officials of Newmarket in 2016. Thank you for the opportunity to serve
you and for your continuing support of regional planning. Further questions or comments can be referred to Cynthia
Copeland, AICP, Executive Director at cje@strafford.org. We can be found on Twitter and Facebook! We also have a blog
at http://strafford.org/magazine/.

Please visit our website at www.strafford.org for more information.

If you would like to receive E Bulletins from SRPC, please go to our home page of our website noted above.

Author: Cynthia Copeland, AICP, Executive Director

(%l
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Financial Reporting

New Hampshire 2015
Department of
Revenue Administration MS-61

Tax Collector's Report

Form Due Date: March 1 (Calendar Year), September 1 ( Fiscal Year)

Instructions
Cover Page

e Select the entity name from the pull down menu (County will automatically populate)
o Enter the year of the report
e Enter the preparer's information

For Assistance Please Contact:

NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
Phone: (603) 230-5090
Fax: (603) 230-5947
http://www.revenue.nh.gov/mun-prop/

ENTITY'S INFORMATION @

Municipality: INEWMARKET County: ROCKINGHAM

Report Year: 2014

PREPARER‘S.INFORMATION a

First Name Last Name

TERRI LITTLEFIELD

Street No. Street Name Phone Number
186 MAIN ST (603) 659-3073

Email (optional)

TLITTLEFIELD@NEWMARKETNH.GOV

MS-61v2.132015 Page 1 of 6
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New Hampshire 2015
Department of MS-61

Revenue Administration

Debits i

Lavy for Year " PriorLevies (Please Specify Years)
of this Report Year: | 2014 | Year: f Year: | |
Property Taxes 3110 | suas3so076] | |

Resident Taxes 3180 l_ ] | [

Uncollected Taxes Beginning of Year Account

Land Use Change Taxes 3120 l
Yield Taxes i e l [ | -} T
Excavation Tax 3187 [ l —%——-—L,-._____ — |

o T — 1 || |
Property Tax Credit Balance @ | J

Other Tax or Charges Credit Balance @ | I ]

Levy for Year Prior Levies
of this Report 2014

Property Taxes 3110 | $9,237,133.00 | l $9,124,412.00 |
Resident Taxes g0 [ I |
|
|
|
l
|

Taxes Committed This Year Account

Land Use Change Taxes 3120 | l $13,000.00

1 §292.28

51,0496 | | $135.06

| |
| |

Yield Taxes 3185

Excavation Tax 3187

Other Taxes 3189

| JC_ 1
[ hddtine |

Overpayment Refunds Account

Levy for Year - Prior Levies
of this Report 2014

Property Taxes 3110 | 516,412.81' $19,657.16 [ —|| _]

Resident Taxes 3180 i —l [ I I |
Land Use Change Taxes 3120 T | { ]
Yield Taxes 3185 ‘ |_ —l l |—.—_|

Excavation Tax 3187 ] | r l |
El I 1C | [ 1 |

Add Line |

Interest and Penalties on Delinquent Taxes 3190 | $8.23 | $44,274.36 I l | |
Interest and Penalf[es on Resident Taxes 3190 | l | | ! |

MS-61v2.13 2015 Page 2 of 6
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New Hampshire 2015
Department of MS-61

Revenue Administration

 LevyforVew
of this Report 2014

Property Taxes - | $6,512,525.56 | 510,592,2??.801 r ] [ |
Resident Taxes | | l ] |
I

Remitted to Treasurer

Land Use Change Taxes | $13,000.00 L —I |
Yield Taxes Ij' [ I I
Interest (Include Lien Conversion) [ s823| 544.2?4.36i [ 1 |
rerlis ] | | C | |
Excavation Tax “ ‘ $1,031.63 | | 513506 | [ |
] | 1
Conversion to Lien (Principal Only) [_ | ] l |
L

|| $16,28997 | | ||

a I Prepayments/Tax1 Overpayments ]

Add Line |

Discounts Allowed | | L | | ‘“

Levy for Year Prior Levies
of this Report 2014

il
— |
Property Taxes | ] | $19,002.15 | I ]
Resident Taxes l I I l
Land Use Change Taxes l | I
Yield Taxes l | r |
Excavation Tax l | I !
Other Taxes | L |
- || 1L |

. Add Line |

Current Levy Deeded | $4,170.00 ]

Abatements I'.'Iad'g

MS-61v2.13 2015 Page3 of 6
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New Hampshire 2015

Department Of Ms 61
Revenue Administration
Prior Levi
Uncollected Taxes - End of Year # 1080 Levy for Vear e
of this Report 2014
Property Taxes $2,736,850.25 | J I
Resident Taxes | | —I l

Land Use Change Taxes ’ | l —l l

Excavation Tax | $18.23 \ l

Other Taxes | | _ - ;_] K

I

Property Tax Credit Balance @ ) i | I_

Other Tax or Charges Credit Balance @ | J

MS-61v2.13 2015 Page 4 of 6
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New Hampshire 2015

Department of
Revenue Administration MS-61

Prior Levies (Please Specify Yearsj

Last Year's Levy
Year: 2013 Year: 2012 l Year: l 08-11
Unredeemed Liens Balance - Beginning of Year | $238,153.90 | l_ $130,01 S,Eﬂ $10,667.81

Liens Executed During Fiscal Year $281,216.78 l | } | _I
Interest & Costs Collected (After Lien Execution) I - $394.26 ’ | $16,260.42 l | $37,921.86 l | $3,259_.;6_h
| ] L I l

Add Line |

Total Debits $231,611.0i—| $254,414.32 I $167,940.11 I $13,927.17 I

Summary of éfedits
Last Year's Levy Prior Levies
2013 2012 08-11
e | $24.191 -OJ_ $101,008.77 | | $120,645.80 | | $5,308.84 |

L 1L 1
- AddLine | -

Interest & Costs qulected (After Lien Execution) #3190 | $394.26 $16,260.42 ! | $37,921.86 ] [_ $3,259.36 |
| ] | ] i

| |

Add Line |
Abatements of Unredeemed Liens $9,734. 03 | $7, 104.§| | ] L |

Liens Deeded to Municipality [ $9,054.33 | | $7,475. 13J [ §7,397.46 | |
Unredeemed Liens_ Balance - End of Year #1110 | $238,237.34 I | $122,475.15 | $1,974.99 I | $5,358.97

Total Credits $281,611.04 $254,414.32 $167,940.11 $13,927.17

MS-61v2.132015 Page 5 of 6
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New Hampshire 2015
Department of
Revenue Administration MS-61
1.CERTIFY THISFORM

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

Preparer's First Name Preparer's Last Name Date

Terri Littlefield 8/31/2015

ey s e

Please save and e-mail the completed PDF form to your Municipal Services Advisor:
Michelle Clark: michelle.clark@dra.nh.gov

Jamie Dow: jamie.dow@dra.nh.gov

Shelley Gerlarneau: shelley.gerlarneau@dra.nh.gov

Stephanie Derosier: stephanie.derosier@dra.nh.gov

mrares oo a———

3. PRINT, SIGN, AND UPLOAD THIS FORM
This completed PDF form must be PRINTED, SIGNED, SCANNED, and UPLOADED onto the Municipal Tax Rate
Setting Portal (MTRSP) at http://proptax.ora/nh/. If you have any questions, please contact your Municipal
Services Advisor.

PREPARER'S CERTIFICATION

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the information contained in this form and to the best
of my belief it is true, correct and complete.

Y T Yy-
Preparer's Signature and Title

MS-61v2.13 2015

46
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Treasurer’s Cash Report

Below are the bank accounts held by the Town Treasurer. Inter-bank activity has not been removed for this report.

Balance at Balance at
Bank Name Purpose 07/01/2014 Cash In Cash Out 06/30/2015

TD Bank Payroll 1,125.56 3,369,057.88 3,352,465.24 17,718.20
TD Bank Operating 11,647,864.54 25,914,859.95 25,954,358.41 11,608,366.08
TD Bank Collectors Account 951,769.58 22,554,369.00 23,164,384.71 341,753.87
TD Bank Veterans Trust Donations 0.00 6,265.00 1,477.80 4,787.20
Citizens Banks General Fund 26,465.56 2.65 0.00 26,468.21
Citizens Banks Verizon Tower Fund 2,516.71 0.24 0.00 2,516.95
Citizens Banks Impact Fees 275,581.70 102,789.93 66,638.39 311,733.24
PDIP Library 31,695.67 3.64 0.00 31,699.31
PDIP Pistol Permit 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00
PDIP Recreation 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00
PDIP Local Drug Forfeiture 3,573.51 0.02 0.00 3,973.53
PDIP Harvest Way Bond 5,422.94 0.03 0.00 5,422.97
PDIP Winslow Drive Escrow 572.66 0.00 0.00 572.66
Citizens Banks Ambulance Revolving 204,829.91 45,024.55 0.00 249,854.46
TD Bank Wast Water Treatment Facility 0.00 319,484.50 319,484.50 0.00
PDIP Cons.Comm. Schanda 764.08 0.00 0.00 764.08
TD Bank Federal Drug Forfeiture 29,644.15 23.71 0.00 29,667.86
TD Bank Open Space 140,120.11 210.34 0.00 140,330.45

Trustee of Trust Funds

Summary of Trusts
As of June 30, 2015

$13,322,271.68

$52,312,091.44

$52,858,809.05

$12,775,554.07

Principal Income Total
Stone Fund 2,631.45 6,901.41 9,532.86
Graveyard Fund 31,953.14 32,611.70 64,564.84
Riverside Expendable 8,201.76 4,806.71 13,008.47
Calvary Flower Fund 15,960.08 3,877.98 19,838.06
Calvary Cemetery 68,539.20 11,751.13 80,290.33
Riverside Cemetery Graves 164,839.80 9,708.20 174,548.00
Riverside Cemetery Flower Funds 39,412.42 4,611.36 44,023.78
Riverside Cemetery Lots 260,134.54 68,306.98 328,441.52
Other 488,533.15 3,845.09 492,378.24
Capital Reserve Funds 5,865,032.63 523,975.18 6,389,007.81
Total $6,945,238.17 $670,395.74 $7,615,633.91

Note: This is a condensed statement of trust funds.

2015 Annual Report | Town of Newmarket 47



Statement of Debht

As of June 30, 2015

The Town issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds

currently outstanding are as follows:

Amount Outstanding
as of 06/30/15

General Obligation Debt

Governmental Activities:

Serial Maturities Through

Interest Rate(s) %

Open space land acquisition 01/15/2023 4.25-4.90% $800,000
Downtown TIF improvements 01/15/2023 4.25-4.90% 600,000
Total Governmental Activities 1,400,000
Business-Type Activities:

Creighton Street pump/outfall 01/01/2022 3.704% 553,280
Drinking water state revolving fund loan 11/1/2015 0.895% 54,699
Clean water state revolving loan fund 10/1/2031 3.104% 399,500
Total Business-Type Activities 1,007,479
Total general obligation debt $2,407,479

The annual payments to retire all general obligation long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental Principal Interest Total
2016 $175,000 $59,783 $234,783
2017 175,000 52,063 227,063
2018 175,000 44,188 219,188
2019 175,000 35,094 210,094
2020 175,000 22,805 197,805
2021-2023 525,000 29,249 554,249
Total $1,400,000 $243,182 $1,643,182
Business-Type Principal Interest Total
2016 $157,239 $33,384 $190,623
2017 102,540 29,237 131,777
2018 102,540 25,580 128,120
2019 102,540 21,923 124,463
2020 102,540 18,266 120,806
2021-2025 275,580 45,255 320,835
20262030 117,500 18,236 135,736
2031-2032 47,000 2,188 49,188
Total $1,007,479 $194,069 $1,201,548
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2015

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments S 15,081,799 S 725,185 S 15,806,984
Investments - 790,458 790,458
Receivables:
Taxes 3,123,102 - 3,123,102
Intergovernmental - 46,748 46,748
Other 80,078 27,728 107,806
Due from other funds 211,394 529,295 740,689
Other assets 40,668 - 40,668
TOTAL ASSETS S 18,537,041 §$ 2,119,414 S 20,656,455
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 234,797 $ 19,665 S 254,462
Due to other governments 7,005,439 - 7,005,439
Due to other funds 3,034,273 134,734 3,169,007
Other Liabilities 432,849 9,490 442,339
TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,707,358 163,889 10,871,247
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 2,648,356 25,883 2,674,239
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 40,668 611,325 651,993
Restricted - 666,036 666,036
Committed 2,767,846 494,163 3,262,009
Assigned 24,714 158,118 182,832
Unassigned 2,348,099 - 2,348,099
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5,181,327 1,929,642 7,110,969

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES S 18,537,041

S 2,119,414 $ 20,656,455

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 4,321,689 S 6,500 S 4,328,189
Licenses, permits, and fees 1,600,866 11,160 1,612,026
Intergovernmental 623,042 156,783 779,825
Charges for service 273,115 384,582 657,697
Miscellaneous 141,871 152,007 293,878
Total Revenues 6,960,583 711,032 7,671,615
Expenditures:
Current
General government 2,808,798 14,706 2,823,504
Public safety 1,679,288 111,099 1,790,387
Highway and streets 1,124,535 26,636 1,151,171
Welfare 71,916 - 71,916
Culture and recreation 269,614 488,715 758,329
Conservation 18,977 1,561 20,538
Debt service:
Principal 175,000 - 175,000
Interest 67,288 - 67,288
Capital outlay 423,966 138,686 562,652
Total Expenditures 6,639,382 781,403 7,420,785
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 321,201 (70,371) 250,830
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in B 304,273 304,273
Transfers out (510,048) - (510,048)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (510,048) 304,273 (205,775)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses (188,847) 233,902 45,055
Fund Equity, at Beginning of Year, as adjusted 5,370,174 1,695,740 7,065,914
Fund Equity, at End of Year S 5,181,327 $§ 1,929,642 $ 7,110,969

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds
Solid
Water Wastewater Waste Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 1,545,840 S 845,923 $ - $ 2,391,763
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
User fees 205,077 354,305 27,116 586,498
Intergovernmental 160,175 19,535 - 179,710
Due from other funds 898,807 1,270,074 265,379 2,434,260
Total current assets 2,809,899 2,489,837 292,495 5,592,231
Moncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental - 132,058 - 132,058
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 1,405,551 1,617,251 - 3,022,802
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 3,346,820 2,676,425 - 6,023,245
Total noncurrent assets 4,752,371 4,425,734 - 9,178,105
TOTAL ASSETS 7,562,270 6,915,571 292,495 14,770,336
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 17,889 25,469 = 43,358
TOTAL ASSETS DEFERRED AND
OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES $ 7,580,159 $ 6,941,040 $ 292,495 $ 14,813,694
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable S 371,612 3 34,638 s 29,837 s 436,087
Due to other funds - 36,066 - 36,066
Other Liabilities 3,805 27,406 215 31,426
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Bonds payable 54,699 102,540 - 157,239
Other liabilities 25,218 8,264 28,797 62,279
Total current liabilities 455,334 208,914 58,849 723,097
Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion - 850,240 - 850,240
Other Liabilities, net of current portion 845,273 1,053,444 230,376 2,129,093
Net pension liability, net of current portion 287,217 332,769 - 619,986
Total nencurrent liabilities 1,132,490 2,236,453 230,376 3,599,319
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,587,824 2,445,367 289,225 4,322,416
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 28,567 33,097 - 61,664
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,039,533 3,279,940 - 7,319,473
Unrestricted 1,924,235 1,182,636 3,270 3,110,141
TOTAL NET POSITION 5,963,768 4,462,576 3,270 10,429,614
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 7,580,159 S 6,941,040 $ 292,495 $ 14,813,694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Solid
Water Wastewater Waste Total
Operating revenues:

Charges for service S 949,804 $ 1,439,133 S 233,832 $ 2,622,769

Total Operating Revenues 949,804 1,439,133 233,832 2,622,769
Operating Expenses:

Operating expenses 437,503 719,549 424,728 1,581,780

Depreciation 160,883 156,917 - 317,800
Total Operating Expenses 598,386 876,466 424,728 1,899,580
Operating Income (Loss) 351,418 562,667 (190,896) 723,189

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Intergovernmental 323,137 22,483 - 345,620

Investment income 4,323 6,928 378 11,629

Interest expense (726) (41,444) - (42,170)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses), net 326,734 (12,033) 378 315,079
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 678,152 550,634 (190,518) 1,038,268

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in - - 205,775 205,775
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 205,775 205,775
Change in Net Position 678,152 550,634 15,257 1,244,043

Fund Equity, at Beginning of Year 5,285,616 3,911,942 (11,987) 9,185,571
Fund Equity, at End of Year $ 5,963,768 $ 4,462,576 S 3,270 $ 10,429,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Solid
Water Wastewater Waste Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and users S 944,147 $ 1,395,567 s 224,436 S 2,564,150
Payments to vendors and employees (158,641) (888,560) (427,055) (1,474,256)
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities 785,506 507,007 (202,619) 1,089,894
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Interfund borrowing 241,936 (509,556) 13,062 (254,558)
Other noncapital financing - - (16,596) (16,596)
Interfund transfer - - 205,775 205,775
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Noncapital Financing Activities 241,936 (509,556) 202,241 (65,379)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital debt 388,914 821,419 - 1,210,333
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (946,136) (803,678) - (1,749,814)
Payments from State (66,541) 200,235 - 133,694
Princiapl payments on bonds and notes (54,213) (102,540) - (156,753)
Interest expense (6,345) (41,444) - (47,789)
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Capital and Financing Activities (684,321) 73,992 - (610,329)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment income 4,323 14,556 378 19,257
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Investing Activities 4,323 14,556 378 19,257
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments 347,444 85,999 - 433,443
Cash and Short-Term Investments, at Beginning of Year 1,198,396 759,924 - 1,958,320
Cash and Short-Term Investments, at End of Year $ 1,545,840 -1 845,923 s - $ 2,391,763
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities:
Operating Income (loss) S 351,418 s 562,667 S (190,896) S 723,189
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 160,883 156,917 ] 317,800
Changes in assets and liabilities:
User fees (5,657) (43,566) {9,396) (58,619)
Accounts payable 278,566 (174,832) (2,333) 101,401
Accrued liabilities 296 5,821 6 6,123
Other liabilities - - - -
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities S 785,506 s 507,007 $ (202,619) $ 1,089,894

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015
Private
Purpose
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments S - S 1,235,392
Investments 529,554 -
Due from other funds - 30,124
TOTAL ASSETS 529,554 1,265,516
LIABILITIES
Other Liabilities - 1,265,516
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 1,265,516
NET POSITION
Total net assets held in trust S 529,554 S -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Private
Purpose
Trust
Funds
Additions:
Investment income (loss)
Additions S -
Investment income (25,805)
Net investment income (loss) (25,805)
Total Additions (25,805)
Deductions:
Deductions 18,310
Total deductions 18,310
Total Expenditures 18,310
Net increase (decrease) (44,115)
Net position:
Beginning of year 573,669
End of year S 529,554

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Auditor’s Report

PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association/dccountants & Auditors

ain Street o cord « New Ha i 5- :

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the Town Council
Town of Newmarket
Newmarket, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, major funds, and
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Newmarket as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are fiee from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, business-type activities, major funds, and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Newmarket as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information - Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (pages 3 through 10) and the Schedule of Funding Progress for Other
Postemployment Benefit Plan (page 43) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers them to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
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historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information - Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Newmarket’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The combining and individual fund financial schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund
financial schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

4Mm

July 13,2015
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Town of Newmarket Resolutions

Resolution #
2014-2015-01

2014-2015-02

2014-2015-03

2014-2015-04

2014-2015-05

2014-2015-06

2014-2015-07

2014-2015-08

2014-2015-09

2014-2015-10

2014-2015-11

2014-2015-12

2014-2015-13

2014-2015-14

2014-2015-15

2014-2015-16

Fiscal Year 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2015

Authorizing the Agreement with Wright-Pierce for Engineering Services
for the Final Design of the Waste Water Treatment Facility (Passed July
16,2014)

Custodial Services for Town Maintained Buildings (Passed July 16,
2014)

Formation of a Macallen Dam Study Committee (Passed August 20,
2014)

Increase in Sewer Rates (Passed September 3, 2014)

Awarding #2 Heating Oil, Liquid Propane, Regular Gasoline, and Clear
Diesel Contracts (Passed August 20, 2014)

Household Hazardous Waste (Passed September 3, 2014)

Amendment to the Town Charter To Appropriate Money to Capital
Reserve Funds (Did Not Pass)

Amending the Town Personnel Policy Prohibiting the Use of Mobile
Communications Devices While Driving (Passed September 17, 2014)

Withdrawal of $2,140 from the Cemetery Capital Reserve Fund (Passed
September 17, 2014)

Withdrawal Not to Exceed $10,000 to Replace the Carpeting in the Town
Hall Auditorium (Passed September 17, 2014)

Relating to HVAC Maintenance Services (Passed September 17, 2014)

Accepting an Emergency Management Performance Grant for School
Emergency Management System (Passed September 17, 2014)

Authorizing the Upgrades to the Fleet IFuel Maintenance Software and
Hardware System (Passed September 17, 2014)

Approval of 2014 MS-535 — Financial Report (Passed October 1,
2014)

Purchase of an International Truck and Related Equipment (Passed
October 1, 2014)

Commencing the Cable Franchise Agreement Renewal Process with
Comcast (Passed September 17, 2014)

Town of Newmarket Resolutions

Page 3
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2014-2015-17

2014-2015-18

2014-2015-19

2014-2015-20

2014-2015-21

2014-2015-22

2014-2015-23

2014-2015-24

2014-2015-25

2014-2015-26

2014-2015-27

2014-2015-28

2014-2015-29

2014-2015-30

2014-2015-31

Setting the Polling Hours for the November 4, 2014 State General Election
(Passed October 1,2014)

Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter Into a Contract with
Connery Associates for Economic Development Committee (Passed
October 15, 2014)

Approval of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget (Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to the Town of Newmarket Tri-Centennial
Expendable Trust Fund (Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to the Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to the Police Vehicle Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to the Police Dispatch Capital Reserve
Fund (Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to Macallen Dam Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to Storm Water Management Capital
Reserve Fund (Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Contribution to Public Works Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Creation and Contribution to the Master Plan Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Recommending a Confribution to the Compensated Absences Capital
Reserve I'und (Passed November 5, 2014)

Creation and Contribution to the Road Maintenance Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed November 5, 2014)

Transferring Funds from the Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund (Passed
December 3, 2014)

Town of Newmarket Resolutions Page 4
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2014-2015-32

2014-2014-33

2014-2015-34

2014-2015-35

2014-2015-36

2014/2015-37

2014-2015-38

2014-2015-39

2014-2015-40

2014-2015-41

2014-2015-42

2014-2015-43

2014-2015-44

2014-2015-45

Authorize Town Administrator to Enter into Two Contract Amendments
with Hazen and Sawyer for Engineering Services Regarding MacIntosh
Well (Tabled December 3, 2014)

Contract for Albanese D&S to Install a New 12-Inch Water Main on North
Main Street from Bay Road to Simons Lane (Passed December 17, 2014)

A Grant to Study Building Resilience to Flooding and Climate Change in
the Moonlight Brook Watershed (Passed December 17, 2014)

An Amendment to the Town Charter Relative to Appropriating Money to
Capital Reserve Funds (Passed December 17, 2014)

Authorize the Town Administrator to Enter Into Two Contract
Amendments with Hazen and Sawyer, P.C. for Engineering Services
Related to the Development of the MacIntosh Well (Passed January 7,
2015)

Acceptance of Fox Hollow Drive as a Town Road (Passed January 7,
2015)

Dedication and the Naming of the Large Room Located in the Sunrise
Sunset Center for Martha Sandy McNeil (Passed January 21, 2015)

Approval of the Fiscal Year 2016 Default Budget (Passed January 21,
2015)

Approving the Cutting of Trees Along a Scenic Road — Bay Road (Passed
January 21, 2015)

Approving the North Main Street Water Main Replacement Construction
Budget (Passed February 4, 2015)

Authorize the Town Administrator to Enter into an Agreement with
Wright-Pierce for Project Management and Oversight Services Related to
the North Main Street Water Main Replacement Project (Passed
February 4, 2015)

Record Retention Policy (Passed February 18, 2015)

Authorize the Town Administrator to Enter into an Agreement for Audit
Services for Fiscal Year 2015 (Passed February 18, 2015)

Town Administrator to Solicit Proposals for a Management,
Organizational Structure, and Efficiency Study for all Town Departments
(Passed March 4, 2015)

Town of Newmarket Resolutions

Page 5
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2014-2015-46

2014-2015-47

2014-2015-48

2014-2015-49

2014-2015-50

2014-2015-51

2014-2015-52

2014-2015-53

2014-2015-54

2014-2015-55

2014-2015-56

2014-2015-57

2014-2015-58

2014-2015-59

2014-2015-60

Town of Newmarket Resolutions

Naming Certain Streets in Town — Hayden Place (Passed March 18,
2015)

Agreement with Wright Pierce for Bidding Services for WWTP
Improvement Project (Passed April 1, 2015)

DBU Construction Perform Horizontal Directional Drill for MacIntosh
Well Project (Passed April 1, 2015)

Town Council Rules for Proceedings ( ’D oAl e{_ \JM/M. 17,30"5’

Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter Into a Payment In Lieu of
Taxes Agreement with Great Bay Kids Company (Passed May 6, 2015)

Replacement of Doors at Recreation Center (Passed May 6, 2015)

Authorize the Town Administrator to Enter into an Agreement with
Northeast Earth Mechanics to Install 16-Inch Water Main from Route 108
to Great Hill Water Tower (Passed May 20, 2015)

Relating to the Town’s Investment Policy (Passed May 20, 2015)
Auditorium Equipment - Channel 13 (Passed June 3, 2015)

Purchase Air Conditioning Unit for Police Dispatch Center (Passed May
20, 2015)

Purchase Motorola APX 6500LI VHF 100 Watt Digital Mobile Radio for
Police Department (Passed June 3, 2015)

Purchase Ford Police Cruiser for the Police Department to Include Costs
Associated with Replacement of Emergency Lighting and Equipment
Setup (Passed June 3, 2015)

Purchase APC Symetra Power Module to Replace Similar Unit in the
Police/Dispatch Center (Passed June 3, 2015)

Purchase of Two Nitronox Field Units for Fire/Rescue Department
(Passed June 3, 2015)

Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with
Wright-Pierce Engineers for Construction Services and Oversight for the
Wastewater Treatment Plan Upgrade Project (Passed June 3, 2015)

Page 6
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2014-2015-61

2014-2015-62

2014-2015-63

2014-2015-64

2014-2015-65

Authorize the Town Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with Apex
Construction to Construct the Town of Newmarket Wastewater Treatment
Facility Upgrade Project (Passed June 3, 2015)

Transferring Funds from the Downtown TIF Capital Reserve Fund
(Passed June 3, 2015)

Fiscal Year 2015 Year-End Budget Transfers (Passed June 3, 2015)

Purchase of a Chevrolet Pickup Truck for Public Works (Passed June 17,
2015)

The Purchase of a Mahindra 1538 HST Tractor for Public Works (Passed

June 17, 2015)

2014-2015-66

Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter Into an Agreement with Tri

State Curb for Installation of Granite Curb Stone for Bennett Way (Did

Not Pass)

NOTICE

If you own real estate lots that
were involuntarily merged by
municipal action, you may be able
to have those lots restored to their
pre-merger status.

Your property may qualify if two or more lots
were merged for zoning, assessing, or taxation
purposes and the merger occurred:
e During your ownership, without your consent; or
e Prior to your ownership, if no previous owner
consented to the merger.

To restore your property to pre-merger status,
you must:

e Make a request to the local governing body

¢ No later than December 31,2016

Once restored:

Your properties will once again become separate lots;
however, they must still conform to applicable land use
ordinances. Restoration does not cure non-conformity.

Read the full statute at RSA 674:39-aa Restoration of
Involuntarily Merged Lots.

TOWN OF NEWMARKET
ORDINANCES

Fiscal Year 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2015

Ordinances #
2014-2015-01 Water Regulations

(Passed December 17, 2014)
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Monday
Barberry Coast
Bass Street

Bay Road
Bayview Drive
Beech Street
Beech Street Ext.
Boardman Avenue
Carolyn Drive
Cedar Street
Central Street
Chapel Street
Church Street
Cushing Road
Dame Road

Elder Street

Elm Court

Elm Street

Forest Street
Gilman Avenue
Gonet Drive
Granite Street
Grape Street

Ham Street

Ham Street Ext.
Lafayette Avenue
Lamprey Street
Lincoln Avenue
Main Street
Mastin Drive
Moody Point Road
Nichols Avenue
North Main Street
Oak Knoll
Packers Falls Road
Pine Street
Piscassic Street
River Street
Riverbend Road
Rock Street
Salmon Street
Sanborn Avenue
Smith-Garrison Road
South Street
Spring Street
Stevens Drive
Washington Street
Water Street
Woods Drive

Curbside Pick-Up Schedule
Town of Newmarket

Tuesday
Bennett Way
Birch Drive
Brandon Drive
Colonial Drive
Creighton Street
Day Break Drive
Durell Drive
Edwin Lane
Exeter Street/Rte. 108
Folsom Drive
Forbes Road
Gerry Avenue
Great Hill Drive
Great Hill Terrace/
Gordon Avenue
Hersey Lane
Huckins Drive
Kimball Way
Ladyslipper Drive
Ledgeview Drive
Lita Lane
Maple Street
Maplecrest
Mockingbird Lane
Moonlight Drive
Mount Pleasant Street
New Road
Oak Street
Pond Street
Prescott Street
Railroad Avenue
Sandy Lane
Sewall Lane
Short Street
South Main Street
Stanorm Drive
Tasker Lane
Wadleigh Falls Road/
Rte. 152
Young’s Lane

Wednesday
Alyce Drive
Ash Swamp Road
Bald Hill Road
Beatrice Lane
Balsam Way
Briallia Circle
Camp Lee Road
Candice Lane
Channing Way
Doe Farm Lane
Fogg Circle
Fox Hollow
Grant Road
Hamel Farm Drive
Harvest Way
Heartwood Circle
Hersey Lane
(Grant Rd. side)
Hilton Drive
Jacob’s Well Road
Johnson Drive
Joy Farm Lane
Kielty Drive
Lang’s Lane
Lee Hook Road
Madison Lane
Merrill Lane
Neal Mill Road
Norton Wood
Pendergast Road
Raymond Lane
Schanda Drive
Shady Lane
Turkey Ridge Road
Wadleigh Falls Road/
Rte. 152
Wiggin Drive
Winslow Drive
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2016 Town Warrant and Budget

TOWN of NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE

TOWN MEETING WARRANT

To the inhabitants of the Town of Newmarket, County of Rockingham, in the State of New Hampshire,

qualified to vote in Town affairs:

FIRST SESSION

You are hereby notified to meet for the First (Deliberative) Session of the annual budgetary town
meeting, to be held at the Newmarket Town Hall, Newmarket, NH on the thirtieth day of January 2016
being a Saturday, at nine o’clock in the forenoon (9:00 A.M.) The First (Deliberative) Session will consist
of explanation, discussion, and debate of each of the following warrant articles, and will afford those
voters who are present the opportunity to propose, debate and adopt amendments to each warrant article,

except those articles whose wording is prescribed by state law.

SECOND SESSION

You are also notified to meet for the Second Session of the annual town meeting, to elect town officers by
official ballot and to vote by official ballot on the warrant articles as they may have been amended at the
First Session, to be held at the Newmarket Town Hall, Newmarket NH, on the eight day of March 2016,
being Tuesday, at seven o'clock in the forenoon (the polls are to be open at 7:00 A.M. and may not close

prior to 7:00 P.M.) to act upon the following:

Article T- 1. To choose the following officers for the coming year:

Two Towin Councilors .. aismanmms s hieii i Three Years
ONE ToWn Moterator: ..o s i i o sl o sebisnts anmmesinare Two Years
Three Municipal Budget Committee MemDETIS.........cocevvereererererreniessvssnererssnens Three Years
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One Supervisor of the Checklist .............ccvineriiereiinererreineneseee e e ssesnes Four Years

One Supervisor of the Checklist .........ccociiireiiiiiniciciir e Six Years
Two Planning Board MEmDEIS ..........cccvruerinerieenniieseierneeeensnsssnenssessnssessens Three Years
One Trustee of the Trust FUNAS........c.covviieiiinieiniiisece e s One Year
One Trustee of the Trust FUnds............coviiiniiiiisicceisesicncssnivene Two Years
One Trustee of the Trust Punds..........o.cuwsmmasoimssnsmissnsssrssmessssesss Three Years

Article T-2. To see if the Town will raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including
appropriations by special warrant articles, the amounts set forth on the budget posted with
the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth therein,
totaling $9,996,942? Should this article be defeated, the default budget shall be
$9,895,953, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments required by previous
action of the Town or by law; or the Town Council may hold one special meeting, in
accordance with RSA 40:13, X and XV, to take up the issue of a revised operating budget
only. If passed, it is estimated that passage of this article will amount to $6.33 of the tax
rate, which is a thirty-one cent increase over the previous year. If the article is defeated,
the default budget will amount to $6.19, which is an eighteen cent increase over the
previous year. (Majority vote required) Recommended by the Municipal Budget
Committee 10-0.Recommended by the Town Council 7-0.

Given under our hands and seals thisZ0 day of January, in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and
Sixteen.

Town Council, Town of Newmarket, NH

Philip Nazzaro, Chair Gary Levy, Vice Chair
A 26~ Lot Pelbinurn
Agrfy Burns, Councilor Larry &ckering, Couidlor
mﬂﬁé\-——ﬁ
Dale Pike, Councilor Amy Thompson, Couficilor

TMeutie N

Toni Weinstein, Councilor
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A true copy attest:
Town Council, Town of Newmarket, NH

Philip Nazzaro, Chair

F 1 -

N

Anly Burns, Councilor

Dale Pike, Councilor

TouupreRy—

Toni Weinstein Councilor

Gary Levy, Vice Chiir \)
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CERTIFICATE OF POSTING

January é’/ ,2016

I do hereby certify that on the £ / day of January, 2016, an attested copy of the within warrant was
posted at the place of meeting within named Newmarket Town Hall and posted a like copy at the

Newmarket Post Office, and Newmarket Public Library being a public place in said town, on the £ /

day of Jey{/ﬂ(ﬂ 6.

n Administrator

en R. Fourniét, Tow

78 Town of Newmarket | 2015 Annual Report
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New Hampshire 2016
Department of MS-DT

Revenue Administration

DEFAULT BUDGET OF THETOWN

RSA 40:13, IX (b) "Default budget” as used in this subdivision means the amount of the same appropriations as
contained in the operating budget authorized for the previous year, reduced and increased, as the case may be, by debt
service, contracts, and other obligations previously incurred or mandated by law, and reduced by one-time
expenditures contained in the operating budget. For the purposes of this paragraph, one-time expenditures shall be
appropriations not likely to recur in the succeeding budget, as determined by the governing body, unless the provisions
of RSA 40:14-b are adopted, of the local political subdivision.

This form was posted with the warrant on: f

Instructions

1. Use this form to list the default budget calculation in the appropriate columns.
2. Post this form or any amended version with proposed operating budget (MS-636 or M5-737) and the warrant,

3. Per RSA 40:13, X, (a), the default budget shall be disclosed at the first budget hearing.

For Assistance Please Contact:
NH DRA Municipal and Property Division
Phone: (603) 230-5090
Fax: (603) 230-5947
hitp//www.revenue.nh.gov/mun-prop/

[ROCKINGHAM

Main Street |(603) 659-3617

Imangell@newmarketnh.gov

MS-DT v1.2 2016 Page 1 of 10
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Officers of the
Newmarket School District
2015-2016
School Board

Nathan Lunney ......................... Term Expires 2017
Elizabeth McKinney..................... Term Expires 2016
Michael Kenison........................ Term Expires 2018
Kimberley Shelton ...................... Term Expires 2016
AlZink. ... ..o oo i Term Expires 2018
JuliaLeary ................oooooae. Student Representative

Dr. Michael Martin, Superintendent of Schools
Christine Blouin, Business Administrator
Annette Brousseau, Treasurer
Christopher Hawkins, Moderator
Penny Botterman, Clerk

Mission Statement

The Newmarket School District is committed to the highest
standards of quality education. We ensure a safe and successful
learning community. We embrace diversity and respond to the
social, emotional, intellectual and physical needs of every child.
We strive to work with the broader community to ensure that
students develop lifelong skills enabling them to be
contributing and productive members of society.
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Letters to the Community

School Board

Nathan Lunney,
Chairperson

This has been a very full year for
the Newmarket School District and the
School Board. More than anything else,
I must take this opportunity to applaud
and thank the countless volunteers who
have given of their energy and time to
serve on various committees, attend mul-
tiple forums, and contribute to the mis-
sion of advancing learning and growing
in our schools and community. It is only
with the support of so many that the great
tasks before us can be accomplished. The
School Board offers its warmest apprecia-
tion to all of you!

The March 2015 school district elec-
tion brought two new faces to the School
Board. After a close race and a ballot
recount, Michael Kenison and Al Zink
joined current members Gail Durocher-
Wentworth, Elizabeth McKinney, and
Nathan Lunney on the Board in March.
The district celebrated the successful pas-
sage of the warrant article for Full-Day
Kindergarten programming at the New-
market Elementary School. As the new
School Board organized, there was con-
sensus that listening, learning, and col-
laborating would be essential to the work
of the Board. I am pleased to report that
in the months since, the School Board has
worked diligently to create opportunities
for listening to the concerns and ideas of
our community. School Board members
have invested an incredible number of
hours in learning about the pressing mat-
ters facing the district. And this School
Board is clearly on the path of collaborat-
ing more effectively within the schools
and with the Town with regard to finding
practical shared solutions and beneficial
efficiencies in service to the community.

The year has marched quickly from
one Annual Meeting to the next. Four ma-
jor challenges were identified as goals for
the School Board this year. Two of those
are somewhat routine, but the Board
was determined to manage them well.

First was the development of a prudent
proposed operating budget. The School
Board invited district administrators to
carefully consider financial impacts with
a budget request clearly aligned with the
needs of student learning. The result was
a proposed budget with an overall reduc-
tion from the previous fiscal year. The sec-
ond goal was the negotiation of a succes-
sor collective bargaining agreement with
the Newmarket Teachers Association. A
strong team of teachers, district leaders,
and Board members met through the fall
and successfully negotiated a new agree-
ment. That proposal is a three-year deal
that protects the community from pos-
sible excise taxes under the Affordable
Care Act and advances the compensation
of our teachers in a competitive market
where they are measurably behind much
of this region.

The third goal was to steadily ad-
vance the school facilities conversation
in pursuit of a comprehensive solution for
the School District. The Joint Advisory
Committee that met through the previous
year issued its final report in April 2015.
In the months that followed, the School
Board reviewed the report, its findings,
and its recommendations. Three major
alternatives had been considered as part
of the work of the JAC and the indepen-
dent consultants tasked with supporting
that effort. Those alternatives were: 1)
sending Newmarket students to another
school district under a tuition agreement;
2) keeping Newmarket students in town
and constructing a new school build-
ing; or 3) keeping Newmarket students
in town and renovating existing school
facilities. In July 2016, the School Board
voted unanimously to set aside the op-
tion of sending students elsewhere under
tuition agreement. Thereafter, a new Fa-
cilities Committee was formed with Mike
Kenison leading, to explore, learn, and
advise the School Board and community
about the remaining building options.
The first major task was to select an archi-
tect partner to support the committee’s
work. Today that committee has grown to
include a cross-section of Newmarket and

is continuing its research and learning,
working specifically on the educational
specifications for both district schools.
The School Board and Facilities Com-
mittee expect to engage the public in
several more forums to continue the dia-
logue about what solutions will be serve
Newmarket.

The last of the four goals was as es-
sential to Newmarket as any in years. The
School Board engaged the New England
School Development Council (NESDEC)
in the spring of 2015 to assist the Board
with a search for our next Superintendent
of Schools. That search process began in
earnest in August with a number of fo-
rums to gather input about the desired
qualities and characteristics of the next
school leader. A Search Committee led by
Al Zink was drafted into service to work
with NESDEC on advertising, search, re-
cruitment, screening and interviewing. A
screening committee gathered after the
application period closed in early No-
vember. Screening and interviewing were
completed and the School Board was pre-
sented with a list of semi-finalists there-
after. Board interviews and review culmi-
nated in the announcement in December
of two excellent finalists for the position.
Immediately following the new year, the
finalists participated in an exciting “day
in the district” during which they toured
school buildings, met with staff, students,
administrators, community leaders, and
the public. Now, as we prepare for the
March 2016 Annual Meeting, the School
Board is thrilled to know that Meredith
Nadeau, currently Superintendent of
Cape Elizabeth, Maine schools and for-
merly Director of Instruction for the Oys-
ter River Cooperative School District in
Durham, is joining us as the next Super-
intendent of Schools for Newmarket.

Again let me echo the appreciation
of the Newmarket School Board for all
those who have given of themselves over
the past year in service to our schools and
community. For me personally, I want to
thank the other School Board members
and our community for the privilege of
serving you this year.
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Superintendent of
Schools
Dr. Michael J Martin

Many positive accomplishments have
been achieved by the school district over
the last year and those accomplishment
could not have been achieved without the
support of the school board, the faculty,
staff, and administration and of course
the support of the community.

Curriculum, Instruction, and
Assessment

AsIreported in last year’s annual report,
a high quality education is the major goal
of the Newmarket School District. Last
year, three very successful events oc-
curred. First, the high school was recog-
nized by US News and World Report as
the best high school in the seacoast and
the ninth best high school in the state of
New Hampshire. Second, after a study by
a community group and with the sup-
port of the school board, the community
voted to expand the kindergarten pro-
gram from half day to full day. Third, the
voters approved an additional $50,000 to
be deposited into the Technology Trust
account, and 350 devices (80 desktop
computers, 197 Chromebooks, and 73
tablets) were added for student class-
room use.

Phase lll Fire and Life Safety/
Facilities

Last summer, the final phase of the three
year life safety plan was completed with
the installation of an elevator in the ju-
nior/senior high school. The elevator was
located so that all classrooms can be ac-
cess via the elevator or ramps inside the
building. While the fire and life safety is-
sues have been remedied, the last major
facilities project in Newmarket occurred
thirty years ago and our school buildings
are supported by portable classroom,
boilers that 30 thirty years old, class-
rooms which are undersized, windows
needing replacement, an air exchange
system without heat recovery, and out-
dated insulation. The school board has
established a community based facili-
ties committee chaired by school board
member Michael Kenison, and has se-
lected a new architect only after member

s of the committee visited thirteen dif-
ferent schools constructed by a different
architects, and the committee is studying
the current facilities and the district’s
educational needs. The 2016 warrant will
include an article to fund the cost of pro-
fessional services to support the work of
the committee with the hope of a positive
bond vote in 2017.

There were other accomplishments
related to facilities. The land located
across from the high school was cleared of
existing structures because of safety con-
cerns. Town officials were extremely help-
ful assisting in the school district with the
cleanup. Secondly, the former insurance
building also directly across the street
from the high school was converted into
the art classroom. Our art teacher, An-
nette Blake, has been extremely helpful
in making the move a success. Also the
town, installed crosswalk signals for the
students moving across the street.

School Board

At the March 2015 annual meeting, Al
Zink and Michael Kenison were elected
to the school board joining Gail Duro-
cher Wentworth, Nathan Lunney and
Elizabeth McKinney. In the fall, the
board appointed Kimberly Shelton to
the vacant position when board member
Gail Durocher-Wentworth resigned for
personal reasons. Each year after the an-
nual meeting, school boards hold their
organizational meeting when officers and
committee appointments are made. The
board selected Nathan Lunney as chair
and Elizabeth McKinney as vice chair.

Retirement

Patricia Ballantyne has announced her
plan to retire as of June 30, 2016. Pat start-
ed her career in Newmarket and for the
last ten years has been the Director of Cur-
riculum and Instruction. For forty years,
Pat has served the district with a focus on
kids, learning, and leading the district in
the struggle to get better. The high qual-
ity of Newmarkets educational programs
has been the results of Pat ‘s quiet, steady,
and dogged pursuit of high quality in-
struction, high quality of curriculum, and
high quality professional development for
staff, faculty, and administration. For me
personally, I am honored to have met and
worked with Pat, and most importantly to
learn from Pat. Good luck Pat!!!
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The Future Looks Bright
After a comprehensive search, the board
has hired Meredith Nadeau to be the next
Superintendent of Schools for Newmar-
ket starting July 1, 2016. I expect the dis-
trict will be hugely successful under her
leadership.

Thank you for the opportunity to
serve as the interim Superintendent of
Schools. I wish the best to all of you.

Junior/Senior
High School

Christopher Andriski, Principal

For the past four summers Newmar-
ket Jr./Sr. High School has been a con-
struction zone as we completed the dif-
ferent phases of the Fire and Life Safety
Report. This November the final phase
has been completed. Here is a list of what
was accomplished:

o Enclosure of the grade 7/8 stairwell
« Room 133 removal of asbestos in the
ceiling tiles, sink and chalkboards
« Room 134 removal of asbestos in the
ceiling tiles, sink and chalkboards

« Room 232 removal of asbestos in
the ceiling tiles, sink, floor and
chalkboards

« Room 233 removal of asbestos in
the ceiling tiles, sink, floor and
chalkboards

« Staircase was created to get access
from the gymnasium to the second
floor

o Science hallway was extended to
allow access from the gymnasium
stairway to the second floor

« Five-stop elevator was installed that
will allow access for all individuals
throughout the building

As a staff, we have been committed
to reviewing our curriculum and instruc-
tion so that it has the greatest impact on
student learning. To assist staff, students
and parents with this endeavor, we have
published our Scope and Sequence for
each class on the school website. This will
allow students and their parents the abil-
ity to know what is going to be taught in
each class over the course of the year.

Two other initiatives that we con-
tinue to work on as a staff is standards



based grading and using data efficiently
to inform our instruction. Our goal is to
continue to push all students to mastering
each course that they take at Newmarket
Jr./Sr. High School. It has become our ex-
pectation that each teacher will be able to
push all students in both areas of strengths
and weaknesses in all of their classes.
Each year we are challenged with
a changing in our staffing. This year, we
were fortunate to hire seven new teachers
to various roles in the building, as well as
having two staff members move into new
positions. The staff includes:
« Ryan Levasseur — Transition
Coordinator
o Eric Anderson - Library Media
Specialist
 Katie Keniston - Long-term
Substitute Math
o Meghan Averill - Long-term
Substitute Math
« Emily Lauer - % Chorus
o Eric Lindquist - %> Math
o Joanna House - Spanish
o Blake Neri moved from Transition
Coordinator to Special Education
Case Manager
 Gerin Murphy moved from Special
Education Case Manager to English

NJSHS Mule Mascot

NJSHS Dance

Our Students Give Back.....

o Interact Club will be assisting with
building construction for Habitat
For Humanities and have been Pease
Greeters for returning Military
Service Members for their 5th year

« Youth to Youth Drug and Alcohol
Awareness Campaigns for the 4th
year

o Being involved with the Sister
Soldier Program and Bullying
Awareness

o In the fall the National Honor

Society, Junior National Honor
Society, Interact Club, SALT and
Student Council all volunteered at
the 5th annual Rake-a-pa-looza,
where they raked the grounds at
Newmarket Jr./Sr. High School

« National Honor Society decorated

a Christmas Tree as part of Exeter’s
Festival of Trees

Roots and Shoots Club actively
recycling cans, paper, and cardboard
each day as well as beginning a
composting bin in the cafeteria to
assist our efforts to become a “Green
School”

Grade 8 volunteering their time

at water stations for the Great Bay
Half-Marathon and other Loco
Racing Events

Providing child-care for night
meetings and the Deliberative
Session that occur at the school

Julia Leary served as the student
representative on the School Board
Girls Varsity Soccer Team spent

a day with the Timberland
Corporation completing community

NJSHS Team Day
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2015 Graduates

Jenna Eve Baillargeon
Isaac Robert Bateman
Clayton Edward Bentley
Theresa Marie Bertogli
Isobel Rose Bickford
Tristen John Silver Bickford
Joshua William Bogan
Lynea Elizabeth Bost
Tristan Avery Byrd
Moriah Krystom Chardae
Christopher Richard-David
Chiampa
Jessica Lynn Cilley
Krista Marie Critchett
Shayla Marie Cucinotta
Dylan Scott Defrain
Laura Ann Dubbs
Julia Rose Dube
Brigitte Dubois
Sarah Jeanne Filion
N. Haylee Bleau Foster
Baylee Paxton Fournier
Samuel Michael Gendreau
Elizabeth Marie Hernandez
Andrew Quentin Jablonski
Tasha Rae Jarosz
Vinnie Tom Khounxay
Kaylee Ellen Kiefaber
Madison Marie Lasante
Elizabeth Anne Lynehan
Kasey Renee Malasky
Madison Lynne Silva Morin
Karlee Ann Paradis
Cameron Lee Polacke
Kayla Lynn Reeves
Ashlee Anne Reid
Janina Goncalves Ribeiro
Joel Francis Robertson
Bradley Victor Rossignol
Hannah-Rose Melissa Schlieder
Cameron James Stevens
Daniel John Sullivan
Hayden Matthew Roland
‘Thibodeau
Alexander Christian Mykol
Waiter
Ashley Brianna Wettstein
Jasmine Marie Whitman
Kristen Ellen Wickens
Alec Mitchell Wood
Georgia Ziarnowski

service projects in the seacoast for
the 4th straight year

« Collecting non-perishable items
during Trick or Can that was
donated to the local food pantry as
well as collecting for Newmarket
Has Heart

Newmarket is Proud of:

o US News Report ranking
Newmarket High School as a
Nationally Recognized Best School
and # 9 ranked school in NH and # 1
in the seacoast

o 85% of last year’s seniors are enrolled
in either a 2 year or 4 year college

o The 23 current 8" and 9" grade
students who were selected to
participate in a summer enrichment
program directed by Phillips Exeter
Academy

o The teacher and student volunteers
who helped raise over $4,500.00 to
assist those families in need for the
holidays

o Athletic, Arts, Drama and Musical
departments for the increased
number of students participating
each year

o Kyra Franklin for winning the
2016 Scholastic Art Award of NH
in Digital Art for her Portrait
lustration

« Raising over 400.00 for the ALS
Foundation

Elementary School

Sean Pine, Principal

The 2014-2015 school year began on
Monday, August 25", The school opened
with an enrollment of approximately 575
students in grades K-5. In addition to this
being my first year at NES, we were ex-
cited to welcome the following new staff
members to our learning community.

o Jennifer King

« Nicole Clayton

o Eleanor LaBranche
o Erin Grube

o Linda Bergeron

We continue to strive to have all chil-
dren reading at grade level by the third
grade. Studies show that when a child
reaches this target, theyre more likely
to have greater academic success as they
continue with their education. Students
who are identified through our RTT (Re-
sponse to Intervention) program receive
additional supplemental services in read-
ing and mathematics in order to address
the identified needs of the student.

NES uses two assessment programs
to monitor students’ progress and plan ac-
cordingly. The primary students in grades
K through 2 were assessed in early read-
ing skills a minimum of three times per
year using Dynamic Indicators of Basic
Early Literacy Skills (DIBELS) and AIMS
Web. Students in grades 3-5 were as-
sessed in the fall, winter and spring using

2015 National
Honor Society
Ashley Berthiaume
Samantha Cough
Eloise Davenport
John Dowst
Mattigan Farnese
Brynn Fournier
Cameron Jordan
Julia Leary
Sarah Levenstein
Nicole Sanborn
Anna Valinski
Clio Walsh
Isabella Walsh

National Honor Society
Junior National Owen Hayes
Honor Society Felix Hoehner
Nicholas Berthiaume Marie Hoehner
Andrew Benson Navya Kotturu
Nicole Berry Alex Kumph
Alison Burleigh Colby Kumph
Peyton Catalano Rachel Lane
Caroline Davenport Alyssa Levesque
Katie Day Zoe McGuirk
Eric Diaz Chloe McKinney
Michael Dowst Shane Moore
Antonio Evangelista Jolena Senesombath
Sam Frede Mia Smith
Kaylen Fowler Jenna Titus
Madeline Geier Maria Willerer
McKayla Hartman
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Measures of Academic Progress (MAP)
testing from Northwest Evaluation As-
sociation (NWEA). This past spring, stu-
dents in grades 3-5 participated in the
Smarter Balanced Assessment as required
by the state. This assessment is used to
measure student knowledge in the areas
of mathematics and reading.

Our students are fortunate to be able
to participate in a variety of outstand-
ing after school programs. Some of these
activities include our highly competitive
cross country team and our outstanding
jump rope program. The band and chorus
programs continue to see strong growth
and put on a handful of productions for
the community during the school year.
The children also can participate in our
Drama Club, which puts on a theatrical
production at the end of the year. Our
budding gardeners have the opportunity
to learn how to successfully cultivate
vegetable with our Garden club. Much of
what they grow is shared with the school
community. Homework Club is offered
to the children in grades 3-5. This pro-
gram, which is offered three days a week,
has staff members providing assistance to
students who need additional help with
their studies.

Our student council, under the guid-
ance of Doug Webb, held a number of
fundraiser’s and food drives to help agen-
cies in the greater Newmarket area. The

NES Garden Club

students also visited weekly with the resi-
dents of the Pines Assisted Living facility.
This outreach provides an opportunity
for the children and the residents to in-
teract with each other doing a variety of
games and activities.

The School Volunteer Program re-
ceived the distinction of being selected
for the Blue Ribbon of Excellence Award
from the NH Partnership in Education.
We appreciate all of our volunteers who
help with school projects, classroom ac-
tivities and field trips. The PTA hosted a
number of events throughout the school

year including our annual back to school
picnic unplugged week, our book fair and
staff appreciation lunches. We are truly
grateful for their dedication to our school
community.

The Maintenance Department, under
the direction of Brian O’Connor, worked
conscientiously to provide a safe and
clean facility and environment for learn-
ing. Often this can be a challenge given
the age of the building and the constant
comings and goings of a school commu-
nity with 575 students.

We saw anumber of our staff members

NES Jump Rope Show
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retire at the close of the school year, (Faye
Charette, secretary, Ann Keefe, 4™ grade
teacher, Jean Burke, computer teacher
and para educators Mary Burson, Debbie
Coles and Barbra Keating.) Their dedica-
tion and years of service to the children

of Newmarket is greatly appreciated. We
wish them the best of luck with their fu-
ture endeavors.

In closing, the 2014-15 school year
has been a success. We look forward to
continuing to develop our programs and

hone our instruction to prepare our stu-
dents for their future. We appreciate the
support of our parents, members of the
Newmarket community and employees.
It is safe to say that you all help make
Newmarket a great place to raise a child!

e

N\

Below is a list of post-secondary schools and colleges that our students have attended since 2000.

Adelphi University

American University

Assumption College

Anna Maria College

Barnard College

Bates College

Bay Path College

Bay State College

Bentley University

Boston College

Boston University

Bowdoin College

Brandeis University

Bunker Hill Community College
California State University, Northridge
Castleton State College

Central Connecticut State University
Champlain College

Charles County Community College
Chester College of New England
Clark University

Clemson University

Colby College

Colby-Sawyer College

Daniel Webster College

DeVry University

Dutchess Community College
Eckerd College

Elmira College

Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University — Florida
Emerson College

Emory University

Empire Beauty School

Fairfield University

Fayetteville Technical Community College
Florida International University
Franklin Pierce University

Full Sail University

George Mason University

Grand Rapids Community College
Grand Valley State University
Great Bay Community College
Green Mountain College

Gulf Coast Community College
Hampshire College

Hesser College

Husson College

Indiana University at Bloomington
Ithaca College

Jacksonville University

Jefferson Community College
Johnson & Wales University
Johnson State College

Keene State College

Keuka College

Kingwood College

Lakes Region Community College
(NHCTC-Laconia)

Lasell College

Lesley University

Maine College of Art

Maine Maritime Academy

Manchester Community College
(NHCTC-Manchester)

Marshall University

Massachusetts College of Pharmacy &
Health Sciences

Massachusetts Maritime Academy

Mclintosh College

Merrimack College

Michigan Technological University

Middlesex Community College

Mitchell College

Montserrat College of Art

MotoRing Technical Training Institute

Mount Holyoke College

Mount Ida College

Nashua Community College

New England College

New England Culinary Institute

New England School of Communications

New England School of Photography

New Hampshire Institute of Art

Newbury College

NHTI — Concord’s Community College

North Shore Community College

Northeast Texas Community College

Northeastern University

Northern Essex Community College

Norwich University

Ohio Northern University

0ld Dominion University

Pasadena City College

Plymouth State University

Providence College

Quincy College

Quinnipiac University

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

Rivier College

Roger Williams University

Russell Sage College

Sage College of Albany

Saint Anselm College

Saint Mary’s University of Minnesota

Saint Michaels College

Salve Regina University

Santa Monica College

Simmons College

Sinclair Community College

Southern Maine Community College

Southern Maine Technical College

Southern New Hampshire University

St. Lawrence University

Stonehill College

Syracuse University

Texas Tech University

The Art Institute of Houston

The Catholic University of America

The New England Institute of Art

The University of Arizona

The University of Northwestern Ohio

The University of Tampa

The University of Texas, Austin

Trinity College

Tufts University

United States Military Academy at West Point

Unity College

Universal Technical Institute

University of Central Arkansas

University of Central Florida

University of Connecticut

University of Hartford

University of Maine

University of Maine at Augusta

University of Maine at Farmington

University of Maine at Machias

University of Massachusetts, Amherst

University of Massachusetts, Dartmouth

University of Massachusetts, Lowell

University of New England

University of New Hampshire

University of New Hampshire, Thompson School
of Applied Science

University of New Haven

University of North Carolina at Pembroke

University of Notre Dame

University of Phoenix

University of Puget Sound

University of Rhode Island

University of San Diego

University of Southern Maine

University of Vermont

Valencia Community College

Vermont Technical College

Villanova University

Wells College

Wentworth Institute of Technology

West Chester University of Pennsylvania

West Virginia University

Wheelock College

White Mountains Community College

Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades

Wittenberg University

Worcester Polytechnic Institute

Worcester State University

Xavier University

Vaughn College of Aeronautics and Technology

York County Community College
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2015 Deliberative Session Minutes

January 31, 2015, 11:00 a.m.
Jr/Sr High School Gymnasium

Present: Gail Durocher-Wentworth,
Matt Evangelista, Mary Jane Hilton,
Nathan Lunney, Elizabeth McKinney,
Superintendent James Hayes, Business
Administrator Christine Blouin

Call To Order:

School District Moderator Chris
Hawkins opened the meeting at
11:00 A.m. He led the Pledge of Alle-
giance and explained the rules of the
meeting.

ARTIGLE 2: Full-Day Kindergarten
Elizabeth McKinney moved Article 2
for consideration. Matt Evangelista sec-
onded. Elizabeth McKinney explained
that the School Board voted unanimously
in support of this article, and the Budget
Committee had supported it 7-4. A com-
munity survey indicated broad support
for full-day kindergarten.

Karen Polzinetti of 8 Stonewall
Way said that the kindergarten task force
heard the community’s concern that the
proposed budget used higher enrollment
numbers than we are likely to see. Next
year’s kindergarten enrollment should
be near 80 rather than 100. She made an
amendment to change the dollar figure in
the motion to $191,000. Dana McKenna
seconded.

Toni Weinstein of 275 Ash Swamp
Road asked if the new dollar figure in-
cluded the modular. Elizabeth McKin-
ney said that the modular was taken out
of the budget figure. The amended budget
figure would pay for one additional teach-
er and four classroom aides.

Mark Polzinetti asked about the tax
impact. Christine Blouin said that the
amended budget figure would have an
impact of 26 cents.

Ingrid Ahlberg of 44 Braillia Circle
asked about the plan for facilities. Dr.
Martin said that the administration is
looking at options to present to the School
Board in February. We may be able to rent
space in town if we cannot find space in
the Elementary School. We could also

consider moving a program to the Per-
kins Insurance building.

Chris Carr of Riverbend Road said
that he felt full-day kindergarten was a
“nice to have” rather than a must-have. He
wondered why additional teachers would
be necessary, since we already have a kin-
dergarten program.

Elizabeth McKinney said that we
currently have 73 students split between
AM and PM kindergarten. We would
need another teacher to teach the addi-
tional 20 kids. She added that we are the
only community in the area with no aides
in our kindergarten classrooms. An aide
in each class will help the teachers man-
age the class sizes.

Michael Cahill of Ash Swamp Road
said that full-day kindergarten is a great
idea, but we are not ready to do it. We
need an answer to our facilities question
first.

Heather Durant of 16 Mockingbird
Lane said that her son is in first grade.
She had to pay for private kindergarten
because Newmarket did not offer a full-
day program. She feels that her son is
behind now, and tutoring will be an ad-
ditional financial burden. She encouraged
the school district to do what is best for
families.

Alicia Buono of 17 Harvest Way said
that our program is only two and a half
hours per day, and a true half-day pro-
gram is between three and four hours. She
felt that full-day kindergarten was not a
“nice to have.” Studies clearly suggest
that kindergarten has a significant long-
term benefit. It could also save the district
money in future SPED costs.

Shana Clark of 12 Riverbend Road
said that her son is already stressed about
school and he’s only 6. The half-day pro-
gram is too rushed. She wanted kinder-
gartners to have the time they need so
they learn that school is fun.

Heather Raab said that she trusts the
administrators and the staff to figure out
the space issue.

Amanda Rei of 6 Raymond said that
she was a member of the kindergarten
task force. She called every school district
in the Seacoast. They were all very proud
of their full-day kindergarten programs.

Newmarket is behind. She said that we
would not consider cutting the second
half of 12" grade on the grounds that
most students had met the minimum
requirements. Education is K-12. She
read the Joint Advisory Committee’s re-
port and found it incredibly frustrating.
It just provided advantages and disad-
vantages for every option, rather than a
recommendation.

Judy Bouthot of Cushing Road said
that she was 100% in support of full-day
kindergarten, but she did not think the
timing was right. We need a plan for fa-
cilities for the entire district.

Dan Smith of Ladyslipper Drive
said that he was concerned the commit-
tee may have brought the costs down too
much. The administration is considering
options for housing the full-day program
that have not yet been discussed. Dr. Mar-
tin said that the amendment would bring
the number of kindergarten sections from
five down to four based on the likely num-
ber of students. The modular would have
cost $30k annually, and that has also been
removed from the proposed budget.

Toni Weinstein said that she sup-
ports full-day kindergarten, but she
would support the modular as well. She
was concerned that the necessary space
has not been allocated to the program. We
are strapped for space at the Elementary
School, so she was concerned about the
suggestion that we would just find space
or rent space somewhere.

Elizabeth McKinney said that when
she started on the task force, she felt the
same way. She was not sure why we would
look at a full-day program when we have
space constraints. But then she realized
how important a full-day program is. She
said we have to trust the administration to
find adequate space. She added that if we
did get a modular, it could be used later
during a building or renovation project.

Mary Jane Hilton said that we have
been struggling with facilities issues for
many years now, and the administration
has always found space for kids.

Matt Evangelista said that a full-day
program would have 80 kids and we have
73 now. He felt that space should not be
an issue.
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Karen Polzinetti said that the task
force determined that a full-day program
is viable. The school district has found
space for new programs before, even with-
out a special warrant article to add them.
The task force tried to be as transparent
as possible, and included all related costs
in the proposed budget. She did not think
the need to find room for 20 additional
students should keep the district from
expanding a program that could benefit
80 students per year. She asked about the
overall tax rate impact if all the proposed
warrant articles pass. Christine Blouin
said that if all proposed warrant articles
pass, there would be no net tax impact.

Michael Cahill said that if we solve
our facilities problems, we would have
more students. More families would move
to Newmarket. He has heard that we have
the space and that we can find the space.
Both cannot be true. He would like to
trust the administration, but he does not.
The lift is still broken.

Lynn Badger of Cushing Road said
that no one thinks full-day kindergarten
is a bad idea, but we should wait until we
solve the facilities issue. She did not think
expanding kindergarten would be swept
under the rug, so there is no harm in
waiting.

Alicia Buono said that she was con-
cerned that it would be swept under the
rug. A year from now, the community
will be discussing a teacher contract and
a facilities solution. People will say, “How
can you add a program now?”

Sherry Day of 35 Ladyslipper Drive
said that the kindergarten teachers have

been talking about this change for a long
time. We are behind other districts. She
said when she moved here 15 years ago,
she heard that the town was on the cusp
of a facilities solution. She is thankful that
the district did not wait for a facilities so-
lution before doing anything.

Ingrid Ahlberg of 44 Braillia Circle
asked for clarification about the addi-
tional teachers and the class sizes. Eliza-
beth McKinney said that we currently
have three kindergarten teachers in three
rooms. We have about 12 students in each
session. We would be combining students
in a full day program with one additional
teacher, so the average class size would
be 20.

Joanna Lazarus of Exeter Road said
that the three teachers each have 24-26
students each, split between the morning
and afternoon programs. She added that
the kindergarten is unusually small this
year.

The vote in support of the amend-
ment was unanimous.

William Foster said that he did not
support the warrant article during the
Budget Committee vote because he did
not want to perpetuate the idea that edu-
cating children in modulars is acceptable.
Now that he modular has been taken out
of the proposal, he supported the warrant
article.

ARTICLE 3: Transfer to the Repair and
Maintenance Trust Fund

Mary Jane Hilton moved Article 3
for consideration, and Nathan Lunney
seconded. Drew Kiefaber said that the
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Budget Committee supported allocating
portions of any surplus to these funds be-
cause it helps to smooth out the tax rate.

ARTIGLE 4: Transfer to the Technology
Trust Fund

Matt Evangelista moved Article 4 for
consideration, and Elizabeth McKinney
seconded.

There was no discussion.

ARTICLE 1: Operating Budget

Nathan Lunney moved Article 1 for
consideration, and Mary Jane Hilton sec-
onded. Nathan Lunney said that the bud-
get request includes a $88k increase, but it
is lower than the default budget. Reasons
for the increase include the contracted
salary increases in the collective bargain-
ing agreement, health insurance pre-
mium increases, NH Retirement System
increases, and the increases in transpor-
tation costs. The School Board was able
to trim what would have been an overall
budget increase by paying close attention
to contingencies. The operation budget
was unanimously supported by both the
School Board and the Budget Committee.

There was no discussion.

Adjournment:

Nathan Lunney made a motion to ad-
journ, and Elizabeth McKinney sec-
onded. The motion passed in a call-out
vote. The deliberative session ended at
11:45 A.M.

Respectfully Submitted,
Jenn Hastings



Voting Results from March 10, 2015

SAMPLE BALLOT

OFFICIAL BALLOT
ANNUAL SCHOOL DISTRICT ELECTION

MARCH 10, 2015 SCHOOL CLERK

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE Axtomgn.-

INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS
A. TQ VOTE, completely fill in the QVAL to the RIGHT of your choice(s) like this: @
B. Follow directions as to the number of candidates to be marked for each office.
C. To vote for a person whose name is not printed on the ballot, write the candidate's name on
the line provided and completely fill in the OVAL.

SCHOOL MODERATOR CLERK MEMBER OF
VOTE FOR NOT VOTE FOR NOT SCHOOL BOARD

FOR ONE YEAR MORE THAN ONE FOR ONE YEAR MCRE THAN ONE

CHRISTOPHER HAWKINS 93| @ |PENNY BOTTERMAN 850 @ | ror e vEARS MORE T W0

G O |AL ZINK

TR v |GRAIG DIONNE

TREASURER MATTHEW EVANGELISTA
roronevEAR  mostmsuont  |MARY JANE HILTON
ANNETTE BROUSSEAU 20z @ |MICHAEL KENISON

) |KIMBERLEY SHELTON

[GTETY

Ta-in)

O00800CEe

be-in)

ARTICLES

Article 1, To see if the School District will raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not
including appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately,
the amounts set forth on the budget posted with the warrant or as amended by the vote of the
first session, for the purposes set forth therein, totaling $16,735,9037 Should this article be
defeated, the default budget shall be $16,934,002 which is the same as last year with certain
adjustments required by previous action of the Newmarket School District or by law; or the
school board may hold one special meeting in accordance with RSA 40:13 X and XV, to take NO €O
up the issue of a revised operating budget only. NOTE: This warrant article (operating budget)

does not include appropriations in ANY other warrant article. (Recommended by the Schoof

Board (5-0} and recommended by the Budget Committee (11-0)). If passed, it is estimated that

this article will result in a decrease of $.26 under the previous year's school tax rate of $18.43,

which will result in a new estimated tax rate of $18.17. If defeated, it is estimated that this

article will result in an increase of $.02 aver the previous year’s school tax rate of $18.43, which

will result in a new estimated tax rate of $18.45,

YES @

Article 2, To see if the School District will vate to raise and appropriate the sum of $191,000

to fund the Full Day Kindergarten Program at the elementary school commencing with the YES &8
2015-2016 school year. (Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and recommended by the no
Budget Commitiee (7-4)). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article is $0.26.

Article 3. To see if the School District will vote to raise and appropriate one-half (1/2) 50% of

any June 30, 2015, fund balance (SURPLUS) up to One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000}

to be added to the Repair and Maintenance of School Facilities Expendable Trust Fund YES @
astablished in 2004 under the provisions of RSA 198:20-c for the purpose of repairs and
maintenance of school facilities. (Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and recommended NO O
by the Budget Committee (11-0)). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article is $0.00.

Article 4. To see if the School District will vote fo ralse and appropriate one-fourth (1/4) 25%
of any June 30, 2015, fund balance (SURPLUS) up fo Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) to be
added to the School Technology Expendable Trust Fund established in 2005 under the YES &
provisions of RSA 198:20-c for the purpose of purchasing technology equipment. NO O
(Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and recommended by the Budget Committee

(11-0)). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article is $0.00.
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2016-2017 Ofhcial School Warrant

108

SCHOOL WARRANT
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

To the Inhabitants of the School District of Newmarket, in the County of Rockingham, State of
New Hampshire, qualified to vote in district affairs: You are hereby notified of the annual
meeting,

The first session, for the transaction of all business other than voting by official ballot, shall be
held Saturday, January 30, 2016, at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Hall Auditorium. The first session
shall consist of explanation, discussion, and debate of warrant articles 2-8. Warrant articles may
be amended, subject to the following limitations:

(a) Warrant articles whose wording is prescribed by law shall not be amended.

(b) Warrant articles that are amended shall be placed on the official ballot for final vote on the
main motion, as amended.

(c) No warrant article shall be amended to eliminate the subject matter of the article.

The second session of the annual meeting, to vote on Articles 1-8 shall be conducted by official
ballot to be held in conjunction with the Newmarket Town voting on Tuesday, March 8, 2016,
at the Town Hall Auditorium. The polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.

Article 1. To choose the following School District Officers:
1. One School District Moderator — (one year term)
2. One School District Clerk — (one year term)
3. One School District Treasurer — (one year term)

4. Two School Board Members — (each for three year term)

Article 2. Shall the School District raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including
appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts
set forth on the budget posted with the warrant or as amended by the vote of the first session, for
the purposes set forth therein, totaling $16,847,926? Should this article be defeated, the default
budget shall be $16,895,184 which is the same as last year with certain adjustments required by
previous action of the Newmarket School District or by law; or the school board may hold one
special meeting in accordance with RSA 40:13 X and XVI, to take up the issue of a revised
operating budget only. (Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and recommended by the
Budget Committee (11-0)).

NOTE: This warrant article (operating budget) does not include appropriations in ANY other
warrant article. If passed, it is estimated that this article will result in an increase of $.02 over the
previous year’s school tax rate of $17.87, which will result in a new estimated tax rate of
$17.89. If defeated, it is estimated that this article will result in an increase of $.08 over the
previous year’s school tax rate of $17.87, which will result in a new estimated tax rate of

$17.95.
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Article 3. Shall the School District vote to approve the cost items included in the collective
bargaining agreement reached between the Newmarket School Board and the Newmarket
Teacher’s Association which calls for the following increases in salaries and benefits at the
current staffing levels over those paid in the prior fiscal year:

Year Estimated Increase
2016-2017 $249259
2017-2018 $292,154
2018-2019 $296,175

and further to raise and appropriate the sum of $249,259 for the upcoming fiscal year, such sum
representing the additional costs attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits over those of
the appropriation at current staffing levels?(Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and
recommended by the Budget Committee (11-0)). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article
is $0.35. (Majority vote required).

Article 4. Shall the School District, if Article 3 is defeated, anthorize the governing body to call
one special meeting, at its option, to address Article 3 cost items only? (Recommended by the
School Board (5-0) and recommended by the Budget Committee (11-0)).

Article 5. Shall the School District vote to authorize the School Board to convey a portion of the
District’s land behind the elementary school and to accept in exchange a conveyance of land to
the School District of land in the same general area, all on such terms and conditions as the
School Board determine are in the best interests of the District, and further to authorize the
School Board to take any other action necessary to carry out this vote? (Recommended by the
School Board (5-0) and recommended by the Budget Committee (11-0)). The estimated tax
impact of this warrant article is $0.00.

Article 6. Shall the School District vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $169,610 for the
purchase of property, at a price not to exceed that amount, at 239 South Main Street consisting of
a 2.17 acre parcel of land with a 400+ foot common boundary abutting the Elementary School to
be used for the expansion of school facilities, and authorize the withdrawal of $71,400 from the
Expansion of School Facilities Capital Reserve Fund created for this purpose in March 1962 with
the balance of $98,210 to come from general taxation? (Recommended by the School Board

(5-0) and recommended by the Budget Committee (9-0-2)). The estimated tax impact of this
warrant article is $0.14.

Article 7. Shall the School District vote to discontinue the Construction of a New School
Building and Renovation of Existing School Buildings for Fire & Life Safety Code Compliance
(Dual Purpose) Capital Reserve Fund created in 2012? Said funds, with accumulated interest to
date of withdrawal (in the approximate amount of $3,236.53), are to be transferred to the school
district’s general fund (Surplus). Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and Recommended by
the Budget Committee (11-0). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article is $0.00. (Majority
vote required)
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Article 8. Shall the School District vote to establish a capital reserve fund under the provisions
of RSA 35:1 to be known as the School Construction and Renovation Capital Reserve Fund for
the purpose of funding new construction and the renovation of school buildings including
necessary costs of architectural and engineering/plans and the construction costs for additions
and renovations or new facilities for the School District, and to raise and appropriate up to
$150,000 to be placed in this fund with that sum to come from any June 30, 2016 fund balance
available for transfer on July 1, 2016 and further to name the School Board as agents to expend
from this fund? (Recommended by the School Board (5-0) and recommended by the Budget
Committee (11-0)). The estimated tax impact of this warrant article is $0.00

Article 9. To transact any business which may legally come before this meeting.
Given under our hand at said Newmarket this 21st day of January 2016.

Newmarket School Board

‘ [

N

Nathah Lunney___J V Elizab i Kimbege) Shelton

Michael Kenison
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Newmarket School District Special Education Expenditures for
2013-2014 and 2014-2015 as Required by RSA 32:11-a

Federal Funding of Special Education 2013-2014 2014-2015
IDEA $221,167 $256,147
IDEA-Preschool $7,833 $7,833
$229,000 $263,980

Special Education Expenses 2013-2014 2014-2015
Salaries/Benefits $3,158,491 $2,353,916
Contracted Services/Extended School Year Program $276,879 $286,453
Tuition $368,252 $473,880
Supplies/Equipment $22,522 $100,110
Special Transportation $150,122 $221,081
Legal Expenses $14,046 $1,049
Total Expenses $3,990,312 $3,436,488

Special Education Revenues 2013-2014 2014-2015
Special Ed Portion Adequacy Aid $328,782 $328,782
Catastrophic Aid $74,153 $51,247
Medicaid $271,172 $224,301
$674,107 $604,330

Actual District Cost for Special Education $3,316,204 $3,924,769
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Auditor’s Report
%VACHON CLUKA_Y CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Street » Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
& COMPANY PC (603) 622-7070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 + www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the School Board
Newmarket, New Hampshire School District

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Newmarket, New Hampshire School
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Newmarket, New Hampshire School District, as of June 30, 2014, and
the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the schedule of funding
progress for other post-employment benefits on pages i-vi and 21-23 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Newmarket, New Hampshire School District’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Additionally, the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the combining nonmajor governmental fund
financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
26, 2015 on our consideration of the Newmarket, New Hampshire School District’s internal control over
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financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Newmarket,
New Hampshire School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Vechuan Cawkany Himspormy OC

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 26, 2015
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EXHIBIT A

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenditures
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Unearned food service revenue
Current portion of capital lease payable
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Capital lease payable
Compensated absences payable
Other post-employment benefits payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Governmental
Activities

$ 1,529,359
10,262

7,962
1,196,454
6,033
2,750,070

1,380,000
4,289,312
5,669,312
8,419,382

453,119
481,893
3,635
40,666
82,763
1,062,076

73,637
703,557
859,693

1,636,887
2,698,963

5,555,009
22,790
142,620

$§ 5,720,419
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EXHIBIT B

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Supporting services
Instructional staff services
General administration

Operation and maintenance of plant

Pupil transportation
Food service

Total governmental activities

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes
in Net Position

Operating

Charges for Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Activities
$ 9,742,870 $ 29,797 § 769,456 $ (8,943,617)
1,067,203 305 (1,066,898)
874,938 27,449 (847,489)
1,765,419 (1,765,419)
2,040,063 (2,040,063)
462,711 10,909 (451,802)
310,464 143,111 139,762 (27,591)
$ 16,263,668 $ 172,908 $ 947,881 (15,142,879)

General revenues:
Property taxes

State adequacy education grant

Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning, as restated
Net position - ending

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements
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EXHIBITC

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Balance Sheet
Governmenial Funds
June 30, 2014

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental  Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,529,359 £ 1,529,359
Investments 10,262 10,262
Accounts receivable 7,331 $ 631 7,962
Due from other governments 1,092,920 103,534 1,196,454
Due from other funds 71,740 16,836 94,576
Prepaid expenses - 6,033 6,033
Total Assets 2,717,612 127,034 2,844,646
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources - - -
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 2,717,612 $ 127,034 $ 2,844,646
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 453,119 $ 453,119
Accrued expenses 481,893 481,893
Due to other funds ' $ 94,576 94,576
Uneamed food service revenue 3,635 3,635
Total Liabilities 935,012 98,211 1,033,223
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - -
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 6,033 6,033
Restricted 22,790 22,790
Committed 1,160,548 1,160,548
Assigned 622,052 622,052
Total Fund Balances 1,782,600 28,823 1,811,423
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $2,717,612 § 127,034
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 5,669,312
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Long-term
liabilities at year end consist of:
Capital lease payable (114,303)
Other post-employment benefits (859,693)
(786,320)

Compensated absences
Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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SCHEDULE 1

NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current operations:
Instruction '
Supporting services
Instructional staff services
General administration

Operation and maintenance of plant

Pupil transportation
Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing uses:
Transfers out
Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
- Budgetary Basis

Fund balance at end of year
- Budgetary Basis

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
$ 12,921,423 $ 12,921,423 $ 12,921,423 $ -
2,534,672 2,534,672 2,621,653 86,981
13,000 13,000 29,797 . 16,797
7,700 7,700 16,837 9,137
12,500 12,500 93,816 81,316
15,489,295 15,489,295 15,683,526 194,231
9,512,566 9,699,799 9,243,736 456,063
1,074,923 1,065,255 1,064,704 551
805,484 871,386 804,539 66,847
1,851,909 1,683,370 1,609,513 73,857
1,066,315 993,143 1,093,600 (100,457)
495,081 493,325 462,198 31,127
14,806,278 14,806,278 14,278,290 527,988
683,017 | 683,017 1,405,236 722,219
(881,507) (881,907) (882,076) (169)
(881,907) (881,907) (882,076) (169)
(198,890) (198,890) 523,160 722,050
198,892 198,892 198,892 -
$ 2 $ 2 3 722,052 $ 722,050
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2014-2015 Gross Wages

Fielding Dawnellen M| Teacher $49,388.00
Last name | First name Position Gross Wages Fisher Wendy L Paraprofessional $17,129.02
Andres Jo-Ann Paraprofessional $18,294.40 Foltz Theresa M Paraprofessional $8,717.97
Aubin Antoinette Paraprofessional $1,974.28 Foster Rebecca H Teacher $62,800.93
Aylward Penelope Teacher $39,062.87 Galli Jennifer Paraprofessional $3,956.76
Barton Ellen J Teacher $63,129.45 Gallion Kelly T Paraprofessional $16,967.29
Bellew Brittany Paraprofessional $457.20 Gardner Patricia Teacher $262.50
Administrative Garrant Kimberly A Teacher $65,139.00
Bergeron Linda Assistant $6,976.32 Geekie Erin Paraprofessional $16,512.16
Bixby Sandra L Paraprofessional $22,792.25 Geekie Holly J Paraprofessional $20,039.76
Brinkman Abby Paraprofessional $359.11 Giacomoni | Sarah Paraprofessional $15,178.40
Brockett Pamela S Paraprofessional $10,238.21 Grube Erin Teacher $35,055.00
Burke Jean L Teacher $71,312.00 Harrington Donna L Paraprofessional $19,716.96
Burson Mary Paraprofessional $22,371.00 Hinkley Karyn J Teacher $61,505.00
Butler Catherine M Teacher $56,466.50 Jones Evan M Teacher $48,204.15
Carmichael | Lori Teacher $71,578.68 Jones Jennifer L Cafeteria $17,490.53
Carmody Susan H Cafeteria $1,896.87 Keating Barbara H Math Tutor $33,666.36
Administrative Keefe Ann Teacher $76,575.00
Charette Barbara Assistant $45,209.60 Keene Amanda C Guiance Counselor | $47,869.82
Cheney Karen Paraprofessional $6,182.40 Kelly Anne T Teacher $6,971.37
Clayton Nicole Teacher $29,097.33 King Jennifer Teacher $32.275.21
, Administrative LaBranche | Eleanor Teacher $32,095.84
CIout.|er Noreen Assistant $28,559.90 Lanigan Kristin L Teacher $49.100.00
Coce Anne M Teacher $55,349.50 Lazarus Joanne E Teacher $55,826.50
Coles Debra A Math.Tutor $32,266.36 Lupoli Melinda J Teacher $65,766.05
Cole?s Susan E Reading Tutor $33,298.65 Manning Melissa J Teacher $55,790.08
Coll!ns Amy Teacher . $45,487.92 McCann Lyn Teacher $24,860.64
Collins Bre.nda A Paraprofessional $21,240.24 McFarland Diane Teacher $71,270.00
Cooper Julie S Teacher $62437.42  “yispiritt | Shannon Teacher $40,919.00
Cornell Kathie D Teacher 864,713.58  “ypnok Anita C Paraprofessional | $14,848.46
Cote Jodi L Ee:)raprofessmnal $21,029.76 Miller Heather ESOL Tutor $3.765.16
ibrar .
Cowdrey | Kathryn M Parapgofessional $23051.00  -iler Nancy A Teacher $67,528.92
Critchett | Randy A Custodian $34,82826  -iler Nancy M Teacher $67,991.05
School Mitchell Valerie A Paraprofessional $18,274.40
Cullinane Danielle Psychologist $63,312.52 Moore Misako Paraprofessional $18,177.80
Currier Victoria Reading Tutor $24,606.40  Murphy Shannon Paraprofessional $3,206.42
Nurse 0'Brien Lisa R Teacher $50,375.00
Darling Marie Paraprofessional $35,092.50 ~ _O0'Connor  |Brian F Custodian $55,523.90
Davenport | Anna K Teacher $49,434.13  Pine Sean Principal $90,780.00
DelGrosso | Patricia A Paraprofessional $21,408.32  _Plante June M Cafeteria $7,385.68
Delucia Erica M Teacher $11,682.24 ~ _Pomerleau | Layne Teacher $45,374.00
Dionne Susan Teacher $34.494.85 Potier Carol A Teacher $59,242.42
Donovan Karen Paraprofessional $13,524.00 Purdy Jennafer School Health Aide $17,037.30
Doyle Karen Reading Tutor $29,598.65  Raymond  |SusanA Teacher $67,750.12
Dufour Janet L Teacher $69,038.00 Richards Marie L Teacher $61,769.42
Evangelista | Giovanna Paraprofessional $17,012.16 Ricker Andrea C Paraprofessional $14,173.69
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Rocci Amy L Teacher $66,757.93 Burgess Kathryn G Paraprofessional $18,032.90
Rodier Cassandra Teacher $65,251.00 Burke Kevin J Paraprofessional $20,505.85
Roffo Deborah E Assistant Principal $75,240.00 Burleigh Lisa M Teacher $42,681.16
Russell Dawn E Teacher $6,889.26 Burley Leigh Paraprofessional $11,105.56
Rydin Erin Teacher $36,524.29 Cabana William D Paraprofessional $31,892.96
Scully Patricia E Teacher $56,271.00 Castellon Nancy Teacher $59,345.97
Smart Paula J Paraprofessional $26,777.84 Caswell Pamela Teacher $67,021.00
Southwick Linda Teacher $65,561.00 Clemmons Kimberly A Paraprofessional $15,475.00
Stefanowicz | Chad Cafeteria $7,024.16 Coffey Carlene Paraprofessional $7,256.15
Stowe Sandra G Teacher $525.00 Copeland Erin Teacher $31,545.79
Strong Josephine Title 1 Tutor $26,221.36 Cross Sara E Teacher $5,094.79
Sullivan Mary J Teacher $9,000.00 Administrative
Szeliga Linda W Math Tutor $29,723.65 Daley-Dolloff | Crystal A Assistant $33,320.92
Thomas Sara Paraprofessional $12,928.99 Denham Sarah J Teacher $60,336.50
Thorell Sheana M Teacher $64,159.45 Dossett Kelly J Cafeteria $17,164.46
Tracy Sheri Teacher $44,337.79 Library
Trick Ruth E Teacher $64.621.00 Doucette Courtney Paraprofessional $12,236.08
Tufts Anne Teacher $66,20442 Dowst Nathaniel B Teacher $50,92760
Walker Adele C ParaprOfeSSional $27,391 50 Eberl Kristin Guiance Counselor $46,86937
Webb Douglas L Teacher $67,290.00 Edgerly Randy S Teacher $64,147.39
Welch Patricia Custodian $3351270 ~ Fabiano | James Teacher $70,896.00
Williamson | June A Teacher $68,324.75 ~ _Famese JenniferL | Nurse $49,184.03
Wood Nancy A Paraprofessional $21,488.32 Filion Stephen P Custodian $20,445.50
Xydias Eleni Teacher $30,664.37 Fill Angelina Teacher $26,105.05
Young Pamela J Paraprofessional $15,925.48 Fink Alyson Teacher $42,334.30
Fittante Lucy P Cafeteria $3,033.92
Fontaine Daniel Teacher $11,967.32
Last name | First name Position Gross Wages Franceschini | Elizabeth A Teacher $46,020.39
Albright Linda Teacher $65,471.00 , School
A-Darraj Kathleen U Teacher $63,054.00 Freeman Katherine Psycho.loglst $39,016.66
Andriski Christopher | Principal $103,588.00  cnch  |Robertl Custodian $56,962.48
Barth William Teacher $3,878.18 Gattonini Venera Teacher $525.00
Bascom Tracy P Teacher $50,414.26 Gaudette Marc.A Teacher . $44,155.00
Beaulicu Elizabeth Teacher $65.961.00 Gedansky N.atalle Paraprofessional $17,507.86
Beckles Chanpheng | ESOL Tutor $27.43586  Orader i Teacher $36,392.13
Belanger Marc A Paraprofessional $15,376.32 Gran? Michelle Cafeteria $4,672.85
Beriau Jacques Teacher $39,609.64 Guerino Dellaney Teacher $34,405.00
Blake Amnette L | Teacher $65,895.97  -odro Kaityn Teacher $39,674.08
Blalock Jaclyn Teacher $32,30616 N Yi-Fu Teacher $51,046.42
Boatwright | Deborah D | Teacher $67,60000  ardy Kelsey Paraprofessional $17,628.19
Boisvert Christina Teacher $10,294.47 Hark.lns Kelly A Teacher - 360,580.63
Boston Jennifer K Teacher $48.620.84 Harrington Karlly Paraprofess!onal $15,988.78
Bowen Alexandra Teacher $35697.13 Hasl.<ell Jo<.j| L Paraprofessional $193.20
Boyer Beth Teacher $42.211.16 Hatfield Ablg@l L Teacher $39,824.29
Boyle Megan E Teacher $37,843.45 Hayes Jamie Teacher - $67,025.34
Buono Jennifer Paraprofessional $16,717.30 Hoff Howard W Paraprofessional $19,303.74
Hoffman Helen M Teacher $72,095.00
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2014-2015 Gross Wages (continued)

Hudson James Custodian $26,289.37 Reeder Holly M Paraprofessional $21,873.67
Johnson Roger Custodian $970.40 Rosa James A Paraprofessional $19,066.74
Kane Justin T Paraprofessional $18,805.72 Rosa Joanna Paraprofessional $17,602.53
Kelley Kathleen Paraprofessional $1,717.96 Administrative
Kiefaber Kristin B Teacher $59,011.00 Rosa Sheryl J Assistant $28,896.90
Kost Ann Teacher $700.00 Ross Russell L Custodian $33,245.88

Library Russell Kyle A Teacher $39,338.58
Krantz Kristin D Paraprofessional $8,346.36 Administrative
Kumph Lisa J Wellness Nurse $10,861.32 Sanborn Jayne Assistant $428.63

Administrative Sawyer Valerie C Teacher $59,271.45
Labranche Pauline M Assistant $34,764.76 Silvia Michelle L Teacher $42,842.32
Lauer Emily Paraprofessional $4,935.88 Smart Carole Teacher $88,650.00
Leavitt Mark W Teacher $60,837.00 Spirito Nicole Paraprofessional $7,861.23
Leclair Michelle L Paraprofessional $4,382.58 Library/Media
Lemire Pamela J Paraprofessional $21,722.60 Stern Emily Specialist $31,633.40
Levine Meghan Teacher $52,854.58 Trofatter Lyndi Paraprofessional $10,643.73
Lindquist Erik Paraprofessional $4,615.10 Administrative
Malsbary Lindsey Paraprofessional $16,361.89 Valinski Elizabeth W | Assistant $32,213.43
Marquis Cynthia B Cafeteria $21 ,661.48 Williams Mark W Paraprofessional $3,60877
Mastin Melanie A Teacher $29,270_59 Yeager Patricia A Teacher $61 ,697.22
Mazzone Christopher | Assistant Principal $85,697.00 Yorgey Brittany A Teacher $4,266.08
McCurry Anne T Paraprofessional $19,284.28
McGilvery Catherine M | Teacher $56,505.39 _
McGinty Kevin Custodian $32,896.50 Last name | First name Position Gross Wages
Mclver Mary Teacher $525.00 Anderson Patricia A Tutor $487.50
Miles Anthony E Custodian $13,294.49 Supervisor of the
Moran Claudette C Teacher $68,691.13 Arquette Jane g::rcllgglsjm p— $225.00
Moreau , Charlotte E Cafeter!a $7.577.77 Ballantyne Arlene Instruction $89,252.00
Morganelli Jacquelynn Cafeteria $7,141.75 Beaulieu Susan Tally Clerk $75.00
Morin William G Custodian $5,688.70 ;
Murphy Gerin Teacher $36,342.55 . Supervisor of the

d Benson Nicole Checklist $75.00
Murray Janice M Teacher $61,679.68 Business
Neri Blake Teacher $36,841.63 Blouin Christine Administrator $90,259.00
O'Neill Kaitlyn Teacher $600.00 Bogan Joel F Tally Clerk $75.00
Onessimo Vanessa Paraprofessional $1,642.20 Botterman Eric Tally Clerk $75.00
Orent Judith M Paraprofessional $22,890.50 Executive
Otash Jon R Teacher $29,780.01 Botterman Penny J Secretary $39,719.00
Pagnotta Nancy Teacher $72,637.16 Treasurer/
Pavlidis Thomas P Guiance Director $87,311.00 Brousseau Annette L TallyClerk $2,648.28
Perkins Amanda Teacher $36,443.32 Technology
Perkins Stacy L Teacher $45,765.42 Carey Jason Director $67,590.00
Proulx Arthur W Teacher $16,140.19 Cochran Kristina L Teacher $70,728.00
Provencher | Jeffery Paraprofessional $18,208.68 L‘::.rr‘]';::;%e
: i

S m—— I R A R
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Durocher- Caracciolo Frank Substitute $5,523.90
Wentworth Gail Board Member $1,250.00 Cargill Megan E Substitute $1,237.50
Evangelista | Mathew Board Member $1,000.00 Coronis Carol Substitute $975.00
Grochmal Deborah A Tally Clerk $75.00 Crawford Christopher | Substitute $560.00
Hastings Jennifer K Board Secretary $2,724.25 Daley-Dolloff | Margaret Substitute $1,330.00
Hawkins Christopher Moderator $225.00 Dietterle Erich J Substitute $9,140.00
Hoeflich Paulette Tutor $6,720.00 Dotson Christina Substitute $2,212.50
Food Service Dube Erin Substitute $1,165.00
Hopey Linda M Director $40,027.00  “Eigfeller Jessica Substitute $1,190.00
Lombard Katherine E Webmaster $7,187.50 Farwell Sarah Substitute $980.00
Lunney Nathan Board Member $1,000.00 Fournier Theresa Substitute $165.00
Martin Michael Superintendent $133,120.00 Fritz Jean-Marie Substitute $370.00
E:V;%':QACCOUMS Galbreath | Gale R Substitute $3,712.50
Marvin Teresa M Cozrdinator $48,319.00 Gerard Sarah Subst!tute $1,120.00
- , Herchenroder |lan Substitute $350.00
McKinney Elizabeth Board Member $1,000.00 - -
Director of Student Hill Amy M Substitute $7,879.21
Parsons Jean M Services $85,977.06 Hoehner Ute Substitute $4,005.00
Administrative Holmes Jean Substitute $7,215.00
Puchlopek Sherry D Assistant $38,336.20 Karnacewicz | Jennifer Substitute $562.50
Spainhower | Rachel M Financial Assistant | $22,765.27 Katz Dorothy Substitute $1,579.50
Supervisor of the Lingham Helen M Substitute $995.00
St Hilaire Madeleine M | Checklist $225.00 Massaro Kimberly Substitute $412.50
Weitzell Crystal A Tally Clerk $75.00 McGauley Lianna Substitute $615.00
Board Filming/ Miller Nicole Substitute $2,215.00
Williams Christopher D | Video Club $6,279.00 0'Leary John Substitute $70.00
Plourde Laura Substitute $3,185.00
[Coaches Y™ Chery Substitute $395.00
Last name | First name Position Gross Wages Rasheed Sarah Substitute $2,220.00
Benson Jon R Coaches $2,640.00 Reeser Roger Substitute $3,811.20
Dawson Andrew Coaches $2,240.00 Riley Janet R Substitute $4,505.00
Jurkoic Stanley Coaches $2,640.00 Russ Tyler Substitute $280.00
Lockwood Dana Coaches $2,400.00 Savidis Elena Substitute $4,147.40
Turcotte Rachael Coaches $1,440.00 Smith Elaine Substitute $980.00
Weitzell Ronald W Coaches $1,400.00 Smith Martie Substitute $5,249.03
Snyder Linda Substitute $6,355.00
_ Stefanski Paula J Substitute $70.00
Last name | First name Position Gross Wages Sullivan Lauren M Substitute $4,152.84
Allen Karen Substitute $245.00 Szabo Frank W Substitute $2,500.00
Aucoin Donald H Substitute $1,101.36 Teschek Patricia D Substitute $4,180.00
Beach Diane G Substitute $6,254.90 Thayer Gregory J Substitute $375.00
Beaudet Edith A Substitute $150.00 Tilton Amy M Substitute $730.00
Belierive Hilari Substitute $4,300.00 Vigars Bradley Substitute $350.00
Bouchard Kyle A Substitute $350.00 Vincent Laura Substitute $605.00
Brandon Kelsey Substitute $35.00 Walmsley Sarah Substitute $505.00
Brown Irving E Substitute $3,967.50 Wilson Betsy Substitute $420.00
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Class of 2015 Top Ten Students

(see photo on back cover)

No. 1 Sarah Filion was accepted at Colby College, North-
eastern University, Smith College, University of Roches-
ter and the University of New Hampshire. She plans to
attend the University of New Hampshire. Her goal is to
study Medicine and apply her knowledge abroad.

No 2. Kaylee Kiefaber was accepted at the University
of Vermont and the University of New Hampshire. She
plans to attend the University of New Hampshire. Her
goal is to have a career involving science or business.

No. 3 Brad Rossignol was accepted at Norwich Uni-
versity and will be attending the U.S. Military Academy
at West Point to study chemistry. He plans to graduate
from West Point and serve his country as a U.S. Army
Officer.

No. 4 Andrew Jablonski was accepted at the Univer-
sity of Denver, the University of Vermont, the University
of New Hampshire, American University, DePaul Uni-
versity, Suffolk University, and Saint Michael’s College.
He plans to attend the University of New Hampshire to
study French and international affairs and to continue
on to graduate school, earning his master’s degree.

No. 5 Jasmine Whitman was accepted at the Univer-
sity of New Hampshire, St. Anselm College, St. Joseph’s
College and Keene State College. She plans to attend the
University of New Hampshire to study Nursing. Her goal
is to become a registered nurse.

No. 6 Ashley Wettstein was accepted at the Univer-
sity of New Hampshire, Clarkson University, Wofford
College, the University of Denver and the University
of Vermont. She plans to attend the University of New
Hampshire to study Chemistry. Her goal is to become a
Pharmacist.

No. 7 Tristan Byrd was accepted at Southern New
Hampshire University, the University of New Hamp-
shire, Plymouth State University, University of Maine,
University of Maine, Farmington, and the University
of Southern Maine. He plans to attend Southern New
Hampshire University to study business.

No. 8 Jenna Baillargeon was accepted at the Hamp-
shire College, Emerson College, the University of Maine,
Farmington and Johnson State College. She plans to at-
tend Hampshire College to study creative writing.

No. 9 Cameron Polacke is member of the Jehovah’s
Witnesses. He plans to enter the full-time volunteer
ministry.

No. 10 Georgia Ziarnowksi was accepted at and plans
to attend the West Virginia University to study nutrition.
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IMPORTANT NUMBERS
Town of Newmarket, NH

Website: www.newmarketnh.gov

Ambulance: 4Young Lane 03857 ..................... EMERGENCY CALLS ONLY 911

For Other PUrpOSES . . ... oot e 603-659-3334
Emergency Dispatch: 70 Exeter Street. ............... EMERGENCY CALLS ONLY 911
Fire Department: 4 Young Lane 03857 .............. ... ... ........ 603-659-3334

Dispatch . ... ... 603-659-3363
Library: 1 EIm Street 03857 . ........ . i 603-659-5311
Police Department: 70 Exeter Street 03857 ............ EMERGENCY CALLS ONLY 911

Non-Emergency Calls .............. i 603-659-6636
Public Works Department: 4 Young Lane 03857 .. .................. 603-659-3093
Senior Center Sunrise Sunset: 2 Terrace Drive .................... 603-659-4469
Town Office: 186 Main Street 03857 ............. ... ... ... ...... 603-659-3617

Town Administrator: x1301

Town Administrator Secretary x1200

Code Enforcement: x1311 . ... ... i 603-659-8501
Finance Dept.: x1304

General Assistance (Welfare): x1312

Planning/Zoning: x1310 .. ... ... i e 603-659-8501
Recreation: x1605 . .. ... 603-659-8581
Town Clerk/Tax Collector: x4070 . .......... .. ... 603-659-3073
Water/Sewer Invoice Info Only: x4070 ............... ..., 603-659-3617
Forall Other PUIPOSES . . . . .. ..o e e 603-659-3617
Schools
HighSchool . ...... ... ... . 603-659-3271
Elementary School ........... .. ... 603-659-2192

Superintendent . ........ ... 603-659-5020




Newmarket Jr-Sr High School top ten seniors of the class of 2015
Left to right: Bradley Rossignol, Andrew Jablonski, Kaylee Kiefaber, Ashley Wettstein, Sarah Filion, Georgia Ziarnowski,
Janina Ribeiro (Honorary Achievement), Jenna Baillargeon, Tristan Byrd, and Cameron Polacke
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